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OTTERVILLE.

A Quaker Seftlgment in the south-east of the township of Norwich, prettily
sitnated on Otter Creek. It contains about 150 inhabitants, one physician and
surgeon, two grist mills, one saw mill, one store, one tavern.

Post Office, post three times a week.

OWEN SOUND.

A long narrow Bay jutting into the land from the south-west extremity of the
Georvgian Bay. The land bowderiug on it has only lately been jaid out and
surveyed, but it is settling up fast. Ou the shores of the Big Bay, a bay of the
Sound, is a settlement of Chippewa Tndians,

These Indiane were formerly either wanderers in the Saugeen traet, surren-
dered to 8ir F. B. Head, or Jived in seattered wigwams, on the shores of Big
Bay. According to the agreement then made with them, it was proposed that
tbefv should either repair to Manitoulin, or to that part of their former territory
which lies to the north of Owen’s Sound; wpon which it was promised that
houses should be built for them, and proper assistance given, to enable them to
become civilized, and to cultivate land.

In 1842, their present settlement was permmmently formed by the erection of
fourteen log houses, and a barn, out of the proceeds of their annuity, under the
dircction of the Indian Department. Their number is 130; and they have
about 120 acres of land under cultivation; but from the short time they have
settled, and the litile cxperience which they can have yet acquired, 'it is not
probable that they have made much progress in agricuiture. In 1842, they
were supplied with two yoke-of oxen, paid for out of their annuity, and are antici-
pating an extension of their present plantations. They are Christians, and
a Weslevan Merthodist missionary, resident at 8t, Vincent, twenty-five miles
distant, has visited them regularly since October, 1841, A resident missionary
was appointed to this settlement last year, by the Canadian Weslevan Metho-
dist Conference. They have also had a school, conducted by an Indian, and
waintained hy the same body, since the close of 1842, They share the same
annuity as the Chippewas of Saugeen.

OXFORD.

A Township in the Johnstown District: is bounded on the north-east by the
township of South Gower; on the north-west hy Marlborough; on the south-
west by Wolford; and on the sonth-east by Edwardsburg. In Oxfurd, 42,031
acres dre taken up, 9298 of which are nnder cultivation, The Rideau Canal
and River forms the north-western boundary. The land iu the south of the
township i generally good, and there are some well cultivated farms in it; in
the north the land is of inferior quality. Timber—in the south, a mixture of
hardwood and pine; in the north, principally pine, In Oxford 800 acres of
Crown lands are open for sale, at Bs. currency per acre. There are two grist
and seven saw mills in the township,

Population in 1842, 2960,

Ratable property in the township, £31,225,

OXFORD WEST.

A Township in the Brock District; is bounded on the east by the township
of East Oxford; on the north-west by North Oxford; and on the south hy
Dercham. In West Oxford 19,345 acres are taken up, 6410 of which are under
eultivation. The east branch of the River Thames separates the township
from North Oxford. This is a small township, but it is well settled; the land
is generally rolling, and there are some handsome farms in it; the timber is
principally piné, intermixed with hardwood. ~The village of Ingersol is situ-
ated in the north-west of the township; and the village of Beachville in the
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north-east; hoth near the River Thames. There are three grist and ten saw
mills in the township, and large quantities of lumber are exported from it.
Popalation in 1842, 1321, who are principally Canadians, with & few English,
Irish, and Scotch
Ratahle property in the township, £25,396.

OXFORD EAST,

A Township in the Brock District; is bounded on the east by the township
of Burford; on the north by Blandford; on the west by West Oxford; and on
the south by Norwich, In East Oxford, 21,936 acres. are taken up, 5836 of
which are nnder cultivation. Thisis a small township, but it is pretty well
settled. The soil of the north and west of the township is mostly light, and the
land is timbered with pine; iu the soutli-east, the timber consists of pine, inter-
mixed with hardwood. There are one grist and three saw mills in the town-
ship.

ll")opulation in 1842, 1280; who are principally Canadians, with a few English,
Irish and Scotch,

Ratable property in the township, £18,050,

OXTORD, NORTH.

A Township in the Brock District; is bonnded on the sonth-east by the
township of \{erst Oxford ; on the north by Zorra and Nissouri; and on the
west by North Dorchester. In Nocth Oxford ,207 acres are taken up, 1,950
of which are under cultivation. This.is a small township, containing excellent
land, which is timbered generally with hardwood. There is a large lime-stone

uarry in the east corner of the township, which extends into the township of
fest Oxford. There is one saw mill in the township,

Population in 1342, 444; who are principally European emigrants,

Ratable property in the township, £6,148,

PAISLEY BLOCK,

A Scotch Settlernent in the township of Guelph. It commences zhout six miles
north-east from the town of Guelph, and extends about four miles in length
The settlement was corameneed ahont seventeen years ago, and it now con-
tains good farms, which are geperally well eultivated,

PAKENHAM.,

A Township in the Bathurst District; is bounded on the north-east by the town-
ship of Fitzroy; on the north-west by Macnab; on the south-west by Darling;
and on the south-east by Ramsay., In Palkenbam 14,014 acres are taken up,
4060 of which are under cultivation. The Mississippi River runs through
the east of the township from sonth to north, "The village of Palienham is
situated in the township. Pakenham is well settled, prineipally by emigrants
from Scotland, and eontains some good farins. Twenty-four thousand four
hundred aeres of Crown lands are open for sale in the township, at Bs. curreney
por acre,

Population in 1842, 1142,

Rarable property in the township, £12,257,

PAXKENHAM.

A Village in the township of Pakenham, about forty miles from Bytrwr,
forty from Perth, and ten from Fitzroy Harbour. It contains about :50 inhLabi-
tants. Clurelies and chapeis, three; viz., Episeopal, Presbyteriun, :nd Motho-
dist. Post Office, post six times a-week.

Dryfessions and Trades.—One physician and snrgeon, one grist #nd saw mill,
carding machine and cloth factory, four stores, one tannery, two : 1verns, three
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waggon makers, two cabinet makers, one tinsmith, three tailors, two coopers,
four blacksmitha.

PALERMO,

A Village in the township of Trafalgar, situated on Dundas street, thirty
miles from Toronto, and eighteen from Hamilton. There is an Episcopal church
in the village. :

Population about 200,

Post Office, post every dagl.‘

Professions and Trades.—Three stores, one foundry, two taverns, two waggon
makers, three blacksmiths, two tailors, two shoemakers.

PARIS.

A considerable Village in the south of the township of Dumfries, and partly
in Brantford, situated on the Grand River, at the entrance of Smith's Creek.
It is twenty-two miles west from Dundas, and twenty-one east from Woodstock,
six miles above Brantford, and thirteen miles below Galt. Before the formation
of the plank road, Paris was on the high road from London to Hamilton, but it
is now left a little to the north, and most of the travel passes it. It was laid out
in 1830, and was called Paris from the large quantities of gvpsum or plaster of
Paris found in the immediate neighbourhood. It is divided into the upper town
and the lower town; the lower town being within the forks of the river,and the
upper town & little to the south, on the opposite side of Smith’s Creek, in the
towuship of Brantford, The village is beautifully situated, in the midst of a
rolling country, most of which was what is called “ Oak Plains,” nnd is sur-
rounded by fine, flourishing, well cultivated farms. It is a thriving settlement,
and promises to become a place of considerable manufacturing importance,
having the advantage of very extensive water power. There were exported
from the mills at the village, last year, about 1200 tons of plaster (at the price
of $44 per ton), about 1,500,000 feet of lumber; and 120,000 bushels of wheat
have been purchused from the crop of 1845. There ave five churches and
chapels, viz,, Episcopal (of stone), Presbyterian, Roman Catholie, Methodist
and Baptist. .

Paris contains about 1000 inhabitants, who are & mixture of Americans,
Seoteh, English, and Irish.

Post Office, post three times a-week.

Professions and Trades.—Two grist mills (with eight run of stones), one mill
for grinding gypsum or plaster of Paris, three physicians and surgeons, three
distilleries, one brewery, one woollen factory, one tannery, fulling mill, one saw
mill (with tio saws), one foundry and plough factory, fourteen dry goods and
grocery Btores, one druggist, one civil engineer and surveyor, five taverns, one
conveyancer, five waggon makers, four cabinet makers, one machine shop, one
fauning—mil] maker, two chair makers, six blacksmiths, one whitesmith, one
gunsmith, one tinsmith, seven joimers, five cooperages (in one of which the
staves are cnt and dressed by machinery, which is worked by a steam engine),
five tailors, seven shoemakers, two schools for young ladies,

Principal Tavern.— Gross’s.”

PEACH ISLAND.
An Island situated at the entrance of Lake St. Clair, near the Canadian shore
—containg about 150 acres, of which about 50 are fit for cultivation. It is used
prineipally as a fishing statior.

PECHES, RIVIERE AUX.

A small Stream which takes its rise in the township of Sandwich, and enterd
Lake 8t. Clair, after running through the north-west corner of Maidstone,
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PEEL,

A Township in the Wellington District; is bounded on the north-east by the
township of Garafraza; on the north-west by Maryborough; on the sonth-west
by Wellesley; and on the south-east by Woolwich and Nickol. This township
forms part of what was formerly called * Queen’s Bush;” it has not long been
open for settlement, and no retnro has yet been made from it It is said to
contain about 1000 inhabitants.

PELHAM

A Township in the Ni District; is hounded on the east by the townshi
of Thorold; on the north by Louth; on the west by Gainshorbugh and a sm
portion of Clinton; and on the south by Wainfleet. In Pelbam 26,896 acres
are taken up, 11,424 of which are under cultivation. The Chippewa, or Wel-
land River, forms the south boundary of the township; and a good mill stream
flows through the north-east of the township, Pelham is ap old-settled town-
ship, and contains good farms and excellent orchards. Timber—pine, inter-
mixed with hardwood. There are three grist and ten saw mills in the township.

Population in 1842, 1,692; who are principally Canadians and Americans.

Ratable property in the township, £34,060.

PELE, POINT.

’ A Point of Land, part of the township of Mersea, which runs ont into Lake
rie.

PEMBROKE.

A Township in the Bathurst District; is hounded on the north and north-west
by the Ottawa River; on the west by unsurveyed lands; and on the south by
Westmeath and Stafford. This township and Stafford, being as yet but little set-
tled, are assessed together. In the two townships 11,205 acres are taken up, 1,658
of which are under cultivation. Farming produce in these northern townships
usually commands a high price, in consequence of the expense of carriage so
far up the Ottawa; there being a great demand for produce of all kinds, parti-
cularly for hay and oats, for the use of the lumberers on the river. On the
whole, however, where the winter is so long, and stoek of all kinds must neces-
sarily require so much feeding, farming cammot be very profitable, even with
the high prices the produce brings. In Pembroke 1,900 acres of Crown lands
are open for sale, at 8s, currency per acre. There are one grist and two saw
mills in the township,

Population in 1842, 195.

Ratable property in the township, £5,992.

PEMBROKE,

A Village in the north-west of the township of Pembroke, sitnated on the
Ottawa River, at the mouth of the Muskrat River. 1t is supported entirely by
the lumber trade. There is as yet no road to the settlement passable for wag-
gous, but one has been lately surveyed. All goods intended for the settlement
are conveyed up the Ottawa. Pembroke contans about 250 inhabitants, one
Methodist church, one physician and surgeon, one grist and saw mill, one wag-
gon maker, five siores, six taverns, and two blacksmiths.

Post Office, post once a week.

PENETANGUISHENE.

A Village in the township of 'Tiny, beautifully situated on Pen ishene
Bay, forty miles from Barrie. Penetanguishene was commenced in the year
1818, in consequénce of the government having formed a navel and mili
establishment on the bay, in the township of Tay, two and a half miles off;
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at which station the war steamer Midas is laid up in ordinary, There are
also large barracks, but 3 ver; small military establishment is kept up. There
is a collector of customs at Penetanguishene; but it is. eleyen years since he
had an entry, €0 I wus informed on authority. The inhabitants of
the sarrournding neighbourhood are mearly all half-French, half-Indian, The
principal trade of the place is derived from the government establishment, and
the' fur trade with the Indians. There is a Catholic church in the village, and
an Episcopalian one, half-way between the village and the establishment.

Penetanguishene contains about 120 inhabitants.

There are four stores, one grist and two eaw mills, one tavern, one blacksmith,
one tinsmith, two tatlors, two shoemekers. There i8 also a tavern at the estab-
lishment, —_—
PERCH, THE—(S¢e RivieRe Aux PERCHES.)

PERCHES, RIVIERE AUX; or the Penca, as it is generally called,
Takes itg rise in the township of Enniskillen, enters Sarnia at its south-esst
corner, runs & north-west course till it reaches the west corner of Lake Way-
wanosh; it emerges from the east corner of the lake, and enters Lake Huron
at the north corner of the township of Sarnia,

PERCY.

A Township in the Neweastle District; is bounded on the east by the town-
ships of Seymour and Murray; on the north by the River Trent; on the west
by Alnwick and Haldimand; and on the south by Cramahe. In Perey 21,264
acres ave taken up, 4303 of which are under cultivation. A small settlement,
called “ Percy Mills,” is situated in the south-east of the township, The timber
in Percy consists of hardwood, intermixed with pine. There are one grist and
five saw mills in the township.

Population in 1842, 920.

Ratable property in the township, £13,813.

PERTH,

The District Town of the Bathurst Distriet, situated n the south of the
towsship of Drummond, seven miles from the Rideau Canal, forty from Brock-
ville, and by water seventy from Kingston. (‘T'here is at present no road to
Kingston fit to be travelled by vehicles,) Perth is built on a rising ground, on
a sandy soil, with a granite foundation, and is consequently dry and healthy,
The town occupics a space of 400 acres. It was laid out by the government
in the year 1816; the streets are wide, and are built at right angles. The River
Tay runs throngh the town, and is made navigable from Perth to the Ridean
Canal, by means of five locks, each ninety-five feet by twenty, The canal is
eleven miles in length, and enters the Rideau Canal two miles below Oliver’s
Fary. Barges carrying eighty tons can pass through it. This work was
formed by a private company, who received a grant from the government of a
portion of the centre of the town of Perth, (an island formed by two hranches
of the River Tay), towards the expenses of the work. This was undertaken
about thirteen years since, and cost about £7000.

Churches snd chapels, seven: viz., Episcopal, two Presbyterian, one Free
Church, Catholic, Methodist, and Baptist,

The jail and court house is a handsome building of white freestone; and the
town contains several good buildings of stone and brick, and one or two orna-
mented with white marble, which may be prucured in any quantity within a few
miles of the town.

A weekly newspaper is published here—the * Bathurst Courier.”

A stage runs three time a-week to Brockville..

Population, about 1800,

Post Office, post three times a~week.
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The following Government and District Offices are kept at Perth: —Judge of
District Court, %heri.ﬁ', Treasurer, Clerk of Peace, Inspector of Licenses, Crown
Lands Agent, Judge of Surrogate Court, Registrar, District Clerk, Clerk of
District Court, Superintendént of 3chools, Deputy Clerk of Crown.

P gfessions and Trades.—Three physicians and surgeons, five lawyers, one
grist mill, one saw mill, eleven stores, seven taverns, three foundries, four tan-
neries, three distilleries, one printer, two breweries, two druggists, four saddlers,
seven blackemiths, three tinsmiths, four waggon makers, two watchmakers,
8even conpers, one cabinet maker, twelve tailors, fifteen shoemakers, three
weavers, one bauk agency—* City Bank of Montreal.”

Principal Tavern—* Matheson’s.”

Stage fare to Brockville, 10s. currency-

PETERBOROUGH.

The District Town of the Colborne District, beantifully situated in the north-
west of the township of North Monaghan, on the Otonabee River, thirty miles
north from Port Hope, and about thirty-four from Cobourg, The town was
laid out by government in the year 1826; and property has greatly increased in
value within the last few years; so much so, that the few town lots now remain-
ing in the hands of the Crown are valued at from £12 10s. to £300; and £350
was lately paid for a portion of a lot, containing not more than about a tenth of
an acre. ’Fhe town is well laid out, and has a handsome appearance, and is at
present very flourishing. A portion of the town, on the east side of the river,
is called Peterhorough East. There is some fine scenery in the neighbourhood
of the town ; the land being a snecession of hill and dale. During the season,
the sweambont “ Forester” leaves the town every day for Rice Lake, where it
is met by the stage for Port Hope and Cobourg ; .and during the winter, a
runs every day from Peterborough to the same places. A gravelled road is in
course of construction from Rice Lake to Port Hope.

The jail and court-house is a handsome stone building, erected on a Tising
ground in the rear of the town. Churehes and ehapels, seven; viz., Episcopal
(stone), Presbyterian (stone), Catholic (stone), Baptist (brick), British Wesleyan,
Canadian Wesleyan, and Christian.

There is in Peterborough a fire company, with one engine. Two newspapers
are published here weekly —the Peterborouyh Gazetts and Peterborough
Chronicle,

Population about 2,000

Post Office. post every day.

The foliowing Government and District Offices are kept in Peterborough:—
Jndge of District Court, Sheriff, Clerk of Peace, Inspector of Licenses, Crown
Lande Agent, District Clerk, Clerk of District Court, Deputy Clerk of Crown,
Treasurer, Registrar.

Professions and Trades.—Four physicians and surgeons, five lawyers, two
ist mills, two saw mills, oue hrewery, one ashery, two distilleries, three
oundries, three tanneries, thirty stores, two druggists, five taverns, one woollen
factory, one carding machine and fulling mill, two surveyors, four chair facto-
ries, one fanning-mill maker, five saddlers, two tinsmiths, one pearl ashery, two
watchmakers, six waggon makers, five bakers, four cahinet makers, three
coopers, thirteen blacksmiths, four butehers, two millwrights, eighteen shoe-
makers, twelve tailovs, one weaver, one gunsmith, one school, one veterinary
amgfon. one bank agency—* Montreal.”
incipal Tuverns.—* Albert House,” and “ Union Hotel™

PETITE NATION RIVER.

Tekes its rise in the township of Osgoode; flows south to near the south
border of Mouutain, where it makes a bend to the north-east, and passes through
the gouth of that township, the south-east of Winchester, and the west of Finch;
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in the south of Cambridge it reeeives a branch which takes its rise in the nortk
of Osgoode, and flows through the centre of Russell. After reeeiving this
branch, the Petite Nation River passes through the centre of Cambridge, run-
ning nearly north; at the north corner of the townehip it reeeives a branch from
Gloucester, Cumberland, and Clarence, and flows north-east to near the south-
east corner of Plantagenet, where it makes a bend, and runs north-west to the
Ottawa River, which it enters near the north-west corner of Plantagenet. Large
%:;audties of lamber are cat on its banks, which is mostly carried down the
tawa,

PHILLIPSVILLE.,
A small Village sitnated in the south-west of the centre of the township of
Bastard. It contains sbout forty inhabitants, one store, one tavern, and one
blackemith,

PIGEON LAKE. (8¢ Rice LAkE).

PICKERING.

A Township in the Home District; is bounded on the north by the township
of Uxbridge; on the west by Markham and Scarborough; on the east by
‘Whitby; and on the south by Lake Ontario. In Pickering 63,061 acres are taken
up, 24,551 of which are under cultivation. The land in the interior of the town-
ship is rather hilly, and the timber of a large proportion of it is pine. At the
entrance of Duffin’s Creek, which runs through the township, is a bay called
Big Bay (also called Frenehman's Bay, from a battle said to have been fought
on its banks between the old French settlers and the Indians), about tbree miles
in cireumference, with a depth of from two to three fathoms: it is separated
from the lake by a narrow sand bar, through which a channel is sometimes.
formed having & depth of six feet of water. In Pickering are four grist and
twenty-one saw mills, from which latter were exported last year about 3,000,000
feet of Jumber,

Papulation in 1842, 3752,

Ratable property in the township, £62,594.

PICTON.

The District Town of the Prince Edward District, in the township of Hal-
Yowell, pleasantly sitnated on the banks of the Bay of Quinté. The principal
part of the town is built about half a mile back from the bay, on gently rising

ound. A narrow arm of the bay divides' the town into two portions; and,
being marshy, makes that part of the town bordering on it rather unhealthy at
scasons, which might easily be remedied by dredging and deepeuing the channel.
Picton is an old-settled town, and is 4 place of considerable business: it possesses
many excellent houses, several of which are huilt of stone. 'The jail and court-
houwse is a handsome cut-stone building, enclosed with o stone wall, surmounted
by iron railings, with iron gate, the appearance of which is light and elegant.
During the seagon of navigation, two steamboats call at Picton daily, on their
passages to and from Kingston and Trent. There are four churchés and chapels;
viz., Episcopal, Presbyterian, Catholic and Mechodist. There is also a fire aud
hook and ladder company, with one engine; and a circulating library.

Two newspapers are published here weekly—the * Prince Edward Gazette,”
and “ Picton Sun.”

Post Office, post every day.

Population aboat 1,200.

The fcllowing Government and District Offices are kept in Picton:—Judge of
Distriet Court, Sheriff, Clerk of Peace, Treasurer, Inspector of Licenses, Col-
lector of Cnstoms, Crown Lands Agent, District Clerk, Clerk of District Court,
Deputy Clerk of Crown, aud Superintendent of Schools.
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Professions ond Trades.—Three physicians and surgeons, four lawyers, one
apothecary, thirteen stores, one brewery, one distillery, three tanneries, two aw
mills, two printers, two booksellers, two foundries, two asheries, six taverns,
four saddlers, six blacksmitbs, three waggon makers, two bakers, one hatter
two watchmakers, five shoemakers, seven tailors, three cahinet makers, two
tinsmiths, two butchers, one school, two bank ngencies—* Commercial,” and.
“ Montreal.”

Principal Taverns—* Ketchum's™ and * Chureh’s.”

Ezxports from Picton during the year 1844,

Description. Quantity.
Wheat coorierieininnnicnirinnnnnens S e 25,169 bushels..
FUIOUE - vcsssuirmisnnvinumvisemissama s voms 5,649 barrels.

Pork i 423 do.
Ashed iviniiiiiiiiiiiiireicicaniirine s rn s ans 138 do.
PeBS. .o ccncrrininrerniianasniesiesnsnansnresnssrnnaesss 1,703 bushels.
Barley ......ccociiiiciiiiimmiininnininnene. . 2,946 do.
Ryl nenrasnen. 1,302 do.
Buckwheat ovviieiiinninniienervecsinansonne. 2960 do.
Indtan Corn: isiiiniimainiimis e 760 do
Coarse Graili....iecaiiineieinesissieaesss 11,093 do,
FisH . covicvivimiissmmmsan Susaasimiiiiisa i vmy 250 barrels..
Leather........ s R asas 8000 sides;
Buler viivveriieiieieirinan e e s 5,000 Tbs,

PITTSBURGH.

A Township in the Midland District; is bounded on the east by the township
of Leeds; ou the north by Bedford and South Crosby; on the west by Lough-
borough and Kingston; and on the south by Lake Ontario. In Pittsburgh
37,433 acves are taken up, 6,231 of which are under enitivation The Rideau
Canal runs across the township, from north-east to south-west; a navigable
channel having been made through the (ataraqui River and s chain of lakes
in the north of the township. Most of the land through which-the canal passes
is unfit for enltivation, the high ground being composed prineipally of granite
rocks, and the low ground heing generally flooded. There are three saw mills
in the township. Two thousand four hundred acres of Crown.lands are open
for sale in Pittshurgh, at 8. currency per acre.

Population, 2,132

Ratable property in the township, £24,160.

PLANTAGENET.

A Township in the Ottawa District; is bounded on the east by the township
of Alfred; on the north by the Ottawa River; on the west hy Clarence and
Cambridge; and on the scuth and soath-east hy Roxborough and Caledonia.
In Plantageuet 18,075 acres arce taken up, 2,536 of which are under eultivation.
‘This is a large township. extending back the whole depth of the Ottawa Distriet:
it is divided into Plantagenct in freme, and Plancagenet in rear. The Petite
Nation River enters the township near its north-west corner, runs ueross the
townehip, in a sonth-easterly direction, till it reaches the eastern border, where
it makes a bend, and flows west, aud a litcte sonth, to the north-east corner of
Cambridge, which tawnship it enters. Plantagener is as yet hut little settled—
24,616 acres of Crown lands are open for sale in it, at 8q. eurrency per acre..
There is one grist mill und one saw mili in the township.

Popuiation in 1842, 93¢,

Ratable property in the township, £10,589.
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: PLYMPTON.

A Township in the County of Kent; is bouuded on the north by Lake Hmany
on the west by Sarnia; ou the south by Warwick; and on the north-east by
Bosanquet. Plympton 19,484 acres are takenup, of which 2,516 are uader cul-
tivation, The soil and timber of this township are of a very fine quality; the land
being generally rich, and the timber the best kindsof hardwood. Large quantities
of potash have heen made in Plympton in the last two years, which is generally
found to more than pay the expense of clearing the land. During 1845 a very
large quantity will have been made, A water grist mill has recently been
erected at the north-eastern extremity of the township, on the lake shore. There
are several good mill sites in this township One tbousand three hundred acres
of Crown lands are open for sale in Plympton, at 8s. currency per acre; and of
private individuals land is to be purchased at from two to three dollars per acre.

Population of Plympton, 639,

Ratable property in the township, 7,959.

There are in the township one blacksmith, one grist mill, two shoemakers.

POINT PELE ISLAND.

An Island in Lake Erie, opposite Point Pelé, and about seven miles from it
It is about seven or eight miles in length, and averaging two in breadth. Tt has
never been surveyed ; consequently the uumber of acres it contains is not
known, About half the island is fit for cultivation, but at present only ahout
600 acres are under cultivation. Contains about fifty inhabitants. The island
is well supplied with red cedar, and possesses a fine lime-stone quarry. There
is a grist-mill on the island, and a light-house on the north-east point.

POINT EDWARD.—(See Sarn1a,)

PORT BURWELL.

A Village in the township of Bayham, beautifully situated at the mouth of
QOtter Creck, on Lake Erie. It was settled about ten ycars since, and now
contains about 200 inhabitants. A light-house bas been erected on tbe high
bank overlooking the lake, and a collector of customs is resident here. There
is au Episcopal Church in the village,

Post office, post twice a week.

Professions and Trades—Three stores, one tannery, two taverns, one waggon
maker, one blacksmith, one painter, one tailor, one shoemaker, pne eabinet-maker.
About 3,000,000 feet of sawed lumber are annually exported from the different
saw mills on the creek.

PORT COLBORNE.

A Village in the 'I‘ownshipﬁ)f Humberstone, situated on Lake Erie, at the
mouth of the feeder of the Welland Canal ; it is a port of entry, and has a
resident collector of customs. Population about 150.

Post office, post three times a week.

Professions and Trades.—Steam grist mill (not st present in operation), one
gtore, three taverns, one baker, one grocery, one shoemaker.

PORT CREDIT.

A Village on Lake Ontario, situated at the mouth of the Credit River, fonr-
teen miles west of Toronto, and two and a helf from Dundas Street. It was
laid out in 1834 by government, and is the shipping port for the surronnding
country. [t possesses a good harbour, which might be improved sv as to be
capable of affording refuge to almost sny number of vessels. The harhour was
made by a joint-stock company, at an expense of £2,500. Of the stock, the
Indians at the adjacent village possess £1,350. They have also a warehouse zt
the port. This port wouid be of far more advantage to the surroundiug
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neighbourhood, if the road from the village to Dundas Street was macadamised
or planked, and the expense would be trifling. The quan gv of farming pro
duce and lnmber shipped at the port is very great, and would be mnch greater
if the road was in better condition, Several vessels have been built here and
five schooners of a good eclass are owned in the place. The steamers Eclipse
and Queea call here on their passages to and from Hamilton and Toronto.
Jand in the neighbourhood of the village, extending for one mile on each s.tda
of the river, comprising 4,600 acres, is Indian reserve, belonging to the Nassi-
sagoe Indians. %hey ave a village about two miles from Port Credit, which
was built for them in 1825 by the Government. They have a Methbdist chapel
and a school attached. Port Credit contains about 150 inhahitants and a
Methodist chapel.

Post office, post every day.

Professions and Trades,—'Two stores, two taverns, one blacksmith, one shoe-
maker, one waggon maker, one tailor.

Ezports from Port Credit during the year 1844:

WHRAE oiossvivans sanmvansnsinni s siaie i sumsiukine 49,100 Boshels.
Blonr: veisiisiiumiriaimims s e 6,445 Barrels,
POTK.viciaiiiirerereirereinersieriisarennsnen 76 Do.
ABNBE iiivcuniniinssessniisiaiiiaraanisiesing 32 Do,
Whiskey wiiiiuaaiiisiniinas e 12 Do.
Timothy Seed,.. ............. emeemreebiannnn 43 Do.
Wool..... 58 Cwt
Bquare Tlmber "Oak and Pme Sy 278,800 Feet,

T 1,433,369 Do.

PORT DALHOUSIE.

The entrance of the Welland Canal from Lake Ontario. A harbour has been
formed, having a basin of 500 acres in extent, with a depth of water of from
twelve to sixteen feet. There isa small wllage on the east side of the canal, in
the township of Grantham, five miles from St. Catharine's, where is a ship
yard. Port Dalhousie contains about 200 inhabitants, two stores, one tavern,
two blacksmiths.

PORT DOVER.

A Village in the township of Woodhouse, sitnated on Lake Erie, at the mouth
of the River Lynn. It was first laid ont in the year 1835, bnt on account of the
stagnation in the business of the province caused by the rehellion, it did not
begin to increase till about 1842. About £8,000 have been expended in
lmprovmg the harhour, erccting a light-house, a.nd huilding a bridge across the
river. 8ix or seven hundred pounds more are req'mred to complete the works,
A road has been formed from Port Dover to Hamilton (distance thirty-six and
a balf miles, four and a half of which are macadamized, and the remainder
planked. Two daily stages run to Hamilton (fare 5. eurrency), and during the
season, steamboats call here regularly. There is a grammar school in the
village, and 2 Preshytenan choreh in course of erection. Village lots sell at
from £20, to £75. €y.

Population nearly 400.

Post office, post every day.

Professions ard Trades—One physician and surgeon, one brewery, five
stores, two tanneries, one foundry, four taverns, two saddlers, four tailors, one
baker, five shoemakers, two cabmet makers, three blacksmiths, two butchers,
two waggoh-makers.

Principal Taverns.—“ North American,” and “ Royal Exchange.”

There is a grist and saw mill on Paterson’s Creek, about three. quarters of a
mile from the village.
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PORT HOPE.

A Town in the gouth-east corner of the township of Hope, beautifully sitnated
on Lake Ontario. The prineipal part of the town is built on the sides of a hill,
having a fine view of the lake, and the surrounding country. The road from
Toronto to Kingston passes through the town. A fine, rapid mill-stream runs
through the town to the lake, at the mouth of which is o large basin, forming a
natural harbour of considerable size, and well sheltered on the west and north.
At present the greater portion of it is a mere marsh, having a branch of the
stream passing on each side of it; but it might with ease be cleared out, when
it would form a harbour capable of admitting and protecting any vessel on the
lzke. The town is incorporated, and is improving rapidly, and some very
handsome buildings are in course of ereetion. The Toronto and Kingston
stages pass through the town, and during the season of navigation, steamboats
cglﬁmly on their passages to and from Toronto, Kingston and Rochester. A
weekly newspaper the * Port Hope Gazette ” was published here, bat it has
lately been discontinued. Churches and chapels four, viz. Episecopal, Preshyte-
rian, Catholic and Methodist.

Population abont 1,200,

The following Government and Distriet Offices are kept in Port Hope :—
Clerk of Peace, Registrar of County of Durham, Jndge of Surrogate Court,
Registrar of do., Crown Lands Agent.

Professions and Trades.—Four physicians and snrgeons, three lawyers, one
grist mill, (and a large stone grist mill in course of erection), oue foundry, one
brewery, four tanneries, five distilleries, one ashery, eighteen stores, six taverns,
one surveyor, one druggist, one bookseller, four bakers, one livery stable, one
printer, four waggon makers, two cabinet makers, one watchmaker, seven
blacksmiths, three tinsmiths, eleven tailors, ten shoemakers, fonr saddlers, one
school for boys, two ladies’ seminaries, two bank agencies—* Upper Canada ™
and “ Montreal.”

Principal Taverns.—* Hastings’ Hotel,” and “ North American.”

Exports from Port Hope during the Year 1844 :
WheAt s suviisissamsiasaiin aimssiaiiae 58,099 Bushels,

POLAOBE iroverisinssssmnesbssissdsnbinnsimian soiong 120 Do.
FLOME ssunsin sivarsnnssnsasinnsiesmvnssosssskossine 8,454 Barrels.
Potagh v s R s e 237 Do.
POTE ..o biiiseyerei s bt Phimet bt b enes b8 159 Deo.
BEBT jic vessniisuirsswirssasansnvns ssnoinvmsis sbsesonss 5 Do,
Timothy Seed.......ceeeen. S 152 Do.
WhiskeY oovviviiriiiinnieinienssaiee s 493 Casks.
Pipe Staves........... A — 5,130
Shingles ............. SER e + 78 Thousand.
Sawed Lumber .....cocvvimiiniieciniinncnenieans 91,000 Feet.
R 10 Tons.
Butter ..o AR 25 Kegs.
R e O g SR e P P 22 Firkins.
PORTLAND.

A Township in the Midland District; is bonnded on the east by the township
of Longhborough; on the porth by Hinchinhrooke ; on the west by Camden
and Ernestown; and on the south by Kingston, In Portland 23,030 acres are
taken up, 6359 of which are under cnltivation. A chain of lakes runs through
the north of the towaship, The land in Portland is of mixed quality. Timber
~—pine, intermixed with hardwood.

Population in 1842, 1525.

Ratable property in the township, £16,342.
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PORTLAND.

A small Village in the north of the towaship of Bastard, situated on the south
of Rideau Lake. It contains ebout 80 inhabitants, tannery, three stores, two
taverns, one blacksmith.

Post Office, post iwice & week.

PORT MAITLAND.
A Settlement and Shipping-place at the mouth of the Grand River, on Lake
Erie.. It contains about 50 inhabitants, and an Episcopal ehurch, two stores,
two taverns, one tailer, -ene blacksmith,

PORT NELSON.
A small Village in the township of Nelson, a mile and a half from Wellington
Square. It contains about 60 inhabitants, one store, one tavern, one shoemaker,

PORT ROYAL.
A Settlement in the township of Walsingham, at the mouth of Big Creek,
two miles and a half west from Port Rowan, It contains about 50 inhabitants,
steam saw mill, one store, two taverns, one blacksmith, one waggon muker.

PORT RYERSE,
A smasll Settlement and Shipping-place in the township of Woodhonge, at the
mouth of Ryerse’s Creek, six miles from Simeoe, and four miles from Port
Dover. It contains a saw mill, one store, and about half a dozen houses,

PORT ROWAN.

A small Village in the township of Walsingham, situated on Lake Erie, four
wmiles west of St. Williams, [t is a shipping-place, and has a resident collector
of Customs. Population about 50. Post Office, post twice a week, one store,
one tavern.

PORT ROBINSON.

A Village in the township of Thorold, situated on the Welland Canal, ten
miles from St. Catharines. This place is the “head quarters” of the coloured
company employed for the maintenance of order on the canal. There are two
churches in the village, Episcopal and Presbyterian,

Population, about 300.

Post Office, post three times a-week,

Professions and Trades.—One grist mill, three stores, three taverns, ome
saddler, ane baker, three groceries, two waggon makers, one watchmaker, two
blackemiths, one tinsmith, three tailors, two shoemakers.

PORT STANLEY.

A Village on Lake Erie, at the mouth of Kettle Creek, sitnated partly in the
township of Sonthwold, and partly in Yarmouth; the township being divided
by Kettle Creek. It is nine miles from 5t. Thomas, and twenty-six from Lon-
don; a plank road being formed between the two places. Port Stanley is
beautifully situated, being in & valley surrounded by high and picturesque hills,
and its harbour is well protected.

Churehes and chapels, two; viz,, Episcopal and Congregational

Population, about 500,

Post Office, post three times a week.

Professions ard Trades—Oue grist mill, one tannery, four stores, three gro-
ceries, two bakers, two waggon mhkers, three cabinet makers, three tailors, one
blacksmith, three taverns, three shoemakers, three hutchers. Two bank agen~
cies—* Montreal” and * Commercial
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Forwarders and Commission Agenta—H. B. Bostwick, G. R, Williams, Alex
Hodge & Co.

Ezports from Port Stanley, during the season of 1844 :

Articlis. Quantlty.l Rate, || Estimated Value..
I £ & d
WRHEAL .vevsmcerenssmntmmanseaesesnesrenresomeres| 28186 | bushels, ‘ 4065 17 9
Flour ....ccoevirmmmemimmsensisinnnnnnn...| 4984 | barrels, 5147 11 3
POBIORE  iiiciinsseissssmmssisiiveninanvg 60 | bushels, ! 3 0 0
ABNPE “iciiiiaiviiima s e e vaaas 74 * kegs, 111 0 ©
PO cicrerssrmerssirerssiiierseemaaeesea|  F19 | barrels, 523 0 0
POrE sinessserasionssmsininsiseinmoviviisnd 0L do. 1008 0 ©
Beel snvniniivnsaninaviaiiss 200 do. 300 0 O
G -, S ————— — 17 do. 42 10 ©
Po. i e 12 | kegs 15 0 0
BRtter: ot s it 7 de 120 10 ©
Barley ......sssecssiicommmrrrsisassenrsrsenness] 1108 | bushels, 110 16 ©
Rags 1.ovvvrvriecriiimsrimrmrisserisiannereriad  seonne | bareel bulk, | 58 0 0
Grass Seeds .ooviiviimmiririnismesiannn 52 | barrels. ] 26 0 O
BKins  ievvevirsrrasssrsmrsiasenssrmnaenreeens| 166 | barrel balk, 498 0 O
PURE: civivimbinsivivavinii svviiieisa st 2 | barrels, 07 6
Whiskey ..vvvesessecrarinns .“ 17 do.. 25 10 0
CLANDOITIER rernnssrsimmmssssasssrnsivnpmsimrsmansl 8 do.. 5 00
Walnut lumber ..vvveeeceimeencssemmaneene,. 63273 | feet, I58 3 8
‘ i 12218 6 2

PRESCOTT.

The County Town of the county of Grenville, in the township of Auogusta,
situated on a rising ground on the banks of the St. Lawrence, twelve miles cast.
from Brockville, and op'Fo&i'Le the American town, Ogdensburgh. The eastern
road runs through it. This was a place of considerable trade previous to the
opening of the I%ideau Canal, since when it has increased very slowly. It was
incorporated in the year 1834, and now contains about 2000 inhabitants. There
are in Prescott four ehurches and chapels, viz, Episcopal, Free Chareh, Ca~
tholic, and Methodist. There is also a custom house, A company of Canadian
Rifles and a few Artillerymen are stationed here; and a steam ferry boat
plies between Prescott and Ogdengburgh. The St. Lawrence is here sbout one
mile and a quarter across. The office of the Registrar for the county of Gren-
ville ig kept here, A econsiderable quantity of pot and pear] ash is exported.

Post Office, post every day.

Professions and Trades—Four physicians and surgeons, three lawyers, one
motary public, one brewery, three distilleries, two tanneries, twelve stores (two
of which also sell drugs), one ashery, one steam grist mill, eleven groceries,
eight'taverns, two saddlers, two watechmakers, one pottery, one axe fastory, two
livery stables, two bakers, two tinsmiths, four masons, three waggon makers,
oue hatter, one confectioner, two tallow chandlers, four coopers, two cabinet
makers, six tailors, three butchers.

Principal Taverns.—* Commereial,” and * North American.”

Forwarders and Commission Merchants —Hooke, Holter & Co.; Macpherson,
Crane & Co.; Pioneer Steamboat Company; 8. Fraser.
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PRESCOTT.
A County in the Ottawa District; comprises the townships of Alfred, Cale~
donin, East Hawkesbury, West Hawkesbury, Longucil, and Plantagenet. It
returns a member to the House of Assernbly.,

PRESTON.

A Village in the township of Waterloo, three miles from Galt and fourteen
from Guelph—was laid out in 1834—contains abont 600 inhabitants, who are
p;il:‘lpipa-lly Germans. There are two chnrehes, viz,, one Lutheran and one Ca-
tholie.

Post Office, post every day.

Professions ond Trades.—One steamn grist mill and distillery, one tannery, two
stores, four taverns, three breweries, one pottery, one grocery and drog store,
three saddlers, two waggon makers, one baker, eight shotmakers, one watch-
maker, one tinsmith, threc cabinet makers, one cooper, five tailors.

PRESQU’ ISLE HARBOUR.
A patural Harbour of Lake Ontario, formed by a large bey running into the

Jand, Tt is capable of affording excellent shelter for vessels. It is situated
uearly opposite the village of Brighton,

PRINCE ALBERT.

A Village in the township of Reach, sitnated a little east of the eentre of the
township, about fourteen miles north from Oshawa. The Post Office for the
township of Reach is kept here; post every Thursday.

Popalation, about 200.

There is in the village a Methodist chureh, five stores, two taverns, two
asheries, one blacksmith, one waggon maker, two shoemakers, two tailors.

PRINCE EDWARD DISTRICT.

Consists of .the County of Prince Edward, which comprises tho following
townships— Athol, Ameliasburgh, Hallowell, Hillier, Marysburgh. and Sophias-
burgh. This ts the smallest distriet in the Province, and is nearly surrounded
by the waters of Lake Ontario and the Bay of Quinté. Tt is very irregularly
shuped, and its shores are indented by numerous bays. The land in the district
is generally rolling, and much of it is of very good quality. The timber is for
the most part hardwood. with occasionally a fittle pine; and here and there, on
the shore of the lake, some very fine cedar is to be found.

The Prince Edward District was originally settled by U. E. Loyalists, or
persons who fought on tie side of Great Britain duriny the American war, and
1s now held by them and their descendants. There is also a number of Penn-
sylvanian Dutch, and & few English, Irish, and Scotch. They are generally in
comfortable cifcumstances, and many of them are wealthy. The greater part
of the district is under cultivation, and many of the farms are very handsomely
gituated, ‘There is no river of sny magnitude in the district; but there are
several good mill streams, which take their rise in the high land in the centre.
of the district, Lime stone of excellent quality is abundant. The land on the
;:rthem border of the district generally ascends with a gentle slope from the:

y.

Picton, the district town, is very handsomely situated on the Bay of Quint2,
in the township of Hallowell. Tt is the only town of any size in the district;
but there are also the villages of Wellington and Consecon, in Hither; Milford,
in Marysburgh; Bloomfield, in Athol; and Demorestville, in Scphiasburgh.
Besides which, there are numerous small shipping-places on the bay and lake.

There are no Crown lands for sale in the Prince Edward District; all the
land in the district being in the haonds of private individuals,
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The population of the distriet probably amonnts to about 16,000; but the
census was 8o badly taken in some of the townships, that no dependence was
tn be placed on it.

The following abstract from the assessmeat rolls will show the rate of incrense
end improvement in the district.

Yo. of BILLE. [ fOxen, 4 years| ¥lorned Cattle, | Amount of
Date, | Acres Milch Cows., old,snd | from2tod Ratahle
Cultivated. e ‘ upwards i years old. Property.,
Griat. l Saw, | |
| |
1842 | 86,767 2 42 6599 923 2383 £248,900
1843 | 90,310 | 20 | 47 6974 996 i 2715 258,888
1844 | 91,13% 19 48 7014 981 | 1997 259,198
| i

Government and District Officers in the Prince Edward District:
Judge of District Court...cc..covunicerisnnnnee Arch, Gilkison ....co.ii.e.  Pleton,
Sheriff...ucerirerieriiirarianns R cremreen . Owen MceMahon ......... Do.
TYBAGOTEL vsivssuvivinvensmnavmversuaas:  DeSmIUR couiaaanen o
Clerk of Peace ......coeeivcrmsnsnnsasssnnnness Du L, Fairfield ............ Do.
Clerk of District Court...ivovieerinernnnnees  Cecil Mortimer............ Do.
Deputy Clerk of Crown ....c.cccccvveevianes Dan

Registrar of Surrogate Court ......ves...... Samuel Merrill............ Do

Inspector of Licenses .............covieeeeee Adam Hubbs....... B .+ Do,
Collector of Customs .........evereevnerinses WL Rorke oovviiciiiinins Do.
Thomas Moore............ Do.
QOIS v cinss pesrwimisaeabavensanansass Paul E. Washburn ..... . Do,
Reuben Young ............ Do.
District Superintendent of Schools .,....... Thomas Donelly ......... Do

Crown Lands Agent.....cocooicvvevernarense WL Rorke oaneeeceine, Do.

In consequence of the absence of the superintendent, I was unable to obtain
a0y statement respecting the number of common schools in operation in the
district.

PRINCETON.

A Village on the road from Woodstock to Paris, situated on Homer’s Creek,
g branch of the Grand River, being partly in the township of Blenheim, and
partly in Burford. [t contains about 150 inhabitants, and an Episcopal church,
a saw mill, one store, two taverns, one blacksmith, one tailor, two shoemakers.
Post Office, post three times a week.

PROTON,

A Township in the Wellington Distriet; is boanded on the east by the town=
ship of Melancthon; ou the north hy Artemisia; on the west by Egremont;
and on the south by Luther. This township has only lately been surveyed and
laid out, and no return has yet been made from it,

PUCES, RIVIERE AUX. .
Takes its rise in the south-west of Maidstone, and enters Lake St. Clair, about
four miles west of Belle River.

PUSLINCH.
A Township in the Wellington District; is bounded on the north-east by
Nussagaweys; on the north-west by the township of Guelph; on the west by
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%Waterloo; and'on the évuth gnd south-east by Beverly sand Flamborough, TIa
Puslinch 50,653 acres are taken up, of ‘which 13,140 are under cultivation.
There are two lakes in the township, about nine miles from Guelph—one ‘of
which eontains between 4 and 500 acres—the other at a distance of a quarter of
a mile, contains about 50 acres. The land betweea the lakes is marghy. There
are two asmall islands in the larger lake. There are five saw mills in the
township.

Population in 1841, 1500; who are principally Highland Scotch.

Ratable property in the township, £59,8086.

QUEENSTON.

A YVillage in the township of Niagara, seven miles from the town of Niagars,
seven miles from the Falls, and forty-seven miles from Hamiiton. It is
pleasantly situated on the Niagara River, below the Heights, and opposite the
American village *Lewiston,” Before the opening of the Wellaud Canal,
Queenston was a place of considerable business, buing one of the prineipal
depots for merchandise intended for the west, and also for storing grain: as
much-as forty or fifty thousand bushels of wheat have been shipped here in g
seasotl, which now finds its way by the Welland Canal. A rail-vond from
Queenston to Chippewa, nine miles in length, which cost about £19,000, was
commenced in 1835 by a company of proprietors, and conipleted in 1841, A
single line of rails was laid down, which passes close to, and ‘above the Falls of
Niagara; and during the summer the cars run daily, (fare to Chippewa, 2s. 6d.
currency), and steamboats from Buffalo meet the cars at Chippewa. A tele~
graphic comniunication is about being established with Lewiston; and a maca-
damized road is being formed to St. Catharines. A horse ferry-boat plies pcvoss
the river from Queenston to Lewiston. A handsomg monument was erected on
the Heights above the village, to the memory of the late General Brock, who
was killed here on the 13th October, 1812, while repelling an invading army of
Americans. This monument was blown up by some scoundrel during a night in
the beginning of April, 1841. A subscription has sinee been raised for the
purpose of rebuilding it; but the work is not yet eommenced. The Niagara

iver at Queenston is only about 600 feet in width. The banks above the
town are 230 feet in height; and, below the Heights, they arc only ahout 70
feet. From the Heights above the town a very fine view may be obtained of the
surrounding country, The Niagara River is supposed at oue time to have been
precipitated over these Heights, instead of where the Falls now are. During
the season, boats ply here regularly from Toronto, and stages rnn from Hamilton
to meet the boats. A party of l{iﬁes are stationed at Queenston. Churches
and chapels—Episcopal (gone to deeay), Baptist, and Presbyterian (oot coms
pleted); Methodists use the school room.

Post Office, post every day.

Population ahout 300.

Professions and Trades.—One lawyer, one tannery, three stores, eight taverns,
one waggon maker, two blacksmiths, one baker, four shoemakers, one tailor,
Principal Tavern—* Queenston Hotel.”

QUEENSVILLE.
A small Village two miles above Sharon, in the township of East Gwillimbory;
contains about fifty inhabitants, two stores, one ashery, one blacksmith, one
shoemaker, one pump maker.

QUINTE, BAY OF.

Is, properly speaking, an expansion of the River Trent; at the mouth of whieh
River it commences, It is very irregularly shaped, and forms the northern
boundary of the Prince Edward District; and enters Lake Ontario a little west
ef Amberst Island.  In its course it receives the Moira, Salmon and Napanee
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Rivers, and severs! smuller stroams  There is 8 great deal of fine land on ity
banks, but some parts of iss borders ase rather marshy. The towns of Belleville
and Picton are situated on the bay; the former in the Victoria, and the latter in
the Prince Edward, Disteiet. There is also on the bay, in the township of
Tyendeusga, a seitlemens of Mohawk Endians.

These lﬁdiau&. separated from the Mohawk nation and settled in their present
Joeality about the year ¥784. In 1798 they received from the Crown a grant of
Jand, ecmtaining ebout 92,700 acres; but of this, in 1820, they surrendered
33,280 acres, In exchange for- an annuity of £450. Their estate was then
reduced to 59,400 aeres. From this the surveyor general deducts 14,773 acres
for crown and clergy reserves; viz., 6,858 for the former, and 7,915 for the
latter. In December 1835 they muade a further surrender of 27,857 aecres, in
trust, to be disposed of for their benefit; so that their present possessions do not
exceed 16,800 acres,

The Indians live for the most part in detached farms, scattered over the
reserve. ‘Their present oumber is 383, They have 1,368 acres of land cleared,
and about 500 acres under tillage. Some of them cultivate considerable quan-
tities of land, so much as fifty aeres; but in general the quantity is much less.
There have been some instances of successful ind and tbriftiness in this
community. Ome of their chiefs, named Hill, who died a few years ago, wus
remarkable for his industrious babits, and for a desire to accumulate property.
Besides his own homestead, to the cultivation and improvement of whieh he paid
more than ordinary attention, he became possessed, by porebase, of some of the
farms and improvements of other Indians; and at his death, left them, by will, to
particular members of his family, who are at thig day in full enjoyment of them.

One of his sons, who is catechist to the missionary st the settlement, recently
applied for a loan to enable him to build a wharf and commenee business as a
general trader amoug hig brethren, in partnership with a white man. They
possess stock and agricultural implements eorrespuudin? to their progress in
husbandry. Some of them grow a considerable surplus of grain for sale.

These Indians have long been Christians, probably before tbeir arrival in
Canada. A missionary was first appointed to the settlement in 1810, by the
Society for the Propagation of the Gospel in Foreign Parts: their present mis-
gionary has beeu among them eleven years, and reports that, during that period,
they have made a gradual advance in morals, piety, and industry,

Their chureh having become too small for the congregation, they are now
engaged in the erection of a new and commodious stone edifice, the expense of
which will be defrayed ont of their own funds.

Som of the young men are employed in quarrying and carrying the materials
for this building. . .

They support a schoolmaster out of the produce of certain small rents, which
they reccive and wanage themselves.

RAINHAM.

A Township in the Talbot District; is bounded on the mnortb-east by the
township of Cayuga ; on the west by Walpole; and on the south by Lake Etie
In Rainham 16,724 acres are tuken up, 5.354 of which are nnder cultivation.
This is & small township, e.ntaining good land and some well-cleared farms.
Timber—mostly hardwood. 1t is well watered by numerous small streams
runaing across it.

Population in 841, 716.

Ratable property in the township, £13,838.

RALEIGH. )
A Township in the County of Kent; is bounded on the north by the River
Thames; on the west by Tilbury East; on the south by Lake Erie; and on the
north-east by the township of Harwic. In Raleigh 33,151 acres are taken up,
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of which 5,569 are under cultivation, This township ia improving fast. The
portion of it Iying along the bank of the Thames, as also the neighbourhood
through which the Talbot Road passes, are well settled and cultivated. An
extensive prairie, running parallel with the Thames, at a distance of from half
a mile to a mile, and of an average width of from three to four miles, runs
through nearly the whole length of this township, commencing about three milea
below the town of Chatham; it requires considerable draining. and is at present
psed by the fafmers in the neighbourhood principally for grazing cattle. Near
Erieus, on Talbot Road, js a steam mill. Soil a.d timber generally about the
same a8 Harwich, In Raleigh 4,400 acres of Crown lands are open for sale, 8%
8s. currency per acre; and the Canada Company have about 6,500 acres.

Two branches of the River Thames run through this township; one of which
enters the Thames about three miles below Ciatham; the other joins it in
Tilbury East, about a mile and p half below the town line.

Number of inhahitants, 1,877,

Ratable property in the township, £20,427.

Ezports from Raleigh (at Lake Erie ), for the year 1844,
£

. & d

3,400 bushels Wheat, valued at ,...ccoivvrvisvnsressene, 637 10 0
1,500 do. Indian CorD......ccceivereevsrussvescenenn. 140 12 6
32 hogsheads Tobacco...ccviiisiriiiiirvasisensenens, 192 0 0
50,000 Standard StaVes ...cteceveeviscencensesieenininnnns 962 10 0

Tobacco has been sold from this township at from 6d. to 7d, sterling per pound.

RAMA.

A Township in the Home District; is bounded on the east and north hy un-
surveyed lands; on the west by the Severn River and Lake Gougichin ; and on
the south by the township of Mara. In Rama 616 acres are tuken np; 70 of
which are under cultivation. In the west of the township, near the lake, is a
bed of remarkably fine grey limestone, specimens of which have been sent ta
England for. examination, it having the appearance of that kind of stone used
for lithographic purposes; but it has not yet been sufficiently tested.

In the west of the township, on the lake, is a settlement of Chippewa Indians,
who formerly occupied the lands about Lake Bimcoe, Holland River, and the
unsettied country in the rear of the Home District. In 1830 8ir John Colborne,
then Lieutenant Governor, collceted them on a tract of land on the north-west
shore of Lake Simcoe, of 9,800 acres in extent, where they cleared a road
between that lake and Lake Huaron. They consisted of three tribesof Chip-
pewas, under the chiefs Yellowhead, Aisance and. Snake; and a band of Potta-
wotamies from Drommond Island. Thbeir number was about 500; and they
were placed under the care of Mr. Anderson (lately superintendent at Manitoulin
Islind), under whose superintendence they made rapid progress.” The tribe
under the chief Yellowhead, now settled at Rama, was located at the Narrows
of Lake Simcoe (where the village of Orillia now stands). Aisance’s tribe, at
present residing at Beausoleil, Matchadash Bay, was settled at Coldwater, at
thiel other extremity of the reserve; the distance between them being fourteen
miles.

“ Prior to the year 1830,” says Mr. Anderson in bis report, “these tribes
had become mnch demoralized from their long residence near the white settle-
ments. They were in the constant habit of drinking spirituous liguors to excess:
not one of them could read or write; and tbey scarcely knew anything of
religion. Their hunting gronnds were exhausted; the government presents
were exchanged for whiskey, They were in debt to all the traders, and unable
10 ubtain more credit; and thus were constantly in a state bordering on starva-

tion, ‘Their sufferings and misery were strongly marked in their personal
appearance, und the condition of their wigwams; the latter imperlectly made,
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and very insufficiently supplied with fuel, could scarcely be said to afford shelter
to the ragged and emaciated frames of the elder Indians, whilst the wretchedly
diseased appearance of the children spoke still more forcibly of the;intoxication
and want.of food of the parents. Miserable as was sheir state, it required con-
siderable persuasion to prevail on them to accept. the bounty of government.
By studious attention to their habits and prejudices, they were at length brought
1o acquiesce; and the general result has been, that each Indian with a family
has now-a little farm under cultivation, on which he raises not only potatoes
snd Indian corn, but also wheat, cats, peas, &c.; his wigwam is exchanged for
the log-house’; hunting has in many cases been abandoned altogetber,.and in
none appears, as formerly, to be resorted to as the only means of subsistence.
Habitual intoxication is unknown; the Sabbath is carefully observed; their
religious duties carefally attended to ; and reading and writing, with a moderate
knowlédge of arithmetic, is almost universal among the young people.

“The log dwelling-houses for the Indians, were erected by government.
Frame houses for the superinteudentand the two ehiefs, Aisance and Yellowhead,
with school-houses at Coldwater and the Narrows, were also built at the com-
mencement of the establishment. Since that time a grist mill and a saw mill
bave been:added at Coldwater; and a saw mill is in progress at the Narrows.
About 500 acres of the whole have been cleared and are under cultivation.

In 1836, a year after the date of the above mccount, they surrendered their
reserve to the Gavesmmnent; and the tribe under Yellowhead removed, in 1838,
from the Narrows to Rama; where there appeared a prospect of remaining tor
some years uudisturbed by the white settlers, Here they purchased 1600 acres
of land, at & cost of £300—paid wut of their annuities—and applied themselves
diligently to forming a new ¢learance, and cultivating the land; iu which.they
have made considerable progress. Their number is now 154; their village
contnins twenty honses and four barns, and they have 300 acres of land under
cultivation. [;uring the last two years they have been very industrious, and
have raised large qnantities of produce. In 1841, their crop of potatoes was
sufficiently ubundant to enable them to dispuse of four or five hundred bushels
to the white setders in Orillia and Medonte, without inconvenience to them-
selves.

These Indians are stated to be Wesleyan Methodists.. They have a commo-
dious sehool house, in which Divine serviee is performed by a missionary of
tbat persuasion, A respectable teacher is in charge of the school.

But little of the township is as yet under cultivation, with the exeeption of
that portion in the occupation of the Indians. Nme hundred acres of Crown.
lands are open for sale in the township, at 8s, curreney per acre,

There has been no separate census yet taken of this township, it being in-
elnded in the adjoining township of Mara.

Ratable property in the township, £223,

RAMSAY.

A Township in the Bathurst District ; is bounded on the north-east by the
township of Huntley ; on the north-west by Pakenham ; on the south-west by
Lanark ; and on the soutb-east by Beckwith, In Ramsay 48,182 acres are
taken up, 10,659 of which are under cultivation. The Mississippt River runs
through the north-east of the township. This is the best settled township in
the Bathuret District . mueh of the land is of excellemuaiizy. The timber of
the ceutre and west of the township is .a mixture of hardwood and piue ; in the
east it is principally pine. Large quantities of timber are exported from the
township; 4,100 aeres of Crown lands are open for sale in Ramsay, at 8s, ¢’y
per acre. There are five grist and five saw mills in the township.

Population in 1842, 2,461.

Ratable property in the township, £30,774.
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 RAWDON:

A Township in the Victoria District ; is bounded on the east by the town-
ship of Huntingdon ; on the narth by Marmora. ; on the west by Seymounr; and
on the south by Sidney. In Rawdon 27,583 acres are taken up, 5,818 of which
ave nnder cultivation, The Marmora River passes through the north-west
corner of the township. There is a considerable quantity of wet Jand, in this
township, but some of the land is of excellent guality. There is a grist and
saw mill in the township. One thousand eight hundred and fifty acres of Crown
lands are open for sale in Rawdon, at 8s. ¢’y per acre.

Population in 1842, 1,310, who are principally Canadian, with a few Irish.

Ratable property in the township, £17,102.

RAWDON.
A small Village in the township of Rawdom, sixicen roiles from Belleville ;
contains about 125 inhabitanis, one grist and saw mill, two stores, and four
taverns.

REACH,

A Township in the Home District ; is bounded on the east by the township of
Cartwright, and a small portion of Mariposa ; on the north by Brock ; on the
west by Scott and Uxbridge, and on the south by Whitby. In Reach 24,152
acres are taken up, 4,579 of which are under caltivation. The south-western
extremity of Skugog Lake projects into the east of the township. The town-
ship of Reach contains some excellent land, particularly in its west and centre,
where the timber is principally hardwood ; in that portion of the township
bordering on the lake, the timber is mostly pine. Five hundred acres of Crown
Iands are open for sale in Reach, at 8s. ¢’y per acre. A village, called “ Prince
Alhert,” is situated in the township, on the road leading from Windsor Bay to
Skugog, and there are also five saw mills in the township.

Population in 1842, 1,052,

Ratable property in the township, £14,932.

RENFREW,

A Connty in the Bathnorst District ; comprises the townships of Admaston,
Blithefield, Bagot, Bromley, Horton, Macnah, Pakenham, Pembroke, Ross, Staf-
ford, and Westmeath. -

RICE LAKE.

A Lake gituated between the Otonabee River and the River Trent. [t is one
of a chain of lakes extending from the commencement of the River Trent to the
north-east of the Colborne District. The principal of these lalkes, are “ Balsam
Lake,” which is sitnated in the towuship of Fenelon ; Sturgeou Lake, in Fenelon
snu Verulam; Pigeon Lake, in Harvey; Shemong Lake, situated partly in Emily
and partly between Ennismore and Smith; Shebauticon Lake, between Smithand
Harvey; and Trout Lake between Burleigh and Dominer, and Smith and Douro.
The latter lake discharges itselfinto the Otonabee River, which forms the dividing
boundary between the townships of Monaghan and Otopabee, and then enters
Rice Lake, Sturgeon Lake is also connected by means of the Skugog River with
the Skugog Lake, which is situated in the townships of Cartwright and Reach.
Rice Lake and the Otonabee River are navigable as far as the {own of Peter-
borough, and during the season of navigation, a steamboat rums daily from a
landing place at the south of the lake, to Peterborough. These lakes are noted
for the superior quality of the fish in them, which is taken in large qrantities,
purticularly Mzslelonge. Bass, &c. Considerable business has been carried
on within the last two or three years, on these waters, in the lumber trade—
large quantities of pine and oak timber being carried down the Trent. In their
course, these lakes receive many small streams which are scattered over the
various townships.
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RICEVILLE.
A small Village in the township of Pelham, four miles west from Port Ro-
binson. It contains about 30 inhabitants, two stores, and two taverns.

RICHMOND.

A Village in the south-east corner of the township of Goulbourn, twenty
miles from Bytown, situated on the Goodwood River, which flows through the
village. The houses are much scattered—the village extending over 200 acres
of land, each lot containg one acre. The place was laid out, in 1818, by the
Dake of Richmond, (who died shortly afterwards in the neighbourhood, oi hy-
drophobia), and was originally settled by Highlaud Scotch. It containg about
1200 inhabitants, There are three churches in the village, viz., Episcopal,
Presbyterian, and Catholic.

Poat Office, post three times a-week.

ffmjmiou and Trades—'Ten stores, four taverns, two waggon makers, one
cabinet maker, two blacksmiths, three tailors, four shoemakers.

RICHMOND.
A small Village in the township of Bayham, situated on Talbot Street, twenty
miles epst from St. Thomas. It contains about 80 inhabitants.
Post Office, post three times a week.
Professions and Trades.—One store, one tannery, one tavern, one waggon
maker, one tailor, two blacksmiths, two shoemakers, one cabinet maker.

RICHMOND.

A Township in the Midland District ; is bounded on the east by the township
of Camden ; on the north by Hungerford ; on the west by Tyendenaga ; and
on the south by Fredericksburgh, and the Bay of Quinté. In Richmond
40,434 acreg are taken up, 10,301 of whicb are under enltivation. T'wo small
lakes are situated in the north-west corner of the township ; and the village of
Napanee is in its south-east corner, on the Napanee River. Richmond is weil
settled, and contains some good farms., There is a considerable quaniity of
limestone in the township. Timber principally hardwood, with some pine.
There are three grist and seven saw-mills in the towaship.

Population 2,630.

Ratable property in the township, 38,029,

RICHMOND HILL,

A small Village situated on Yonge Street, sixteen miles north from Toronto,
It containg about 140 inhabitants, Churches two, Episcopal and Methodist, A
stage rune daily from Richmond Hill to Toronto, and back again,

Post office, post every day.

Professions and Trades—Four stores, four taverns, one watchmaker, one
baker, two tinsmiths, two tailors, three shoemakers, one blacksmith.

Principal Taverns.—* Dalby’s" (the stage house), and “ Bingham's,”

RIDEAU CANAL,

The line of water communication between the Ottawa River and Lake On-
tario. It was constructed by the Government as a great military work, Tt
commences at Bytown, where eight handsome locks have been constructed to
overcome the fall in the river of thirty-four feet, and is formed through the bed
of the Rideau River, with two or three deviations to aveid obstractions in its
gourse, till it reacbes the Great Rideau Lake, tbrough which it is carried, and
afterwards through Muod Lake. It is then carried into the bed of the Cataraqui
River, and continues throngh its course till it reaches Kingston, It is 120 miles
in length, and in some parts is very circuitous. The country through which it

s
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‘%asses, bears in general a very different aspect to that traversed by the Welland
anal.

RBut little of the land bordering on the Rideau Canal is under cultivation;
much of it is poor and rocky; and of that fit for cultivation, thousands of acres
have been flooded by the damming of the rivers to form the eanal, and immense
quantities of timber have been consequently destroyed. Great numbers of trees
are still standing, dead, and surrounded by water, and give those portions of the
banks of the canal a decayed, deserted, miserable appearance. As their roots
become decayed, however, they fall into the water, and are gradually carried
off by the stream; and in the course a few years the canal will he frce from
them.

There are several handsome locks on the canal, the machinery of which is
of a very perfect description. There is much picturesque scenery on the canal,
and some that may even be termed romantic. The finest spot on the canal,
after leaving Bytown, is Kingston Mills, about six miles above Kingston.

The villages and settlements on the canal consist of Burritt's Rapids, forty-
one miles from Bytown; Merricksville, forty-seven; Smith's Falls (a flourishing
village in the Bathurst District), sixty ; Oliver’s Ferry (where the road from
Perth to Brockville crosses the Ridean Lake, by means of a ferry-boat),
seventy-two ; the Isthmus, a small settlement, eighty-seven ; Brewer’s Upper
Mills, 109 ; Kingston Mills, 120; Kingston, 126.

Htherto tbe trafic on this canal has been very great; all merchandize
intended for the country sbove Kingston having been sent through it, at a great
expense ; and the greater portion of the passenger traffic frow Montreal to
Kingston also passed through the canal ; for the future, however, the opening
of the St Lawrencc canals will so much shorten the passage, and consequently
lessen the expense, that no Eood.s, except those intended for places along the
canal, or the country above Bytown, will be forwarded by the Rideau ; and of
course passengers will choose the shorter route.

RIDEAU RIVER.—(8ee Rippar Caxav.)

ROCHESTER.

A Township in the county of Essex ; bounded on the north by Lake St.
Clair ; on the west by Belle River ; oo the south by Gosfield ; and on the
east by Tilbury West. In Rochester 12,124 acres are taken up ; of which 922
are under cultivation. Soil fertile ; timber the same as Maidstone. The River
Ruscom, which takes its rise in Gosfield, runs through this Township, and enters
Lake St. Clair, about four miles above Belle River. In Rochester, 1,100 acres
of Crown lands are open for sale, at 8s. ¢’y per acre; and 2,500 acres of land
belong to the Canada Company.

Population 474.

Ratable property in the township, £5,262.

ROMNEY.

A township in the Western District, is bounded on the south-east by Lake
Erie ; on the north by the township of East Tilbury: and on the west by
Mersea. In Romney 7603 acres are talen up, 975 of which are under eultiva-
tion. This is a triangular-shaped township, with its base towards the lake ; the
land in it is of excellent quality, and the timber consists of the best kinds of
hardwood—maple, oak, beech, elm, hickory, black walnnt, &e., with a small
quantity of cedar on the border of the lake. Romney is as yet but little settled,
and in 1845 it only contained 257 inhabitants.

Ratable property in the township £3,532.

N
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ROND' EAU, POINT AUX PINS, or LANDGUARD.

A Harbour on Lake Erie, sixty-five miles below the head of the lake, A cape
projects, which incloses a natural basin of sbout 6000 acres in extent, and with
2 depth of from ten to eleven feet, The communieation between the basin and
the lake is across a sand-bank of about forty yards in breadth, and only o few
feet above the level of the water. The government has commenced improving
the harbour, by cutting a channel through the bank, running ouwt piers, &c.
‘When completed, it will be a work of great importance to vessels navigating the
lake, aud also as a shipping-place to the surronnding country—it being fourteen
miles from Chatham, in the County of Kent, and an excellent road having lately
been completed between the two places.

ROSS,

A Township in the Bathnrst District; is bounded on the north-east by the
Ottawn River; on the north-west by Westmeath; on the south-west by Bromley;
and o the south-east by Horton. In Ross 6,468 acres are taken up, 615 of
which are under cultivation. This township has lately been divided, and the
township of Bromley separated from it. Ross is at present but little gettled, and
29,200 acres of Crown lands are open for sale in it, There are two saw mills in
the township,

Population in 1842, 168.

Ratable property in the township, £2,845.

ROUGE RIVER.
A small River, which takes its rise in the township of Whitchnreh, and flows
through Markham and Scarborough; in which Iatter township it enters Loke
Ontario. It is a good mill stream, and there is some excellent timber on its

banks,

ROXBOROUGH.

A Townsbip in the Eastern District; is bounded on the north-east by the
reserve of the St, Regis Indians; on the noyth-west, by Plantagenet and a small
portion of Cambridge; on the south-west by Finch: and on the south-east by
Cornwall. In Roxborough 20,118 acres are taken up, 2,411 of which are under
cultivation. This township 18 pretty well settled, and contains good land.
Timber—a mixture of pine and hardwood. Three hundred and fifty acres of
Crown lands are open for sale in Roxborough, pt 8s. currency per acre. There
are one grist and two saw mills in the township.

Population in 1842, 1,107; who are principally Scotch and Irish.

Ratable property in the township, £9,992.

RUSCOM RIVER.
Take its rise in the township of Gosfieid, aud runs through the township of
Rochester, within from two to three miles of its eastern border, till it enters Lake
8t. Clair. It is several feet deep for some miles before it enters the lake.

RUSSELL.

A Township in the Ottawa District; is bounded on the east by the township
of Cambridge; on the north-west by Cumberland; on the south-west by Osgoode;
and on the south-east by Winchester and Finch. In Russell 4,936 acres are
taken up, 504 of which are under eultivatiou. Several branches of the Petite
Nation River are spread over the township, on the banks of which there is a
great deal of pine timber. Russell is as vet but little settled; snd 19,335 acres
of Crown lands are open for sale in it, ot 8s, currency per acre, There are one
grist and three saw inills in the township.

Population in 1842, 196,

Ratable property in the township, £2,390.
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RUSSELL.
A County m the Ottawa District; comprises the townships of Clarence,
Cumberland, Cambridge and Russell, It returns a member to the House of
Assembly.

SABLES, RIVIERE AUX,

A River, different branches of which take their rise in the townships of Bid-
dulph, Stephen, Usborne and London. Tt flows along the east and south border
of the township of Williams, till it reaches its south-west corner, when it makes
a bend and runs to the north, forming the western boundary of the townships of
Williams and McGillivray, and sepn.rahng them from Bosanquet at the northern
extremity of the latter township it makes a curve, and runs south, parallel with
Lake Huron, and at an average distance of half a mile from it, for about ten
miiles, when it enters the lake, about five miles above Keitle Point. As its
name imports, its bed and banks are very sandy. A ridge of sand hills separates
it from Lake Huron. A saw mill was cstablished at the north bend of the river
soon after the first settlemeut of the Huron District, and has been in operation
ever since,

SALTFLEET.

A Township in the Gore District; is hounded on the east by the township of
Grimsby; on the north by Lake Ontario and Burlington Bay; on the west by
Barion; and on the south by Binbrook and Caistor, In Saltfieet 23,734 acres
are mken up, 11,112 of which are under cultivation. This township is watered
by Stoney Creek, and two or three other small streams: It contains a large
proportion of excellent land, and many old-settled and well-caltivated farms,
The village of Stoney Creek is situated on the road from Hamilton to St. Catha-
rines, aud Stoney Creek flows throagh it. There are one grist and six saw
mills in the township.

Population in 1841, —,

Rartable property in the township, £42,341.

SANDWICH,

The District Town of the Western Distriet, beautifully situated on the Detroit
River, about two miles below Detroit, and nine miles below Lake St, Clair. The
town is neatly laid out; and, being an old settiement, with fiue old orchards, aud
well kept flower gar dens has very much the appearance of an English eountry
town, Iti is built on a gravell\' soil, on a gentl y slopmg bank, a short distance
from the river, which is here about a mile ‘wide. This is one of the oldest set-
tlements in Canada. Colonel Prince, the member for the county, has a fine
farm, in a highly improved state, a short distance out of town. There are in
Sandwich an Episcopal church and a Methodist chapel. A newspaper is pub-
lished here—the Western Standard. Here are the jail and court house for the
district. Sandwich has a cricket club.

The following Govermment and Distriet Offices are kept in Sandwieh: Clerk
of Peace, Treasurer of District, Sheviff of do.. Judge of Surrogate Court, Regis-
trar of do., Registrar of County of Essex, [nspector of Licenses, Clerk of Dis-
triet Conrt, C lerk of Mumclpal Couneil, Anditors of Municipal Couneil.

Sandwich had barracks during the rebellion; but they have since beem
disposed of, and converted to private purposes.

Population about 450,

List of Professions and Trades.—Two physicians and surgeons, six lawyers,
four surveyors, one steam grist miil and cardluu; machine, two grist windmills,
one brewenr one tannery, one ashiery, six stores, one auctioneer, three tailors,
two saddlers. six blacksmiths, one printing office, one gunsmith, two waggon
makers, on¢ hatter, one baker, one school, twelve taverns.

Principal Tavern—the “ Western Hotel.”

N2
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SANDWICH.

The porth-western township of the County of Essex; bounded on the north
and west by Lake Bt. Clair and the Detroit River; on the south by the town.
ships of Anderden and Colchester; and ou the east by the township of Maid~
stone. In Sandwich 51,476 ncres are taken up, of which 10,797 are under
cultivation. It is well watered, having Little River at the north-east corner, on
which is a saw mill; the Riviere aux Peches on the east; Turkey Creek running
through the centre, ou which is a grist mill; and the River Camard on the
south, The soil is rich and fertile. This is one of the oldest settled portions of
Canada; most of the inhabitants being French Canadians, and holding their
lands under French grants. The orchards on the banks of the river are noted
for their magnificeut pear trees, some of which are of great size. A large por-
tion of the inhabitants tr{:ke their living by raising poultry, &c., for the supply
of the city of Detroit. There are in the township of Sandwich a Catholic and
an Episcopal church; &nd nine windmills,

The Canada Company possess 3,200 acres in the township.

Population in 1844, 3,624,

Ratable property in the township, £55,569,

SANTA CRUZ
A small Settlement in the township of Osnabruck, situated on the St. Law-
rence, fifteen miles from Cornwall. It contains two churches—Episcopal and
Presbyterian; and one tavern.

i SARNIA, PORT.

A Village in the township of Sarnia, handsomely situated on the St. Clair
River, op]%gaite the Americdn village Port Huron, near the entrance to Lake
Huron. This is the last place on the Canadian side at which the American
steamers touch, on their route to the upper lakes. The village was laid out by
private individuals in the year 1833, and has increased rapidly, and must in time
hecome a place of great importance. An excellent road is formed from this
place to the town of London ; and stages run from Port Sarnia to London three
times a week. 'The American steamboats ** Hercules,” “ Samson,” “ Princeton,”
and “St. Louis,” stop regularly on their passages to and from Buffalo and
Chicago; and the “ Huron” and “Red Jacket” leave here every morning
alternately for Detroit. Several other American boats call occasionally, During
the last season the British steamer “ Gore,” from Windsor to Goderich and
Gloster Bay, also called here regularly. There is an excellent fishery just
abave the village, on the banks of Point Edward; and upwards of 1000 barrels
of fish are generally exported annually,

Port Sarnia containg five churches erd chapels; viz, Episcopal, Catholic,
Presbyterian, Methodist and Congre‘%ational.

Five schooners are awned here. There is a saw mill on the river worked by
means of a cahal three miles and a half in length, fed by the Riviere aux Perches;
and a steam grist mill and foundry have recently been erected. Port Sarnia is
a port of entry, and has a resident collector of customs,

Post Office, post three times a week.

Population sbout 420.

Professions and Trades.—One physician and surgeon, one druggist, two tan-
neries, one foundry, one steam grist mill, one water saw mill, eight stoves, one
saddler, one timsmiith, three blacksmiths, one wheelwright, two taverns, two
chair makerg, one cabinet maker, three tailors, two bakers, one cooper, three
shoemakers, three schools, one of whicl is for Indians.

Principal Tavern, the “ Sarnia Exchange.”

Agent for Steamboats— George Durand.

Port Sarnia is sixty-one miles from London, seventy miles from Detroit,
about sixty-five miles from Goderich, and sixty miles from Chatham. A new
road is about being opened from Port Sarnia to the River Sydenham.

N —————
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Stage fare to London, $3. Steamboat fare to Detroit, $13.
List of Ezports from Port Sarria for the year 1844,

Quantity. Description. Value when shipped.
£ s d
400 barrels Potagh.....cicceieinrservrinsioncaniiiaes 2000 0 0
10 do.  Beef....iciivvriiiminiieniniiniinnnen. 17 10 0
1000 do.  Fish.ii,vicecrernncerinsiiniieinina., 1250 0 0
12 do.  Sugar......ccccvccmermemnenn. 24 0 0
120,000 feet LUmber s ivescvsrimsenssrsccinenee. 180 0 0
2,800 Standard Staves... PP - § S [V
300 bushels Wheat......0ve.nn e iee e ia s 56 &5 0

Total value of Exports from Port Sarnif.......c.es.. £3559 5

<

SARNIA.

A Township in the County of Kent; is bounded on the north by Lake Huron;
on the west by the River Bt Clair; on the south hy the township of Moore;
and on the east by Plympton. Tn Sarnin 10,540 acres are taken up, of which
1,366 are under cultivation. Ten thousand acres of the finest land in the town-
ghip, reaching from Froomefield to Port Sarnia, are reserved for the Indians,
who nomber about 700, They farm a little, but live principally by hunting and
fishing. They have a Methodist chapel and school. This township iz well
watered ; the Riviere aux Percbes, which takes its rise in Enniskillen, runs
through the township till it renches Lake Waywanosh, which it enters at its
western side, about 8ix miles from Port Sarnia, and emerges again at its south-
east corner, and enters Lake Huron about eleven miles above Port Samia. Lake
Waywanosh, the nearest point of which is half a mile from Lake Huron, con-
tains about 2000 acres; average depth from six to eight feet; and is snrrounded
by prairie land. Lake Chipican, a small lake about six acres in extent, is sepa~
rated from [.ake Huron hy a ridge of high land: it is two miles north from Port
Sarnia. A ridge of sandy land, forming what are called ** oak ridges,” about
a mile in width, extends from Port Sarnia, along the shore of Lake Huron, to
nearly the extremity of the township: the back of the towuship is good land. A
point of land, called Point Edward, containing about 1000 acres, which is a mili-
tary reserve, runs into the St. Clair River just nbove Port Sarnia, at the entrance
of Lake Huron, This is said by the old inhabitants to have heen formerly an
island; but the north portion of the channel on the east side of it has become
filled np; thus connecting it with the main land, and forming a fine bay, shel-
tered on the north, east and west.

Population (exclusive of Indians) 610.

Ratable property in the township, £8,472,

SAUGEEN.

A Settlement of Chippewa Indians, near the mouth of the Saugeen River, on
Lake Huron. It was from these Indians, and their brethren sinee settled at
Owen’s Sound, that 8ir F. Head, in 1836, ohtained a surrenger of that vast tract
of land lyiug north of the London and Gore Districts, and between the Home
Distriet and Lake Huron, containing about 1,600,000 acres. He reserved at
the same time for the Indians, the extensive peninsula lying between Lake
Huron and the Georgian Bay, north of Owen's Sound, and supposed to contain
about 450,000 acres.

Little was known of these Indians by the Government before that period, as
their village was remote from any white settlement; but they appear to have
been settled and converted about the year 1831. In 1837, their missionary gave
the following description of their condition:—* This mission is beantifully situ-
ated; fine flats, containing from two hundred to three hundred acres, extend
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along the river, where the Indians cut sufficient hay for their oxen and cows,
and grow excellent corn. There are some good log houses, and several com-
fortahle bark shanties. On the hill, in rear of the flats, are several fine ficlds of
corn and potatoes. The Indians at this station have been remarkable for their
stedfastness since they embraced Christianity. They appear to he a happy
people: much attached to their missionaries, teachahle, and give solid proofs
that they are progressing in civilization.”

" The chief superintendent, however, who visited them in the same year,
reported that they appeared very poor and miserable, trusting very much to
hunting and fishing for their support. The fishing is very productive, and has
attracted the notice of the white people, who annoy the Indians by encroaching
n what they consider their exclusive right, and on which they rely much for
orovisions. They hunt in the traet belonging to the Canada Company, and on
phe unoccupied lands to the south and east of Saugeen river.

This settlement does not appear to have been visited by any officer of the
tGovernment since 1837; and so little is it known, that it is supposed to have
been incorrectly laid down on the map by the extent of half a degree. The
chief superintendent reports, that he cannot give an accurate account of it. He
states that the greater number of Indians lived for a long while in very small
log houses, and in houses made of elm bark. The present missionary slates
that there are only 8ix log houses, and that the rest are bark hnts or wigwams,
The village is situated abont two miles up the Saugeen River. From the report
of the chief superintendent it appears that the Indians contemplated abandoning
this situation for one nearer the mouth of the river; but they have since deter-
mined to remain in their old locality; and have this year built by contract six
excellent houses.

The mouth of the Saugeen River forms the best, and almaost the only port of
refuge on the eastern shore of Lake Huron; henee it is likely to beeome a place
of considersble resort; and it is in contemplation to carry two roads in different
directions throngh the Saugeen traet to tJ];is point. The rumour of this inten-

tion was lately a sonrce of much inquietude among the Indians, as they hecame

apprehensive of being obliged to quit their settlement, and surrender their im-
provements, This apprehension, however, has been removed, and they are now
looking forward to the erection of a saw mill, and to the supplymg the schooners,
tauching at the port, with lumber and fish,

A missionary of the Wesleyan Methodists has long resided among them.
Their present missionary is an Indian, brought up at the Rice Lake Mission,
and at a school in the United States. They have a chapel which serves as a
school-house, and a missiou house, which were built by the Wesleyan Methodist
Bociety, about the year 1831. They have also had a schoolmaster for some
time past. Almost all the tribe have embraced Christianity.

These Indians are entitled to share in the annuity of £1250, recently granted
in exchange for the Saugeen territory, surrendered to Sir F. Head in 1837.

SAUGEEN RIVER.

Takes its rise in the Indian territory, north of the Huron Tract, and after
running nearly s west course, enters Lake Huron sbout sixty miles north of
Goderich, At the mouth of the river is a pretty good harbour, allowing the
entrance of vessels drawing eight feet of water; but the passage is difficult of
entrance.

SAUGEEN, GEGETO, on FISHING ISLANDS,

A group of Islands, fifteen or twenty in number, lying about seventy-eight
miles above Goderich, and eighteen above the Sangeen River. They are not
inhabited; but a large quantity of fish is annuplly taken on their banks. About
1000 barrels are generally exported; but any guantity might be talken, there
being no limit to the supply. As much as from two to three hundred barrels of
fish have been taken at a single haul of the seine.

Al



B —

e P

S

s

e E s
T A L A

e
R PRI

L
LA L L il

167

SCARBOROUGH.

A Township in the Home Distriet; it hounded on the east by the township
of Pickering; on the north by Markham; on the west by York; and on the
south by Lake Ontario. In Scarborough 38,709 ucres are taken up, 16,083 of
which are under cultivation. The River Don runs through the west of the
township, and the River Rouge through the east. The land bordering on the
lake is mostly poor, and the timber principally pine; iu the rear of the townshi
the land improves, and the timber is mostly hardwpod. Scal:burough is well
settled, and contains many good farms: a large portion of wbich are let to the
oceupants; the average rent being $2 per acre. There are one grist and
eighteen saw mills in the township, and large quantities of sawed lumber are
exported. i .

E‘opu]micn in 1842, 2750; who are principally English, Irish, and Scotch
emigrants.

Ratable property in the township, £42,181.

SCOTLAND. )
A Village in the sonth-west of the township of Oakland, It eontains about
150 inhabitants.
Professions and Trades—Two stores, two taverns, one tannery, one saddler,
one chair maker, one cabinet maker, one blacksmith. There is a carding
machine and fulling mill near the village.

SCOTT.

A Township in the Home District; is bounded on the east by the townships
of Reach and Brock ; on the north hy Georgina; on the west by East Gwillim-
bury; and on the soutb by Uxhridge. In Scott 5078 acres are taken up, 450
of which are under cultivation. The township is well watered by numerous
small streams running throngh it. It is as yet but little settled. Six hundred
acres of Crown lands are open for sale in Scott, at 85. currency per acre

For population of the township, see UXBRIDGE.

Ratable property in the township, £2063.

SELBORNE, or TALBOT MILLS

A Village in the townships of Yarmoutb and Sonthwold, situated on Kettle
Creek, close to the plank road—one mile and half from Port Stanley.

Professions and Trades,—One grist mill, two distilleries, one foundry, two
physieians and surgeons, one druggist, two stores, two taverns, two blackemiths,
one waggon maker, one shoemaker, one tailor.

SENECA.

A Township in the Gore District, is bonnded on the east by the townsbip of
Canboro’; on the north-east by Caistor, Binbrook, and Glanford; on the north-~
west by Onondaga; on the south-west by the Grand River; and on the south-
east by the township of Cayuga, In Seneca 6182 acres are taken up, 3063 of
which are under cultivation. There is a large proportion of good land in the
township: it is mostly rolling; and the timber principally hardwood, with a
smal] quantity of pine intermixed. There is abundance of fine large white-oak
within convenient distances of the river. 'The villages of Caledonia, Sencea,
York, and Indiana are in the townsbip, all situated on the Grand River. There
are four grist and eleven saw mills in the township; and large quantities of sawn
lumber are exported from it.

Population in 1841, 831.

Ratable property in the township, £16,316,
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SENECA.

A flourishing Village in the township of Seneca, sitnated on the Grand River,
one mile below Caledonia. Tt contains about 140 inhabitants. There is a
Methodiet chareh in the village.

Professions and Trades.—QOne grist mill (four run of stones), one saw mill,
carding machine and cloth factery, planing machine, chair factory, one physi-
cian and snrgeon, two stores, three taverns, one turner, one eabinet maker, three
shoemsakers, three hlacksmiths, one tailor,

SE¥ERN RIVER.

A River which receives the waters of Lake Simcoe and Lake Gougichin, and’
conveys them to the Georgian Bay. There is some heautiful scenery on the
river; hut it is not navigable on account of the falls and rapids in it. Between
Lake Gougichin and Gloucester Bay, the falls are seven in number.

SEYMOUR.

A Township in the Neweastle Distriet; is bounded on the east by the town-
ship of Rowdon; on the north hy Belmont ; on the west hy Percy and Aspho-
del'; and on the sonth hy Murray. In Seymour 31,850 mcres are taken up,
6323 of which are under cultivation.,, The River Trent enters the township at
its north -west corner-—runs northward for a short distance, then makes a enrve
and follows a south-esst course till near the eentre of the township, where it
receives the Marmora River; it then mns south-west to near the south-west
corner of the township, where it makes another hend, and runs along the town-
line to the south-east corner of the township, where it enters Sydney. Thereis
an island, called “ Wilson's Island,” in the river; part of whieh is in Seymour,
part in Murray, and part in Sidney. There are also two smaller islands, one
of which is in the south-east corner, and the other in the nerth of the towuship.
There is much wet Jand in the township. The timber is a mixture of pine and
hardwood. There are two grist and six saw mills in the township.

Popnlation in 1842, 1899.

Ratable property in the township; £18,669.

SHANNONVILLE.

A small Village in the township of Tyendenaga, situated on the Kingston
road, about nine miles east from RBellevillee Tbe Salmon River runs through
the village. It comtains about 50 inbabitants, one store, two taverns, one black-
gmith,

SHARON, or DAVIDTOWN,

A Village in the township of East Gwillimbury. three miles and a half from
the Holland Landing, and about thirty-five from Toronto. It was first settled
in the ycar 1800, by a Mr. David Wilson, from the state of New York; who,
with a few followers, about six in nurber, seceded from the Society of Friends,
and established a seet of his own. These have been since known as * David-
ites.,” They bave at great expense, and much labour, erected two large huoild-
ings of # most singular appearance, which strike the eve of the traveller at a
considernble distance. The first of these, designed to be an imitation of the
ancient Jewish temple, is a building, the ground floor of which is sixty feet
square, and twenty-four feet high. Above this is a gallery, for musical per-
formuances; and above this again, a kind of tower or steeple. The whole he:;%lt
of the building is sixty-five feet. In the interior is a large space enclosed hy
twelve pillars, on eaeh of which is inscrihed in gold letters, the name of one of
the Apostles. Within these again, are [our others, inscribed in like manner
with the words, *“ Hope,”  Faith,” “ Charity,” *“Love.” In tbe centre of the
bailding, surrounded by these pillars, is a kind of cabinet, ehout five feet square,
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and seven feet high, made of oak, of elahorate workmanship; in shape, some-
thing resembling one story of a Chinese P ; at the four corners and on
the top of which are placed brass lamps. each side of the cabinet are
four windows. The interior is lined with black cloth, trimmed with crimson,
In the centre is a kind of table covered with black cloth, with crimson hangings,
supporting a Bible. The temple was built by the congregation, who spent seven

ears ahout the work; working, of course, only ut intervals, It was completed
m the year 1832. Every year, on the first Friday eveniug in September, the
temple 8 brilliantly illuminated. A meeting is held here monthly for the pur~

ose of making collections for the poor. The members subscribe altogether

8 per month. Since the completion of the temple, $1500 have been contri~
buted; 600 of which have been expended.

The second building & the meeting house; which measures 100 feet by 50.
It is surrounded on the outside by rows of pillars. The ground floor is twenty
feet high, the ceiling is arched, and is supported by three rows of pillars, on
which are inseribed in letters of gold, the names---Daniel, Ezekiel, Jeremiah,.
Moses, Jacob, Abraham, Solomon, David (witb a barp), Judah, Reuben, Samuel,
Levi, Isaae, Benjamin, Aaron, Joseph, and “ Our Lord is one God.” There is
also a tolerable organ. Above the meeting-house is a school-room, fifty by
twenty-one feet. 'The building was completed in 1842, It was built by sub-~
scription, and cost about $2500. The members meet every Sunday for religious
service; and iwice a-year, viz., on the first Saturdays in June and September,
for a fenst or communion, at which time all comers are welcomed. The con-
gregation, ineluding children, nuinber about 200,

Population of Sbaron, about 150.

Post Office, post twiee a-week.

Professions and Trades—One tannery, two stores, one saddler, two black-
smiths, one tavern, one wheelwright, one tailor, one tinsmith, one weaver,

SHEFFIELD.

A Township in the Midland District; is bounded on the east by Sterrington;
on the north by Kaladar and Kennebec; on the west by Hungerford; and on
the south by Camden. In Sheffield 19,880 acres are taken up, 3869 of which
are under eultivatien. There are two lakes in the south-west of the township,
called “ Beaver Lake,” and “ White Lake;” a lake in the north-east of the
township, called * Long Lake,” and several smaller lakes scattered over the
township—the whole u% which are connected together by small streams. The
land in Sbeflield varies in quality, some parts being good, and others of poor
quality. ‘Timber—a mixture of pine and hardwood. There is ome grist mill
and one saw mill in the township.

Population in 1842, 1334.

Ratable property in the township, £11,215.

SHEMONG LAKE.—(See Rice LAgE.)

SHEBAUTICON LAKE. -(8ee RicE LAKE.)

SHERBROOKE.

A Township in the Niagara District ; is bonnded on the north-east and north
by the township of Maulton ; on the west by the Grand River ; and on the south
and south-east by Lake Erie. In Sherbrooke 3,447 acres are taken up, 1,474 of
which are under cultivation. This is a very small township, and it 1s but little
settled ; there is a marsh in the north-east of it, on the borders of the Grand
River.

Population of Sherbrooke in 1841, 198,

Ratable property in the township, £3,84L
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SHERBROOKE, SOUTH,

A Township, in the Bathurst District ; ie bounded on the north-east by the
township of Bathurst; on the north-west by North Sherbrooke ; on the west
by Oso, and on the south-east by North Crosby. In South Sherbrooke 5,119
acres are taken up, 467 of which are under cultivation. The north and middle
branches of the Mississippi River run through the north of the township; and
a chain of lakes, connected together by the River Tay, streteh along the south-
east border of the township. Socuth Sherbrooke is ag yet but little settled. The
base of the township is principally granite. In South Sherbrooke 19,800 acres
of Crown lands are open for sale, at 8s ¢’y per acre.

Population in 1842, 253.

Ratable property in the township, £2,278.

SHERBROOKE, NORTH.

A Township in the Bathurst District ; is bounded on the north-east by the
township of Dalhousie ; on the north-west by Levant ; on the.west hy Palmer-
ston and Oso ; and on the south-east by South Sherbrooke. In North Sher-
brooke 8,305 acres are taken up, 1,516 of which are nnder cultivation. A
branch of the Mississippi River runs across the township, a little north of the
centre.  The base of the township is princiPﬂl]y tanite. North Sherbrooke is
as yet but little settled, and 4,600 acres of Crown lands are open for sale in i,
at 8s. ¢'y per acre.

Population in 1842, 350,

Ratable property in the township, £3,985,

SIDNEY.

A Township in the Vietoria District ; is bounded on the east by tbe town-
ship of Thurlow ; on the north by Rawdon; on the west by Murray ; and on
the south by the Bay of Quinté. In Sidney 52,604 acres are taken up, 19,837
of which are under cultivation. The River Trent pasaes through the north-west
of the township. Sidney is well settled, principally by U. E. Loyalists and! their
descendants, who have very good farms. There are four grist, aud eight saw
mills in the township. One hundred and fifty acres of Crown lands are open for
sale in Sidney, at 83, e’y per acre.

Population in 1842, 3,363,

Ratable property in the township, 54,863.

SIMCOE.

The District Town of the Talbot District, situated in the north-west corner
of the townsbip of Woodhouse, twenty-four miles from Brantford. Simcoe i
well situated, in the midst of a fine, old-settled conntry, but being away from any
public road, and baving no regular means of communication with any place
-except Brantford, it is kept rather in the back-ground. There is a stone jail
and court-house. Churches and chapels three: viz., Methodist, Baptist, and
Congregationalist. A weekly newspaper is published here, the ¢ Long Point
Advocate.”

Population about 1,400,

Post office, pust every day.

The following Government and Distriet Offices are kept in Simcoe : Judge of
District Conrt, Sheriff, Clerk of Peace, Inspector of Licenses, Crown Lands
Agent, District Clerk, Treasurer, Clerk of District Court, Deputy Clerk of
Crown, Superiatendent of Schools.

Professions and Trades—Two grist-mills, two saw do,, one brewery, two
distilleries, one foundry, one ashery, one carding machine and fulling mill,
three pbysicians and surgeons, two lawyers, one threshing machine maker, one
SUrveyor, nine stores, six taverns, two druggists, six blackamiths, one watch-

s
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maker, three cabinet-makers, two saddlers, six tailors, one chair-maker, one
turner, one livery stable, one temperance house, two butchers, one cooper, one
grocery, one gunsmith, four shoemakers, one bank ageney—* Gore.”

SIMCOE DISTRICT. .

Consists of the county of Simcoe, which comprises the townships of Adjala,
Artemisia, Collingwood, Essa, Flos, West Gwillimbury, Innisfil, Medonte,
Matchadash, Mulmur, Mono, Nottawasaga, Ospry, Oro, Orillia, St. Vincent,
Sunnidale, Tay. Tiny, Tecumseth, Tossorontio ; Euphrasia and Vespra. It
is bounded on the east by the Home District, Lake Simcoe, Loke Gougichin,
and the Severn River ; on the north by the Severn River and the various bays
of the Georgian Bay ; on the west hy the Wellington District ; and on the
south by the Home District. It is watered by the Nottawasaga River, and the
Holland and Coldwater Rivers, besides numerous small streams seattered over
it. This district formed a portion of the Home District until the year 1843 ;
when the county of Simcoe was declared a separate district. Tt contains a
large portion of very excellent land, the settlement of which has been hitherto
much retarded by the want of good roads ; some of the farmers in the back
townships finding it almost impossible to get out of the hush, except during
sleighing time. Many of the towoships are newly surveyed, and have not Iong
been opened for sale. The townships of West Gwithmbury and Tecumset
are the best settled iu the district ; the inhabitants principaily Irish and Scotch.
Next to these are the townships or Oro, Innisfil, and Mouo. There are many
good farms above Barrie, on the road leading from Barrie to Penetanguishine ;
near the latter place tbe land is mostly stony and sandy, and the timber princi-
pally pine. There is excellent land in Orillia, which township is now beginning
to settle np. Good roads into the interior of the district are much wanted to
promote the settlement of the land,

Barrie, the district town, is beautifully sitnated on Kempenfeldt Bay, and
there are besides in the district the villages of Bradford, Bond Head, and
Middleton in West Gwillimbury; Penctangnishine in Tiny ; Orillia in Orillia;
and Coldwater in Medoute ; besides a settlement called * Hurontario,” in St
Vincent, on the Nottawasaga Bay. Two hnndred and one thousand eight
hnndred and seventy-two acres of Crown lands are open for sale in the Simcoe
District, at 8s, ¢’y per aere, to purehase any of which application must he made
to the Crown Lands Agent at Barrie.

Population in 1842, 12,592, since when it has probably inereased one-fifth.

The following abstract from the assessment rolls, will show the rate of
increase and improvement in the distriet :

0 |
No. of MILLS. Oxen 4 }'ears' Horped Cattle | Amount of

Date. Acres Milch Cows,| old, and from 2 to 4 Ratable

Cultivated.| — |~ upwards. years old, Property.

Grist, | Saw.
1842 | 44,639 10 23 4,126 2166 2424 143,048
1843 46,354 11 22 4,282 2120 2318 145,766
1844 51,681 12 29 4,588 2516 2516 157,791
| i

Government and District Officers in the Simcoe District.
District Judge ........eeeiriirinirieienin..  James R, Gowan... Barrie.
Judge of Surrogate Conrt , v Do, Do.
Sheriff .......ccccciivemniniinnininian Be W Smith ...... Do,
Clerk of Peace v.uuvvvevreersnrenisesnninness W. B MeVity,..... Do,
Treasurer ... .cooveisssserssrsserssssnnneenss  Edmund Lally...... Do,
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Registrar .......cccareceannrsssaneenionnsnnns  George Lount...... W.Gwillimb
Inspector of Licenses ...cuscieisaeaaies John Moberly ...... Barrie. e
Crown Lands Agent ....eescesmecisscaise. John Alexander... Do.
Buperintendent of Sehools ............... Rev. 8, B. Ardagh. Do,
Distriet Clerk ........cceaescssssnsseacaess  John MeWatt ...... Do.
Clerk of District Court ..aeeccascnsseasse 9. L0 iniirienns. Do,
Deputy Clerk of Crown .ueccceesmmsnnncee  H. H. Gowan ...... De.
Collector of Customs . sessmsssrerereses W, SiMpson.......,. Penetanguishine,
Warden ........oveeivmisncnamansssesmnensies INODE
COTODET ..cvvviinniminsanssanssnsss tmssssrannas  1NODIE

Number of Common Schools in operation in the District.—West Gwillimbury,
seventeen ; Medonte, seven ; Tecumseth, seventeen; Mono, ten ; Adjala,
eight ; Innisfl, eight; Essa, six; Vespra, two; Mulmur, two ; Oro,ten ; Tiny,
one ; Sunuidale one ; Flos, 3; Orillia, one ; Nottawasaga, three, Total, 96,

SIMCOE LAKE.

A Lake sitnated partly in the Home and partly in the Simecoe Districts, It
commences about thirty-five miles north from Toronto, and is in length nearly
thirty-miles, #nd in its” widest part about eighteen. It is said to be about 170
feet above Lake Huron, into which it discharges itself, through Lake Gongichin,
the Severn River, and the Georgian Bay. The scenery of .'Enke Simcoe 1s very
picturesque, its shores heing very much indented with bays, some of which are
of considerable extent. A beautiful bay, called * Kempenfeldt Bay,” runs
into the land on the west side of the lake; it is aboul ten miles long, and
from two to three miles wide. Barrie, the district town of the Simecoe Distriet,
is situated on its north-western extremity, Cook’s Bay, the southern extremity
of the Iake, is about eight miles long, and from two and a half to four miles.
broad; it receives the Holland River. There are many islands in Lake Sinjcoe,
and some of them are of large size, containing many acres; only one of them
(8nake Island) is inhabited, and that by Indiaos.

The banks of the lake are gemerally clothed with wood down to the water’s
edge, consequently there is no beacl. Some portions of the shores of the lake
are marshy; a large marsh, bordered by tamarac swamp, borders Cook’s Bay,
and extends for some miles along the course of the Holland River. The land
on the banks of the lake is mostly light, and the timber principally pine ; in
some parts, however, the land is of excellent quality, and timbered with hard
wood to the edge of the lake. The hunks of the lake and the bays are generally
rather low, few parts being more than from twenty to thirty feet high, On
those portions of the banks in the township of North Gwillimhury, and also in
a portion of the south of Georgina, there are some very prettily situated farms,
whieh are well cultivated; the banks in Thorah are not so much settled, and
those of Mara and Rama still less so; in the latter township is an Indian settle-
ment on the hanks of the lake. The banks in Oro and Vespra are partially
settled, but not mneh; on the Innisfil side, they are clothed with wood to the
water’s edge,

At the “ Narvows,” which is a narrow channel connecting Lake Simeoe with
Lake Gougicliin, 8 handsome bridge has been constructed. The scenery at the
Narrows would be very attractive, were it not unfortuuately a little disfigured
by a small quautity of marsh. A steamboat bas plied on this lake for about
eleven or twelve years; the present oue, the “ Beaver,” (which was launched in
1844). which is the third, is also the largest and hest that has been built; she
is a fine boat aud bas excetlent accommodatious. The Beaver makes regnlar
trips vound the lake, starting every second day from a landing place on the east
branch of the Holland River, and running to Orillia, taking the @ast and west
sides of the lake alternately, and veturning by the opposite course. It lies over
every night at Onllia, except Saturday, when it returns to the Holland River,
and lLies there till Monday morning,
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The water in some paris of the lake is of considerable depth, and it is generally
frozen completely over in the winter, 8o as to be passable with safety for sleighs;
when the ice breaks up in the spring, it sinks at once to the bottom, Those
accustomed to the ice generally know how long it is safe to venture on it, and
accidents seldom happen.

About four years since, a settler on the lake was engaged to take a sleigh
load of goods to thé opposite side; the winter was breaking up, and tbe ice on
the lake was becoming honey-comnbed underneath, a sure sign that it would not
last much longer, and be knew tbat if he deferred his journey for a day or two
there would be no chance of getiing his load across till the steamboat com-
menced running. He therefore set off with his team in the night, took his load
across in safety, and started on his return home just as the sun began to rise;
he knew by the appearance of the ice, and from the direction of the wind, that
the ice would not be safe many hours longer, he therefore put his horses to a
ga.ll:}:, and kept them at that.pace the whole way home (12 miles); he crossed
n safety, and éwo hours after he landed there was not a vestige of ice to be seen
on the lake, Notwithstanding the temerity of those accustomed to the ice, it is
very seldom that any serious accident, such as loss of life, occurs; horses, how-
ever, are lost every winter through the ice, but the drivers generally manage
to save themselves. Very fine whitefish and maskelonge are taken in Lake
Simcoe; and fine white cornelians are said to have been picked up on the shore
of Kempenfeldt bay.

SISTERS, THE.

Three Islands situated in the western extremity of Lake Erie, two of wbich
belong to England, and the third to the United States. Of those belonging to
England, the largest, or East Sister, contains about thirty-five acres, the Middle
Sister contains about twelve or fourteen acres. Tley are not inhahized.

SCUGOG LAKE.—(See Rick LaKE.)

SMITH.

A Township in the Colborne District; is bounded on the east hy the Otonabee
River, on the north and west by a chain of lakes, and a small portion of Emily;
and on the south by Monaghan. In Smith 32,473 acres are taken up, 9653 of
which are under cuitivation., This is a fine township, and well settled, contain-
ing a mixed population. Timber—a mixture of hard wood and pine. There
are two grist and threc saw mills in the township. Two thousand eight hundred
and nineteen acres of Crown lands are open for sale in Smiith, at 8s. ¢’y per
acre.

Ratable property in the towuship, £23,324,

SMITH'S FALLS.

A flourishiug Village in the township of North Elmsley, pleasantly situated
on the Rideau River, und also on the canal; fourteen wmiles from Perth. It
contains about 700 inhabitants. Churches and chapels four, viz.,, Episcopal,
Presbyterian, Catbolic and Wesleyan Methodist.

Post Office, post three times a week,

Professions and Trades.—'Three physicians and surgeons, two grist mills (one
with four run of stones), two saw mills, one carding machine and fulling mill,
seven stores, six groceries, one axe factory, six blacksmiths, two wheelwrights,
one chair maker, one cabinet maker, one gunsmith, three carpenters, seveu
tailors, eleven shoemakers, one reed muker, one tinsmith, two taverns.

SMITH'S BAY.
A Bay of Lake Huron, six miles in length, running into the Great Manitoulin
island.
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SMITH'S CREEE.

A branch of the Grand River, which takes its rise in the great swamp to the
north of the Huron District; it passes throngh the townships of Mornington,
Wellesiey, Wilmot and Blenheim, and joins the Grand River in the south of the
township of Dumfries, at the village of Paris. It is an excellent mill stream,
and there are several mills, both grist and saw, situated ou it.

SMITHVILLE.

A Village in the township of Grimsby; situated on the road leading from the
village of Grimsby to Dunnville, eight miles south-east from the former village.
It contains two churches, Episcopal Methodist, and British Wesleyan.

Population about 150, )

Post Office, post twice a week.

Professions and Trades.—One grist mill, one saw mill, earding machine and
cloth factory, four stores, one machine shop, one tannery, two hlacksmiths, two
tailors, two shoemakers,

SNAKE ISLAND.

An Island in the south of Lake Simeoe., It is occupied by a party of Chip-
ewa Indians. This body of Indians was one of the three bands established at
oldwater and the Narrows, and separated from them on the abandonment of

those settlements. They now ocenpy Snake Island, one of the three islands in
Lake Simcoe, which were set apart for this tribe many years ago. They are
109 in number, and occupy twelve dwelling houses. They have also two barns,
and a school house, in which their children arve instructed by a respectable
teacher, and Divine service is performed by a resident missionary of the Metho-
dist persuasion, to which these Indians belong. They have about 150 acres
under cultivation, and are improving in habits of industry and agricultural
skill. Their missionary, who has been acqnainted with them since July. 1839,
states that the majority of them are strictly moral in their character, and that
many of them for consistency of character, would not suffer by a comparison
with white Christians of any denomination.

The superintendent, however, states that the soil of the island is stoney, and
not well adapted for Indian modes of cultivation. The timber on the island is
mostly hardwood, and includes a good proportion of maple; and, during the
sngar~-moking season, many Indians come down from Penetanguishene and
other places, to make a supply of sngar.

SOMBRA.

‘A Township in the Western District; is bonnded on the east by the township
of Dawn ; on the west by the River St. Clair ; on the north by Moore; and on
the south by Dover and the Chenail Ecarté. In Sombra 13,476 acres are taken
up, 1589 of which are under cultivation. The north branch of Bear Creek runs
through the centre of the township, in the south of which it joins the east
hranch, which flows along near the south border of the township; near the
centre of the south of the township, it discharges itself into the Chenail Fearté.
The east and north of the township contain exeellent land—that hordering on
the iower portion of the St. Clair and Cheuail Ecarté is rather inclived to be
marshy ; and there are extensive low plains, very usefn! for feeding cattle,
Walpole Island and 8t. Ann’s Islund, the former of which is accnpied by [ndians,
are included in the township. The village of Wallaceburgh is situated at the
forks of Bear Creek. There are two giist and two saw mills in the township.

Population in 1842, 800; who are 2 mixture of Canadians and emi’gmnts from
Great Britain and Ireland.

Ratable property in the township, £8708.
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SOMMERVILLE.

A Township in the Colborne District; is bounded on the east and north by
unsurveyed lands ; on the west by unsurveyed lands and the township of Bexley;
and on the south by Verulam, This township has not yet been correctly sur-
veyed, and little is known of it. It is at present but little settled, and noreturn
has yet been made from it. Fifty-one thousand two hundred and ninety-seven
acres of Crown lands are open for sale in Sommerville, at Bs. curreuncy per acre.

SOPHIASBURGH.

A Township in the Prince Edward District; is bounded on the morth and
east by thé Bay of Quinté; on the west by Ameliasburgh and Hillier; and on
the south by Hallowell. In Sophissburgh 43,210 acres are taken up, 18,272 of
which are under cultivation. An Island in the Bay, called * Big Island,” is in-
clnded in this township. A small lake, called ¢ Fish Lake,” containing abont
500 acres, is situated about the centre of the township, and is connected with the
bay by means of a creek, The village of Demorestville is situated in the town-
ghip. From the loose manner in which the Iast census was taken in this town-
ghip, it was impossible to ascertain the population with any degree of accuracy.

atable property in the township, £51,996.

SOUTHWOLD.

A Township in the London Distriet ; is bonnded on the east by the township
of Yarmouth ; on the north by Westminster, Delaware and Carradoc; on the
west by Dunwich ; and on the south hy Lake Erie, In Southwold 51,853 acres
are taken up, 15,894 of which are under cultivation. This is a well-settled
township, coutaining many thoroughly-cleared and well-cultivated farms. The
River Thames runs through the north-west corner of the township, and it
is besides wateved by branches of Kettle Creck. In the north of the township
the timber is principally hardwood ; in the centre and south it i3 mostly pine.
A small portion of Port Stanley is situated in Soutbwold, as are also the villages
of Fingal, Five Stakes, and Selborne. There are two grist and three saw mlls
in the township.

Population in 1842, 2,890; who are principally Scotch,

Ratable property in the township, £46,844.

SPARTA.

A Settlement sitnated near the south-cast corner of the township of Yarmonth,
six miles east from the plank road. It contains about sixty inhabitants, two
stares, one tavern, chair factory, and blacksmith. 'There is 2 Quaker meeting
house and a Baptist chapel about midway between Sparta and the plank road,

SPEED, RIVER.

A Branch of the Grand River. It takes its rise in the high land either in
Erin or Caledon; flows through Eramosa and Gnelph, and joins the Grand
River in the township of Waterloo. It is an excellent mill stream; and there
are several miils (both grist and saw) situated on it.

SPRINGFIELD.

A Village in the west corner of the township of Brantford, situated on White-
man’s Creek, a branch of the Grand River, seven miles from the town of Brant-
ford. 'The plank road from London to Hamilton passes through the village.
Springfield contains about 250 inhabitants, and a Methodist church.

Professions and Trudes.—One grist mill, one saw mill, earding machine and
cloth factory, two stores, two taverns, two waggon makers, one saddler, two
blacksmiths, two shoemakers, one tailor, one cooper.
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SPRINGFIELD.

A Village in the township of Toronto, on Dundas Street, nineteen miles west
from Toronto, situated on the River Credit in the midst of some very fine
seenery. It contains about 140 inhabitants, and possesses an Episcopal church,
There are in the village two taverns, one store, one chair factory, one tailor, and
one shoemaker.

Post Oifice, post every day.

STAG ISLAND, or ISLE AUX CERFS.
An Island in the River St. Clair, five miles below Port Sarnia; contains about
150 acres, of which about 50 acres are fit for cultivation, the remainder being
marsh. It belongs to the Indians, but is leased to one or two farmers.

STAMFORD,

A Townghip in the Niagara District 3 is bounded on the east by the Niagara
River ; on the north by the township of Niagara ; on the west by Thorold ;
and on the south by Crowland and Wl?llmnghby. In Stamford 22,049 acres are
taken up, 11,308 of which are nnder cultivation. This is an old and well-sctiled
township, containing good land, and numerous beantifullv situated farms. The
Falls of Niagara are opposite this township, and the Whirlpool is also in it.
The village of Chippewa is situated partly in Stamford, and partly in the
a‘;‘iJoining township of Willoughby, which is separated from Stamford by the

elland River ; and the village of Drummondville is algo in the township,
gituated near the falls. There are three grist miils in the township.

Population in 1841, 2,636, who are a mixture of Canadians, English, Irish,
Scotch, and Americans,

Ratable property in the township, £46,071.

STANLEY.

A Township in the Huron Distriet ; is bounded on the north by the River
Bayfield ; on the west by Lake Huron; on the south by the township of Hay
and on the east by Tuckersmitb, Tbe soil of this township is good, with the
exception of the land bordering on the lake, which is poor. In Stanley there
are leased or gold 16,516 acres, of which 1197 are under cultivation, The vile
lage of Bayfield is in this township, at the entrance of the river into Lake Huron,

Population, 737.

Ratable property in the township, £6130. 18s.

STEPHEN.

A Township in the Huron Distriet; is bounded on the north by the township
of Hay; on the west by Lake Huron and the Sable River; on the south by
MegGillivray; and on the east by Ushorne and Biddulph. The land bordering
on the lake, for abont a mile in length, is gandy snd unfit for cultivation; but
most of the rest of the township is good. Stephen contains 41,603 acres, 4,150
of which are leased or sold; of which 520 acres are under cultivation.

Population of Stephen, 218,

Ratable property in the township, £1,998 10s.

STONEBRIDGE, on PETERSBURGH.

A Village in the township of Humberstone, situated on the feeder of the
Welland Canal, one mile and a half from Lake Erie, It is supported almost
entirely by the works on the Canal. A detachment of the Coloured Company
is guartered here.

Population about 200, exclusive of the laboures on the canal,

Professiona and Trades—Omne physician and surgeon, onme distillery, one
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foundry, seven stores, one druggist, three taverns, two waggon makers, three:
blacksmiths, three butchers, tour shoemakers, two saddlers, three tailors, one
tinsmith.

STORMONT.

A County in the Eastern District, It comprises the townships of Cornwall,
Finch, Osnabruck, Roxborougl, and, except for the purpose of representation
in the Legislative Assembly, the town of Cornwall, It returns a member to the
House of Assembly.

STORRINGTON.

A Township in the Midland District; is hounded on the east by the township
of Hinchinbrooke; on the north by Kennebec and Olden; on the west by Shef-
field; and on the South by Portland. In Storrington 24,249 acres are taken
up, 6441 of which are under cultivation. This township has lately been divided
off from Hinchinbrooke: it is well settled, and contains some good farms. Itis
watered by branches of the Napanee Hiver. There is one saw miil in the
township.

Population in 1845, 1,584,

Ratahle property in the township, £17,040.

STOUFFVILLE, or STOUFFERSVILLE.

A small Village in the township of Markham, sitnated on the town-line he-
tween Markham and Whitehurch, eleven miles from Yonge Street. It contains
about seventy inhabitants, one physician and surgeon, two storcs, two taverns,
one blacksmith, one waggon maker, one oatmeal mill, one tailor, one shoemaker.

Past Office, post three times a week.

STREETSVILLE,

A Village in the township of Toronto, seven miles from Dundas Street, and
twenty-three miles from Toronto, It was laid outin 1819, It is prettily situated
on the River Credit, in 2 good farming country; and contains ahout 550 inha-
bitants. A stage has been lately started, to run from the village to Toronto
daily, Streetsville contains three churches and chapels ; viz., Episcopal, Pres-
hyterian, and Methodist; and a court-house.

Post Office, post four times a week.

Professions and Trades—Two physicians and surgeons, two grist mills, three
saw mills, one carding machine and ¢loth factory, four stores, one foundry, one
druggist, one tannery, on¢ land surveyor, four taverns, two saddlers, one car-
riage maker, onc watchmaker, three waggen makers, one baker, four shoe-
malkers, six tailors, six hlacksmiths, six carpenters, two cabinet makers, twe
coopers, one gunsmith, one wheelwright, one painter.

8T. ANDREWS. (See CoBNWALL)

8T. ANDREWS,

An intended Village in the township of Nissouri, sitaated on the Governor's
road, twelve miles east from London,; and fourtcen miles west from Woodstock.
It eontains a saw mill and store, and a grist mill is.in course of erection. About
150 village lots have been sold.

3T. NTATHARINES,

A Town in the township of Grantham, situated on the Welland Canal, thirty-
six miles from Hamilton, and twelve miles from Niagara. 'The town is beauti-
fully situated, having 2 fine view for a eonsiderable distance of the Welland
Canal and surroundicg country. It isa place of much trade; which arises partly
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from its contiguity to the Welland Canal, and partly from its extensive water
ower—an immense quantity of wheat being annually converted into floue.
he town is well laid out, and contains some excellent buildings; it was. incor-
porated in the year 1845, and at present contains a mixed population of about
3,500.

Stages pass through the town daily during the winter, from Hamilton to
Queenston and Niagara, and to Fort Erie, opposite Buffalo; and three times a
week—Monday, Wednesday and Friday—to Dunaville on the Grand River.
In summer, daily to Chippewa, and to Niagara, to meet the boats to and from
Hamilton and Toronto, and Buffalo. There is a ship-yard and dry dock for
the repair of vessels; and the principal office belonging to the Welland Canal 1s
kept bere. A fire company is established, with two engines.

e grammar school is & handsome building; and there are also barracks,
with one company of Canadian Rifles, A newspaper, the “8t, Catharines
Journal,” is published here weekly.

Churches and chapels, six; viz., Episcopal, Scotch Secession, American Pres-
byterian, Catholic, Methodist and Baptist.

Post Office, post every day.

Professions and Trades—Six physicians and surgeons, five lawyers, four
grist mills (containmg twenty run of stones), one trip hammer, one brewery,
three distilleries, one tannery, one foundry, one ashery, one machine and pump
factory, two surveyors, one pottery, fourteen stores, two anctioneers, twenty-four
groceries, one stove store, one printer, one pail factory, one broom factory, one
tallow chandler, eight taverns, three saddlers, three cabinet makers, two book-

sellers and stationers, three druggists, one gunsmith, two watchmakers, three

carriage makers, three bakers, two hatters, two livery stables, seven hlacksmiths,
one veterinary surgeon, three tinsmiths, one tobacconist, seven tailors, nine
shoe makers, one grammar school, four schools for young ladies, three bank
agencies—* Upper Cannda,” * Montreal,” and * Commereial.”

Principal Tavern “ St, Catharines House.”

Stage fares from St. Catharines,
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Quantity of flour shipped from St. Cath.armesdunng the season of 1B44—
70,772 barrels.

ST. DAVIDS.

A Vill.ﬁ.%e in the township of Niagara, three miles west from Queenston,
situated below the mountain, close to the main road {rom Hamilton to Queenston.
It contains aboutl50 inhabitants.

Professions and Trades.—Two water grist mills, one steam do., one distillery,
ome tannery, oue brewery, one ashery, one carding machine and cloth factory,
two stores, one tavern, one cooper, one blacksmith. ’

8T. CLAIR RIVER,

Receives the waters of Lake Huron, and conveys them to Lake St Cluir
Including its windings, it is ahout thirty miles long, and from three quarters of
s mile to o mile end a half broad. Between Lake Huron and Lake Bt Clair it
divides Canada from the United States. There were formerly, within the
memory of persons still living in the neighbourhood, three channels connecting
the river with L.ake Huron; {wo of these, however, have become filled up, and
m cape has been formed called Poiut Edward; below which is a gonsiderable
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bay with deep water, well sheltered by Point Edward, capable of affording
accommodation to any number of vessels. There is a large island in the river,
oppusite the upper portion of the township of Moore; and opposite the settle-
ment of “ Sutherlands,” near the Awmerican shore, is a considerable extent of
clay banks (called here “flats ™), covered with about four feet of water, where
some of the old inhabitants say they recolleet the existence of an island, and that
when children they nsed to paddle across in canoes iv order to play upon it.

The hanks of the upper portion of the St. Clair are high; those of the lower
portion are lower, and in parts inclined to be mnarshy. The banks of the river
generally are well settled, and many of the farms are beautifully situated. The
flourishing village of Port Saruin 1s sitnated at the head of the St. Clair, in the
township of Sarnia; and Froomefivld, Corunna and Sutherlands, in the township
of Moore. There are several wharves construeted an the Cavadian side of the
river, for the convenience of supplying the steamboats passing with wood:
large quantities are soid; aud, as the land near the river becomes cleared, the
commodity rises in value.

Io the lower portion of the township of Sarnia is a settlement of Chippewa
Indians. These Indians are among the first whom Sir John Colborne endea-
voured to settle and civilize. Previously to 1830 they were wandering heathens,
seattered over the western part of the Upper Province. In 1830 a number of
them were collvcted on this reserve, containiug 10,280 acres. A wumber of
houses were huilt for them, and an officer was appointed for their superinten-
dence.  Their conversion to Christianity, and their progress iu religious know-
ledge, and in the aequisition of sober, orderly and industrious habits, has been,
under the care of missionaries of the Wesleyan Methodist Society, both rapid
and uniform. The total number of the Indians vp to the year 183% does not
appear to have exceeded 350. Since then their numher has increased greatly
by immigration, chiefly from the Saginaw Bay in the State of Michigan, and by
the settlement of wandering Indians; and in 1842, as many as 741 received
presents.

There are two other settlements under the same superintendence; one at the
River aux Sables, in the township of Bosanquet, on a reserve of 2650 acres, and
anather alnost adjoining it, on a reserve of 2446 acres, at Kettle Point in the
same township, where five families reside.

These Indians also possess a fourth reserve, on the River 8t. Clair. within the
township of Moore, containing 2575 acres. Owing to the immigration whieh
has taken plaee on this portion, sinee the notiee to the visiting Indians of the
United States was issned, and the removals which have occnrred at these and
the other Indian settlements in the neighbourhood, together with the mode in
which the returns have been rendered, it is difficult to state with preeision the
progress and the inerease of each settlement.

At present they are established chiefly on the front of the npper reserve,
having small farms of six and a half chains in width on the River St. Clair,
The total number of separate farms js forty-two; on sixteen of which there are
good substantial log honses, erected by the government on the first formation of
the settlement; but on the lower part of the reserve, where no honses were bnilt
by the government, the Indians reside in small log or bark houses of their own
erection, There is only one log building resembling a barn ; but alwost all the
Indians have small out-houses or sheds in which they house their crops.

From a return made in 1839, there were twenty families occupying houses,
who liad 146 aeres of land cleaved, of which 100 were under cultivation. Their
stock then cousisted of two oxen, three cows, and two pigs; and they possessed
three ploughs, two harrows, and uine sleighs. At present there are thirty-two
families settled ov the reserve, who have improved 205 acres of land: four indi-
viduals have improved from ten to thirty acres; of the others, fifteen have
five acres or more, and the remainder under five acres cleared. There are also
five families settled on some land purchased with their annuity, and some held
by liceuse of occupation under the goverument, in Enniskillen. These have
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about forty acres under cultivation, and possess two good log houses, and twe
amall log barns.

The Indians of the River aux Sables, have about sixty scres under im-
provement, and one log house. 'Those at Kettle Poiat have twenty acres of
improved land, and two log honses. The laud on the upper reserve was regu-
larly surveyed and laid out in farms, The chief. with the approval of the
supcriutendent, placed most of the present occupants on -these lands; but it is
not indispensable that he should be consulted, as the members of the tribe may
c¢hoose any unoceupied spot; wheu once in possession they ore secwre from
imrusiou, but repeated ill conduet or drunkenness would subject them to be
expelled from the reserve of the chief,

They are decidediy improved in agriewlture: they now understand ploughing,
seeding, harrowing, the management of cattle, &c. They possess eight ploughs
and four harrows, which each family uses alternately: a numher of seythes and
sickles, two fanuing mills, and four eross-cut saws, form part of their general
stack ; besides which each family possesses au axe, and a sufficiency of hoes, &e.
They have mine yoke of oxen, eight cows, and some young stock; besides a
large number of horses and pigs, They are exceedingly attentive to their cattle,
and feed them well during the winter, They cultivate chiefly Indian corn and
potatoes, with small quantities of spriug wheat, oats and peas.  The field labour
is eutirely done by the male adults; bur the women do all the lighter work of
weeding and hoeing the Indian corn aud potatoes,

Their fondsiess for hunting is much diminished, and they seldom hunt except

when obliged to do so by want of meat, their stoek at present being iusufficient
to keep them supplied. They have two excellent fisheries, yielding an abun-
dance of hervings and whitefish; and, duriug the run of the fish in the spring
and, fall they devote a great part of their time to fishing. They have seines,
which the young men, comhining in bands, use alternately. Besides the fish
which they retain for their own eonsumption, they dispose of considerable guan-
tities to the white settlers on the banks of the river.
_ The majority of these Indians are Wesleyan Methodists; all those residiug
in the upper rescrve belong to that community, and attend public worship.
which is perforined in a eapacions meeting-house built for the joint purpese of
a chureh aud school-house by the government, and lent to the mission; those at
the River aux Sables are either members of the Church of England, or are desi-
rous of being admitted into it. ‘L'here are also one or two families of Roman
Catholics; and those residing at Kettle Poim are heathens, :

The members of the Church of England ut the River aux Sables, to which
place they retired about two years ago, have as yet neitber a elergyman nor a
place of worship. This year a catechist, an Indian by birth, has buen appoiuted
by the hishop to the clhiarge of this settlement.

'There is a sehool-house at the upper reserve, under the direction of the mis-
sionary, which is nttended by twenty or thirty scholars of both sexes, The
health of these Indiaus i& good—their numbers are on the inerease; they gene-
rally have five ¢hildren to a fuinily, of whom perhaps three arrive at maturity.

Many of these lndians are industrious; some of those at the upper reserve
are cmployed to cut cord-wood by the white settlers, and o few of them will
manage {0 end and pile three cords of wood per day: others employ themselves
in muking howls, brooms, rush mats and matting, axe handles, baskets, &c.,
wlich they usnaliy manage 1o dispose of to the white settlers in the neiglibour-
hood of the 8i. Clair.

ST. CLAIR, LAKE

A Leke situated between Lake Huron and Lake Evie. Tt receives the waters
of the upper lakes from the Kiver 8t. Clair, and discharges them into the Detroit
River. In the widest part it is about twenty-six niies ucross; and in lengti,
from the i:ead of the Detroit River to the entrance of the River St Clair, it is
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ahout twenty-five miles. In the upper portion of the lake are several large
islands, tle prineipal of which are Walpole Island, which is inhabited ‘b;’ Indinns
{for a description of which see * Walpole Island”), and St. Anne’s Island.
All the islands to the west of Walpole ?sl:md belong to the Americans, The
north-eastern channel, separating the island from the main land, is called
* Chenail Ecartd;” and that dividing Walpole and St. Anne’s Islands is called
“Johason’s Channel.”

Besides the River St. Clair, Lake 8t. Clair receives the River Thames, Bear
Creck, Little Hear Creek, and several smaller streams, which enter it on the
wes! pnd south sides,

Mueh of the land bordering on the lake is Jow and marshy, and in ploces
there are extensive pluins, which are useful for grazing cattle.

A great rise took place in the lake in the year 1827, which did great damage
to the land bordering on it, laying much of the low land under water, and des-
troying many fine orchards. It has since been gradually subsiding, and the
land is becoming dry again, but the dumage to the fruit trees was irreparable.

ST. JOHNS.

A Village on the town-line between Thorold and Pelham (the prineipal part
of the village being in Thorold), situated on the road from Hamilton to the
Falls of Niagnra. It coniains about 400 inhabitants and a Methodist church,

Past (Mfice, post twice a weck.

Frofessions and Trades.—Four grist mills, one foundry, two cloth factories,
one machine shop, one store, one tavern, one carriage factory, one waggon,
maker, two blacksmiths, one tannery.

ST. LAWRENCE. (The principal River in Conada.)

It receives the waters of the great lakes from Lake Ontario and conveys them
to the Gulf of St. Lawrence. It is nearly half a mile wide at its commencement,
and ninety miles wide at its month. The name was originally given to the
Gulf and afterwards extended to the River, by Cartier, an early French navi-
gator, in 1534, in honour of a saint in the Romish calendar. Soon after its
commencement, it expands into the “ Lake of the Thounsand Isles;” a portion of
the river, the scenery of which is mnost beautiful and romantic, being studded
with islands, seme of which are many acres in extent, and others only a few
feet square, and most of which are eovered with red cedur; some are only just
above the surface of the water, and others are abrupt and craggy rocks, jutting
up perpendieularly to the height of thirty or forty feet. Sometimes you pass
through a carrow channel, hetween rocks, where, at a short distance, yon would
imagine there was scarcely room for a boat to pass. In passing throngh the
lake, during the last summer, in company with a German who had travelled
over Germany, Switzerland, and Fraoce, he deelared that in poifit of natoral
beauty, the scenery of the [{hine wss nat to be compared to it. He acknow-
ledged that the addition of old ecastles and picturesque ruins, added chamns o
the scenery of the Rhine, that were wanting in that of the St. Lawrenee; but
}hlat in true natural heauty, it was far from cqual to the Lake of the Thousand

sles,

There are several rapids in 1he river, some of which it is difficult, and others
impossible for sailing vessels or other eraft to ascend; and steamhoats and ves-
sels, conveying geods between Kingston and Montreal, have been in the habit
of descending the rapids, and returning by the Ottawa River, being towed by
steamboats through the Ridean Caval. The prineipal of thuse rapids, are the
Galoppes Rapids, Point Iroguois do., Rapide Plat do., Farren's Point do., the
Long Sault do., the Cotean de.. the Cedars do., the Cascades do., and the La~-
chine do. The Galoppes Rapids ave situated at about six miles below Prescott,
The current in the river is very strong, varying from six to ten miles per hour.
The first cluss steam passage vessels can overeome these rapids, as those at
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Point Iroquois, Rapid Plat, and Farren’s Point in the natural state of the river;
but to enable trade vessels generally to ascend the Galoppes, improvements are
in progress, which consist of one guard lock, one lock with a lift of hetween
seven and elghl feet, and a lateral cut or canal two miles in length. The Point
Iroquois Rapids occur at about twelve miles below Prescott; to enable vessels to
ascend them, a canal has been constructed about three rmles in length, with a
lock having a Jift of ahout six feet. This work is not quite finished. hut will
be completed during the present year. The Rapide Plat Rapids are ahout nine-
teen miles below Prescon, and 10 overcome them, o canal has heen made about
four miles in length, with a guard lock, and a lift lock having about eleven and a
half feet rise. The Farren’s Point Rn.PldEl are about thl!“hr three miles below
Prescott. The improvements here consist of a eanal about one mile in length,
with a lock having about four feet lift. The next rapids are those of the Long
Bault ; these are serious, aud may indeed be called insurmountable obstacles to
ascending the river; they have been avoided by the construction of the Cornwall
Canal, which is about twelve miles in length, and commences at_the village of
Dickenson’s Landing, eleven miles above the town of Cornwail. The next work
connected with the t. Lawrence is the Beanharnois Canal, the objeet of which
is to open a eommunication from Lake St. Francis to Lake St. Louis. avoiding
all the rapids of the Cotean, the Cedars, and the Cascades, which occor in the
portion of the 8t. Lawrence between those lakes.

During the seasou of 1844 it was stated, and generally believed, that a new
channel had beeu discovered through the Cedurs Rapids. with a considerable depth
of warer; and it was Fupposed, therefore, that no obstruction existed to the pas-
sage of vessels, drawing from eight to nine feet water, down all the rapids to:
Montreal, However, it appeared that this was a mistake; for as the proprietor
of the steamboat St. George was endeavouring to take his boat (drawing six
feet water) through the newly discovered channel, she struck so heawily in
several parts of the Coteau and Caseades Rapids as to malke it necessary to run
her into the entrance of the Beauharnois Canal, to prevent her from sinking.

The several works of the enlargement of the Lachine Canal are nearly com-
pleted, and are expected to be sufliciently so to ailow of tbe passage of first class
vessels, which then will be enabled to run up from Montreal to Toronto and
Hamiltony and, through the Welland Canal, to Lakes Erie, 8t. Clair and Huron,
Below I\-IontreaL the St. Lawreuce is navigable for first class vessels from the ocenn.

There are many islands in the St. Lawrence, some of large size, and others.
mere rocks. Of these, the largest above Lake St. Francis, are Gore Island,
é:pomte the townships of Leeds aud Landsdowne; and Sheek’s Island and

ornwall Island, opposite the townships of Cornwall and Osnabruck. Below
Lake St. Franci s, there are many islands, the principal of which is the
Island of Montreal; bnt as these are all in the Lower Province, to which the
li‘esent work does not extend, it is necessary to omit a description of tbem.

he base of the islands in the 8t. Lawrence is limestone, and they are mostly
covered with cedars, and other trees of the pine tribe

There have heen expended on the improvements of the St. Lawrence up to
the 1st of July, 1844, the latest date to which the returns have been published—

Prescott to Dickenson's Landing .....ccoocvviineiniiniiniinnnn, £13,490 19 4
Cornwall, to the time of opening the canal in June, 1843... 67,110 4 2
Do. to repair breaks in the hanks, since the zbove

PeriOd  civirviiiiiiis s e reennes 9,925 16 4
Beanharnois............. B Y veereieeene. 162,281 19 5
Lachine ......... Ty vevsrrreiieneee 40,410 11 2
Expenditure on dn:clg-e, outﬁr, &c appllcable to the fore-

ZOINg 10 COMMON  1vvrrrrrrerrerersreesssresarsessrnsneranerss 5462 16 &

Tiake Bt POWT. ciicicisisissiividsissiismssvsinssinsissipsinins: SERE 19 &

Total.....venere o £325,576 & LX
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The amount of lockage and canals on the St. Lawrence, consists of—

No, of Locks.  Length of Canal.
MILES.
2
2}
4

v

The Galloppes .icvsscvsireienieairnrinsrsiosses 2

Point IToquois ivvcviiiieeienenninriensnsianies 1

Rapide Plat  ..occiviiiiiiniiniininniinsiiia 2

Farrens Polnt iciiiiiiiisnessiavisnaesdsraiin 1

Cornwall Canal ......cccviveinersconrosnnsannans 7 11
]
22

e g T

e e =

P,

Beauharnois Canal.........ccceuvuvernerrmseraens 11

Total.....evesree s2d

The banks of the St. Lawrenee, above Montreal, are generally rather low,
the greater portion of them have been long settled, and bear the aspect of &
country which has been long reclaimed from its primeval wildness.

From its commencement, till it reaches the St. Regis settlement, the St
Lawrenee separates Upper Canada from the United States; afterwards it divides
Upper from Lower Canada; and it forms the sonthern boundary of the Johns-
town and the Eastern districts.

The principal towns and villages on the St. Lawrence, are Brockville, the
district town of the Johnstown District; Cornwall, the district town of the
Eastern District; Prescott, in the township of Augusta; Gananogue, in Leeds;
and Milleroches, in Cornwall.

ST. JOSEPH ISLE.
An Island in the north-west of Lake Huron,

ST. MARY'S.

A Village in the township of Blanshard, situated at the falls of the north
branch of the River Thames, twelve miles from Stratford, and twenty-five miles
north-west from Ingersol. It was laid out in 1844, and contains about 120 in-
habitants. There is an excellent limestone quarry close to the village.

Professions and Trades,—One grist mill, one saw do., one physician and sur-
geon, two asheries, three stores, one tavern, one shoemaker, one tailor, one
cooper, one blacksmith,

R ™ L AL 0 U0, s b
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STRANGE'S MILL.—(See Enamosa.)

STRATFORD.

A Village on the Huron Road, at the corners of the townshipa of Ellice,
North and Scuth Easthope, and Downie, It is forty-five miles from Gode-
rich. The River Avon, a branch of the Thames, runa through the village.

Stratford contains about 200 inhabitants.

Post Office, post three times a-week.

Professions and Trades—Two physieians and surgeons, one grist and saw
mill, one tannery, three stores, onc hrewery, one distillery, one ashery, two
taverns, two blacksmiths, one saddler, two wheelwrights, three shoemakers, two

tailors. —
ST. THOMAS,

A large Village in the township of Yarmouth, beautifully situated on Kettle
Creek, seventeen miles from London, and nine miles from Port Stanley. It is
surrounded by a succession of hill and dale, and in the midst of a fine, well
cultivated country. It was laid out about thirty yeara since, and now contains
hetween 7 and 800 inhabitants. It is a place of considerable business. The
plank road from London to Port Stanley runs through the village, north and
south, and the Talhot Road, east and west. Stages from London to Port
Stanley pass through the village daily. A weekly newspaper is published here,
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the “8t. Thomas Standard,” Churches and chapels, six; viz., Episcopal, Pres-

byterian, Catholic, two Methodist, and 2 Baptist.

Post Office, post three times a week.

Professions and Trades.—Four physicians and surgeons, three lawyers, one
grist ‘'and saw mill, carding machine and cloth factory, two foundries, two
breweries, two distilleries, ten stores, six groceries, four taverns, one temperance
house, two druggists, one printer, four saddlers, one baker, twe butchers, one
watchmaker, four coopers, eight blacksmiths, three waggon makers, five tailors,
four shoemakers, one painter and glazier, one tinsmith, one surveyor. Two
bank agencies—* Montreal,” and * Gore,”

Principal Tavern.—* Ivor's,”

ST, VINCENT,

A Township in the Simcoe District; is bounded on the gsorth by the Natta-
wasaga Bay; on the west by the township of Sydenham; on the south by Eu-
phrasia; and on the east by Nottawasaga Bay aud the township of Collingwooed.
In St. Vincent 17,028 acres are taken up, 1592 of which are under cultivation.
This township is beginuing to settle up fast: it contains good land, and some
thriving farms. The principal settlements are a short distance from the bay.
There ts an Indian village on the bay, near the town line between St. Vincent
and Sydenhain, the inhabitants of which possess a fine tract of Jand in the neigh-
bourhood. 8t. Vincent was added to the Simcoe District in 1844, previous to
which time, it formed a portion of the Home District. One thonsand five hun-
dred acres of Crown lands are open for sale in the township, at 8s, curreney
per acre, There are two grist and two saw mills iu the township.

There has as yet been no return of the population from St. Vineent.

Ratable property in the township, £6758,

ST. WILLIAMS, or PORT METCALFE.

A Village in the township of Charlatteville, situated on Lake Erie, six miles
west from Normandale. It contains ahout 100 inhabitants and a Methodist
church, one store, one tavern, one waggon maker, one blacksmith, one tailor,
one shoanaker,

STURGEON CREEK.
A small Stream in the township of Mersea, which runs into Lake Erle; on
which is a grist mill

STURGEON LAXE.—(Se¢ Rice LARE.)

SULLIVAN.

A Township in the Wellington District; is bounded on the east by the town-
ship of Holland; on the north by Derby; on the west by unsurveyed lands;
and on the south by Bentinck. This township has ouly lately been surveyed
and laid out, and no return has yet been made from it. Fifty-two thonsand
two hundred acres of Crown lands are open for sale in it, at 8s. currency per ucre.

SUNNIDALE.

A Township in the Simcoe District; is bounded on the north by the Notta-
wasaga Bay; on the west by the township of Nottawasaga; on the south by
Tossorontio and Essa; and on the east by Flos and Vespra. In Sunnidale 3744
acres are taken up, 378 of which are under cultivation. The Nottawasaga
River enters the township at the south-east corner—runs nearly north for rather
more than three miles, when it‘curves to the east, and leaves the township:
after passing throngh the townships of Vespra and Flos, it re-enters Sunnidale,
sbout three miles from the bay, runs west to within a mile of the town line
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‘between Sunnidale and Nottawaesaga; then makes a bend and runs north-east,
parallel with the bay, just within the township of Flos, Much of the land in
the township is hilly and broken., Eighteen thousand four hundred acres of
Crown lands are open for sale in Sunnidale, at 8s. currency per acre. There is
one saw mill in the township.

Sunnidale is as yet but little settled, and in 1842, it only contained 174 in-
habitants,

Ratable property in the township, £1461.

SUTHERLAND’S.

A Village in the township of Moore, Plen.santly gitnated on the River St.
Clair, opposite the American town “ 8t, Clair,” or “ Palmer.” It was laid out
in 1838, by Mr. Sutherland, a gentleman from Edinburgh, who has done a great
deal to improve the neighbourhood—having cleared a large quantity of land—
built o bandsome Episcopal chureh, &e. 1ere are several wharves for supplying
steamboats with wood. Sutherlands is ten miles from Port Sarnia, and contains
2 comfortable tavern.

Post Office, post three times a-week.

Population, about 100.

Professions and Trades—One physician and surgzeon, three stores, one tavern,
two blacksmiths, one tailor, one shoemaker, one school.

SYDENHAM.

A Village in the township of Toronto, 14§ miles from Toronto, situated on
Dundas Street. It contains about 140 inhabitants. Tlere is & stone chapel, a
short distance from the village, free for all denominations.

Professions and Trades.—3team grist mill and distiilery, brewery, one store,
ane tavern, one tannery, two blacksmiths, two waggon makers, one carpenter,
oue butcher, one shoemaker.

SYDENITAM.

A Township in the Wellingron Distriet; is bounded on tbe north hy Owen
Sound; on the west by the township of Derby; on the south by Holland; and
on the east by St. ¥inceut. 'This township has only lately been opened for sale,
and no return has vet been made from it. The land is of good quality. A
village, called * Sydeuham,” is commenced on an execellent mill stream, about
mile baek from the lake. At present it containg a grist and saw mill, store, and
gbour 150 inhabitants. In Sydenliam 81,180 acres of Crown lands are open
for sale, ar 8= currency per acre.

TALBOT DISTRICT,

Consists of the connty of Norfolk, which eomprises the townships of Char-
lottevitle, loughtou, BMiddleton, Townsend, Woodhonse, Windham, and
Walsingham, und for all purpeses, exeept that of representation in the Legisla-
tive Assembly, and that of registration of titles, the townships of Rainham aud
Walpole. The Tulbot Distriet is hounded on the north-east by the Niagara
District and the Gore district ; on the north by the Broele Distrier; on the west
by the London District; and on the sonth by Lake Erie. The distriet m
watcred by Big Creek, and u small portion of Otter Creek, besides numerons
smaller strexing, many of whieh are cxeellent mili-sireams.  The land varies in
guality ; that in the townships of Walsingham Hounghton and Middieton is
principally timbered with pine, that in the other townships is hardwood apd pine
mrermixed. Long Point, which is now ap island, is included in the distriet.
Much of the land in the distriet is rolling, and Simcoe, the district fown, is
very haudsomely sitnated.,

The Talbot District is settled principally by Canadians, with a few Scotch,
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Irish and English. It improves but very slowly, and between January, 1842,
and Jenuary 1844, only 2,800 acres of land were brought into cultivation.

Besides Simcoe, the district town, there are in the distriet, the villages of
Port Dover and Port Ryerse in Woodhouse, Normandale, (where is a blast
furnace for smelting the iron (bog) ore found in the neighbourhood) Vittoria
and St. Williams in Charlotteville, Waterford in Townsend, Port Rowan and
Port Royal in Walsingham, and Fredericksburgh in Middleton, There are no
Crown lands for sale in the Talbot District.

Population in 1841, 9,626, since when it has probably increased one-sixth.

The following abstract from the assessment rolls will show the rate of
increase and improvement in the district:

J No. of Ii WLLLS, ‘ |Gxen. 4 years| Horned Cattle, | Amount of
Date.t Acres :Milch Cows.!  old and from 2 to 4 Ratable
Cultivated. ™ upwards, yearg old. Yroperry,

| Grlst. l Saw.
1842!. 54,049 | 10 48 | 3,846 1,336 3,846 £166,003
1843, 54,805 10 53 | 4,119 1,503 2,002 169,124
1844! 56,599 10 50 | 4,186 1,643 1,649 185,633

Government and District Officers in the Talbot District:

Judge of District Court............ William Salmon.........c..eeevn...  Simcoe
Sheriff ..y B VAL Rapelie o Do.
Clerk of Peace ...c.ccvvvcirennnnnes W M, Wilson  .ovvviivciaiiiannnins Do.
TPICASUTOT sassnpavaiwivives: e TWENSEY risviausvivsisiscmie Do.
Inspector of Licenses.........coeee E. PL R¥erse oooveeciiniininiininnen Do.
District Clerk......vvivivenireennne Jo H DAVIS.cciiiimiiierenniie e Do.

Clerk of District Court ......... W. M. Wilson ....oovvveriinneeanes Do.
Superintendent of Schools ...... Rev. W. Clarke .....ocoviiiiennnnn, Do.
Crown Lands Agent............... D\ Campbell ooovviivnineininninnnns Do.
WAPEeD . .:iicsussnssasrsivnisassiviaia L We Pawell.comvaiiinisviis Do.

Number of Common Schools in operation in the District.—Townsend, 19;
Woodhouse, 12 3 Charlotteville, 10 ; Walsingham, 8 ; Houghton, 6 ; Middle-
ton, 7 ; Windham, 9; Walpole, 6 ; Rainham, 4. Total, 81.

TALFOURD'S.—(See FROOMEFIELD.)
TALBOT MILLS.—(See SELBORNE.)

TAY.

A Townehip in the Simeoe District ; is bounded on the north by Gloucester
Bay ; on the west by the township of Tiny ; on the sonth by Medonte ; and on
the east by Matchadash. In Tay 3159 acres ave taken up, 489 of which are
nnder cultivation. Gloucester Bay makes several irregnlar projections into this
township, and Penetanguishine Bay completely divides it into two portians,
This towanship is as yet hut little settled. most of the inhahitants, with the
exception of those belonging to the government establishment on the bay, being
balf Indian. Thereare 3,400 acres of Crown lands for disposal in the townshif
of Tay, at 85. ¢'y per acre.

Population in 1842, 202,

Ratable property in the township £1,643.

VS
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TECUMSETH.

A Township in the Simeoe Distriet ; is bounded on the north by the town-
ship of Essa; on tbe west by Adjala; on the soutb by Albion and King ; and
on tbe east by Gwillimbury West. In Tecumseth 40,768 acres are taken up,
11,576 of which are under cultivation, The township is well watered by
numerous small streamns which unite in the north of the township, formiug the
Nottawasaga River, A large swamp is situated ou the town-line between
Tecumseth and West Gwillimbury, which borders the Nottawasaga River, and
15 joined in the north of the townsbip by another swamp, which extends into
Adjala. Tecumseth is well settled, and contains many fine farms ; the land is
generally rolling, and the timber of good quality. ‘f'here are in the township
one grist and six saw mill. In Teenmseth 8,000 acres of Crown lands are open
for sale, at 8s. ¢'y per acre.

Population in 1842, 2,491, who are prineipally Scoteh, Irish, und Americans,

Ratable property in the township, £27,790.

! TEMPERANCEVILLE.

A Settlement in the township of Malahide, on Talbot Street, about ten miles
east from St. Thomas, situated on Catfish Creek, or River Barbu. It eontaing
about 100 inhabitants, one store, two taverns, one waggon maker, one tailor,

ene blaeksmith, —
THAMES, RIVER.

One of the principal rivers in Canada West, formerly called La Tranche,
The north, or prineipal braneb, takes its rise in the great swamp, north of tbe
Huron Disiriet; passes through McKillop and Logan, into the north corner of
Fullarton, where it is joined by o branch from Hibbert. Lower down in the
township it is joined by a small branch; it then passes out of the south corner
of Fullarton, cuts across the east corner of Blaushard into Nissouri, where it is
Jjoined by a braneh, called the “ Avon,” which runs through Easthope and
Zorra. [t then tlows into the township of London, where it is joined by a
branch from Usborn and Biddulph. At the town of Loadon it is joined by tha
east hranch, which takes its rise in Fasthope forms the dividing line between
Blandford and Zorra, sepavates West from North Oxford, North from South
Dorchester, and then flows along the south border of the township of London,
separating it from Westminster. After joining the north branch, the united
P Btrewm conltinues its course in a south-westerly direetion, forming the dividing
bonndary between the townships of Lobo, Carrsdoe, Ekirid, Mosa. Zone, Cam-
den Wust, Chutham and Dover, on the north; and Delaware, Southwold, Dun-
wich, Aldboro, Orford, Howard, Harwich, Raleigh, and East Tilbury, on the
south; between which last township and Dover, it discharges itself into Lake
8t. Clair. H is joined by many small streams i its conrse, and at Chatham it
is joined by M'Gregor’s Creek.

On the upper portions of this river are numereus grist and saw mills,

At and above Delaware, it affords fine trout fishing; and below, during the
Bpring, quantities of white fish, pike, pickerel, and maskelonge are taken, with
oceasionally sturgeon. Several bundred barrels of fish ave frequently cured at
and in the neighbourhood of Chatham.

The Thames is navigable for steamboats and schooners to Lonisville, a
village nearly thirty miles from its mouth, and might be made navigable to
London, at no very great expense. To Louisville, it is of au average depth of
| 16 feet, and in breadth from 200 to 300 feet. The river passes through some
! . of the finest country in Western Canada; the banks ou the upper portion being
: high and volling; while below, for a distance of about thirty-five niles, the land
: is mostly level and rich, forming some of the hest farming land in the Western
Distriet; and noted for its superior growth of wheat. Many of the farms on
this portion of the river, have heen settled for fifty years, and ave in a high state
of cultivation, witb fine orehards.
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There are large quantities of fine white oak and black walnut on the banks
of the river, ond a considerable trade has for some years been carried on in
siives, and walnuot lumber, The former are floated down the river from the
land where they are cut, to Chatham, where they are collected and shipped on
board schooners, which are sent from Kingston, and other ports, for that

ose.

At London and Delaware, are handsome bridges lately erected over the river;
that at Delaware is purticularly admired. A new bridge is expected to be
erected at Chatham, during the year 1846, The seenery on many parts of the
Thames is very picturesque.

There are three Indian secttlements on the Tbames, in the townships of Oe-
ford, Delaware, nnd Carradoe, ocenpied by Indians of the Delaware, Chippewa,
Munsee, and Oneida tribes.

The settiement of the Delaware Indians, was one of the first established by
Indians in Canada West. In 1792, the principal remnant of the once flourishing
cangregations of the Moravian, or United Brethren Church, in the nited
States, was compelled to seck an asylum in Upper Cunada, where they were
favourably reeeived by the provincial authorities, and were permitted to setthe
on the River La Tranche, (now called the Thames). By an Order in Council,
dated 10th July, 1793, a large tract of land on the river, comprising abont
50,000 acres, was granted for their use; on which they proceeded tobuild 2 vil-
lage, called Fairfield, a church, and other premises, at the expeuse of a voluntary
societs, established at Bethlehem, in the state of Pennsylvania, in the year 1787,
under the nane of “ The Brethren's Society for the Propagation of the Gospel.”
By a secand Order in Council, dated 26th February, 1799, a survey of this
tract was ordered to be made, and the land was appropriated to the trustees of
the Moravian Society, “ to be reserved for ever to the society, in trust, for the
gale use of their Indian converts.

The first scttlement was desiroyed in 1813, by an invading army of Ameri-
cans. A gevere battle was fought in the village, and the noted Indian chief
Teeumaeth, was killel. After which event, the tribe remeved to the opposite
side of the river, in the township of Orford, in the Western Distriet; where they
possess a fract of land, containing ahout 25,000 acres. " At present, there ars
only two orsthree families residing on the old battle ground, on the north side
of tne river. In 1836, these Indians were indueed by Sir F. Head to surrender
a large portion of their lunds, about six miles square, in exchange for an an-
nuicy of £150.

The numter of Indians who belong to the tribe of the Delawares, was 302 in
1837; but owing to a, dissension whicli arose the previous year, relative to the
gale of their lunds, a porden of the community retired to Missouri, United States;
and their present number is only 153. The settlement in Orford is generally
known as Moraviantown.

The Chippewas and Munsees occupy a tract of land, containing ubont 9000
acres, in the wwnship of Carradoe, in the London Distriet. It is only within
the last ten years that the Chippawas have been reclaimed from a waudering
life, and settled in their present Jocutirn. The Mungees have beeu settled sinee
the vear 1809, on land belongine o the Chippewas, with the counsent of that
triba.  Their village is eallerl = Munsce-town.” ‘The present number of Chips
pewas is 373, and of Munsees 242,

The Oneidas are a band of American Indians, who came into Canada in the
year 1840, and have purchased. willi the produce of their former lands and im-
provements, sold to the Americon Government, a trace of ahont 5000 acres, In
the township of Delawsre, in the Loudon Distriet, which is separated by the
River Thames, from the Chippewn and Munsce settlements.  ‘Their number is
436, There are nlso severa! Potinwatamie families, who have fixed their res
dence amoug the Chippewas, duriug the last year; and a band of ahout 500
Renccas, from Touawantee, in tho stute of Néw York, are expected shortly to
form a settlement near their bretiwe:, the Oneidas,
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The Chippewss possess an annuity of £600, granted by the gavernment for-
a surrender of land made in 1832; the Moravians have £150 per annum, in
exchange for land ceded to Sir F. B, Head; the Munsees have no annuity,—
These three tribes partake of Lhe presents. The Oneidas neither possess an
snnuity, nor are entitled to presents; but they brought with them into Canada
a considerable sum of money, received from the American government in pur-
chase of their lands and improvements, which thay lodged in the hands of the
ehief superintendent.

The Moravian Delawares are eollected in a village, which eontains one frame
and thirty-four log-houses, with ten barns, They have 292 acres under enlti-
vation. Their stock consists of 14 oxen, 40 cows and 47 heifers, 60 horses,
&5 sheep, and 200 swine: they possess B waggons, 16 ploughs, 5 harrows, 3 fan-
ning mills, &e.

he Chippewas and Munsees live on small farms, scattered over ‘their tract.
Some of the Chippewas are settled on surveyed lots of 20 acres eaeh, This
tribe occupies 76 Jog houses and six wigwamns, with 25 barns attached. They
have 450 acres under culuvation. Their stock consists of 30 oxen, 27 cows,
44 heifers, 82 horses and colts, and 400 swine. Their agrienltural implements
include 4 waggons and earts, a fanning-mill, 9 ploughs, 9 harrows, &c. They
have a blucksmith’s forge, and two and a half sets of carpenter’s tools,

The Munsees oceupy one frame and 50 log houses, to which are attached 10
barns. They have 269 ucres nnder cultivation. They possess 14 oxen, 50
cows, 30 heiters, 55 horses and colts, and 250 swine, Tbeir implements include
5 waggons, 11 ploughs, 7 harrows, a fanning-mill, &o,

The Oneidas, who are more recently settled, but who hronght with them the
means of purchusing {rom old settlers, occupy 6 frame and 48 log houses, with
4 wigwams; they luve also 5 frame and 15 log barns. They cultivate 333
acves of land. ‘Their stock consists of 64 oXen, 61 cows, 27 heiters, 17 horses,
md 162 swine. Thev possess 14 waggons and carts, 13 ploughs, 16 harrows,
three fanning-mills, two sets of carpenter’s tocls, &e.

Those families who live in wigw:ns do so from necessity, and not from
choice.

A nuwmber of the Chippewas are settled on surveyed lots, as alvendy stated:
but in general each Indian seleets the spet which he wishes to cultivate. und the
chiefs do not intertere. The extent of land cultivated by each family varies
from vne to fifteen ueres.  When a family has no land under cultivaticn, they
depend upon the bounty of their neighhours, wha are always ready to share
with those in want. "Lhey also hunt; and make bowls, brooms and baskets,
which they sell to the whites. 'There is very little deervase in the partiality of
these Indians for hunting and fishing. They usually leave their homes towards
the end of October, und remain away until the beginning af Junvary: they also
spend about 4 month during each spriny in the ehase. They resort to the un-
settled lunds in the London and Western Districts; and jv is prabuhle that as
soon as thuse lnnds ave oceupied, they will be campelled to abundon the chase.
The eftect of the gradual settlemnent of the country has been to assimilale their
habits to those of the whites, and te attuch them to their homes; they now haut
znd fish us near heme as possible.

With regard to their reiigious and moral condition, & very decided improve-
ment Las taken place withiu quite a reeent period. The Delawarcs have been
cmverted from Paganisim sinee the year 1783; they arve all Christians, and
belong to the Church of the United Brethren, who maintain a missionury among
them, The converted Chippewas and Munsees belong to the Chnreh of
Engiand, and the Wesleyan Methodist Chureh; bnt some of them remain
beatheus. The Pottawatamies und Oneidas are for the mest part henthens.

A clergyman wito has ministered among these Indians during the lust seven
years was appointed missionavy in 1340, at a salary of £100, borne oppon the
pariiameutary grant.

The Moravians have a place of warship at their own settlement; the Episco-
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palians and Methodists have each a chapel in the Chippewa and Munsee settle-
ment, and there ia a Methodist chapel in the Oneida settlement.

There is a school in the Moravian settlement; two among the Chippewas and
Munsees, and one among the Oneidas. The former is attended by forty-one
scholars, of whom twenty-three are boys from five to fifteen years of age, and
eighteen girls, from six to fourteen, ¢ schoolmaster is maintained by the

oravian Missionary Society.

The school at Lower Munsee is nnder the control of the Missionary Society
of the Church of England, and the scholars belong to the Chippewa and Munsee
tribes. The schoolmaster receives an annual salary of £50 from the annuity
of the tribe. The school is attended by twenty-one boys from six to fifteen
years of age, and by four girls from 8ix to ten; besides a number of young men
and women who attend occasionally.

The second school for the same two tribes is under the control of the Wesleyan
Methodist Missionary Society in Canada. It is aitended by seventeen boys and
eighteen girls, between six and fourteen years of age, and by three young men.
The school in the Oneida settlement is also under the control of the Wesleyan
Methodist Society; the teacher is an Indian of the Oneida tribe, It is attended
by sixteen boys from six to sixteen years of age, and by seventeen girls from
five to fifteen,

These tribes are on the increase since their eonversion to Christianity, Their
health is generally good, although many are stated to die from want of proper
nourishment and medical treatment: discases are on the decrease among them.
The average number of children born to a couple is eight; of whom about three
are reared. A small number only are half-breeds.

These Indians are under the general charge of & superintendent of the Indian
department, who resides at Delaware.

THAMESVILLE,

A small Settlement in the township of Camden West, situated on the River
Thames, fifteen miles east from Chatham. The western road passes through
it. It contains about fifty inhabitants, a grist and saw mill, and tavern,

Post Office, post every day.

THORAH,

A Township in the Home District; is bounded on the north by the Talbot
River; on the west hy Lake Simeoe; on the south by the township of Brock;
and on the east by Eldon. In Thorah 15,970 acres are taken up, 2501 of which
are under cultivation. This township contains cxcellent laud, the timber on
which is mostly hardwood. There is a small village on the lake shore, called
# Beaverton,” where is a post office. The steamboat Beaver stops here, but
eannot approach the shore, on aceount of the shelving nature of the bank; there
not being a sufficient depth of water close in shore. There are some good, and
prettily situated clearings on the banks of the lake. T'here are one grist and
two saw mills in the township.

Population in 1842, 6760.

Ratable property in the township, £9470.

THORNHILL.

A Settlement on Yonge Street, eleven miles from Toronio. A branch of the
River Don passes through it, on wbich is a grist and saw mill, and tannery.
There are also in the settlement, three stores, a manufactory for making thresh-

ing machines and other machinery, one blacksmith, one waggon maker, two
shoemakers, one tailor,
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THOROLD.

A Township in the Niagara Distriet; is bounded on the east by the township
of Stamford; on the north by Grantham and & small portion of {outh; on the
west by Petham; and on the south by Crowiand. In Thorold 23,389 aeres are
taken up, 11,678 of which are under cultivation., The Welland River divides
the township from Crowland. This is one of the best settled townships in the
Niugara District, containing a great number of excellent, well cleared farms,
Most of the land is roliing.  The Welland Canal is carried through the town-
ship, and has added greatly to its prosperity. The villages of 'Thorold, Port
Robinson, Allanbarg, and St. Johns are situated in the township; and there are
eight grist and five saw mills in the township,

Population in 1841, 2284; who are a mixtare of Canadians, Americans, Irish,
Scotch, English, and Welsh,

Ratable property in the township, £49,659,

THOROLD.

A Village in the township of Thorold, situated on the summit of the monn-
‘tain, four miles from St. Catharines. It was commenced in the year 1826, and
now contains ahout 1000 inhabitants. The Welland Canal runs close past the
village. There are three churches and chapels in Thorold, viz., Episcopal,
Catholie, and Methodist.

Post Office, post three times a-week.

Professions and Trudes—Two physicians and surgeons, two grist mills, (one
do. in progress), one cement mill, one brewery, nine stores, seven taverns, one
tannery, one saddler, one chemist and druggist, three waggon makers, three
blacksmiths, two painters, two cabinet makers, two tinsmitbs, eight shoemakers,
one baker, hatter, two barbers, three tailors, one ladies’ school.

THURLOW,

A Township in the Vietoria District; is bounded on the east by the township
of Tyendenaga; on the north by Huntingdon; on the west by Sidney; and on
the south by the Bay of Quinte. In Thurlow 46,984 acres are taken vp, 18,254
of which are uuder cultivation, The River Moira enters the township at its
north-east corner, passes through the township to its south-west corner, where
i it enters the Bay of Quintd. 'T'bis township is well settled, prineipally by U. E.
: Loyalists and tbeir descendants, who have very good farms. The town of
Belleville is situated in the south-west corner of the township, on the Bay of
Quintd. There are eight grist and fifteen saw mills in Thurlow.
Population in 1842 (exclusive of Belleville), 2,649.
Ratable property in the township, (including Belleville), £79,066.
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: i TILBRURY EAST.

: A Township in the Western Distriet; is bounded on the north-east by the
township of Raleigh; on the north by the River Thames; on the west by Til-
bury West ; and on the south by Romney—the south-east corner of the town-

, ship having a froatage on Lake Frie. In East Tilbury 16,999 acres are taken
i up, 1,315 of which are under caltivation. A low, wet prairie or marsh, about
three miles in breadth, which is used extensively for grazing, borders on the
. Thames. Two or three branehes of the Thames run through the township
7 There is a Catholic church in the towuship, sitnated on the Thames, about
eleven miles helow Chatham. Three thousand nine hundred aeres of Crown
i lands are open for sale in the towmnship, at 8s. cnrrency per acre; and abount
000 acres are possessed by the Canada Company.
Population in 1844, 540; nearly half of whom are French Canndiaus.
Ratable property in the towunship, 6,550.
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TILBURY WEST.

A Townehip in the County of Kent; is bounded on the east hy.the townships.
of Tilbury East and Romney; on the north by Lake 8t. Clair; on the west by
Rochester; and on the south by Mersea. In Tilbury West 10,607 acres are
taken up, 707 of which are under cultivation. A wet prairie or marsb, from
three to four miles in width, borders on the leke, and extends along the whole
breadth of the township: this is-useful for grazing cattle, but is not £it for enlti-
vation. The remainder of the land is rich and !fq'ertile; and the timber is alto-
gether hardwood. Three thousand seven hundred acres of Crown lands are
open for sale in Tilbury West, at 8s. currency per acre; and the Canada Com-
pany possess about 4000 acres in the township.

Population in 1844, 437; nearly two-thirds of whom are French Canadians.

Ratable property in the township, £4,339.

TILSONBURG.

A small village in the south-east corner of the township of Dereham, situated
on Otter Creek, fifteen miles from Ingersol. It contains about one hundred
inhabitants, who have a Canadian Wesleyan Church,

Post Office, post three times a week,

Professions and Trades—Grist and saw mill, carding machipe and folling
will, axe factory, one store, one tavern, two tanneries,. three blacksmiths, one
tailor, one shoemaker.

TINY.

A Township in the Simeoe Distriet; is bounded on the north and west hy the
Georgian Bay and Nottawasaga Bay ; on the South by the township of Flos ;
and on the east hy Tay., In 'Tiny 8,243 acres are taken up, 892 of which are
under cuitivation. This is a long irregularly shaped township. A bay, called
Thunder Bay, projects for about two and a half miles into the north of the
township ; and Penetanguishine Bay enters it from the township of Tay, cutting
aeross the town-line, thns dividing the township into two portions. A small
lake, containing about 8GO0 acres, is situated near the south line of the township;
anit there are three smaller fakes in the north of the township. With the
exception of the settlers in the village of Penetanguishine, the inhabitants are
principally half French haif Indian. In Tiny there are 21,200 acres of Crown
lands for disposal, at 8s, ¢’y per acre,

Population in 1842, 230.

Ratahle property in the township, £4,610..

TORBOLTON!.

A Township in the Bathurst District; is bounded on the north and north-east
by the Ottawa River; on the sonth-east by the township of March; and on the
south-west hy Fitzroy, In Torbolton 7,920 acres are talen up, 1,097 of which
are under cultivation. But little is doue in this township in the way of agrieni-
tural operations, the inhabitants being principally engaged in lumbering. Four
thousand six hundred and thirty-three acres of Crown lands are open for sale
in Torbelton, at 8s. ¢’y per acre.

Population in 1842, 389,

Ratable property in the township, . £3,716.

TORONTO.

A Township in the Home District; is bounded on the east by the township
of Etohicoke and a small portion of the Gore of Toronto;- on the north-west by
Chinguaconsy; on the south-west by Trafalgar; and on the south-east by Lake
Ontario. In Toronto 59,267 acres are taken up, 28,468 of which are under cul-
tivation. This is one of the best seitled townships in the Home Distriet: it
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wontaing a large portion of very excellent land, and a number of well cultivated
farms.  For from two to three miles from the lake the land is light and sandy,
and the timber principally pine; aflerwards, it becomes rolling, and the timber
the best kinds of hardwood. ‘L he Rivers Creditand Etobiccke both run through
the township. The viliage of Cooksville is situated in the township on the
Dundas Street: and the villages of Springfield, Streetsville, Chnrehville, and
Port Credit, on the River Credit—the first 1s sitnated on Dundas Street, and
the last at the mouth of the River Credit. There are four grist and twenty-one
saw mills in the township,

Population in 1842, 5,377,

Ratable property in the township, £79,585.

TORONTO GORE.

A Township in the Home District; is bounded on the east by the township
of Vaughan and a small portion of York; on the north-west by Albion; and
on the sonth-west by Chingnacousy and a small portion of Etohicoke. In
Toronto Gore 18,206 acres ave taken up, 7.784 of wlich are nnder cultivation,
This is a wedge-shaped township, of smail size, with its base towards the town-
ship of Aibiun. It is watered by branches of the River Humher, and containg
some good land. It is well settled, priacipally by Irish and Scotch, with a
few Canadians; and a large portion of the township is under cuitivation. There
is one grist mitl in the township.

Populution in 1842, 1,145.

Ratable property in the township, £16,756.

TOBONTO.

The District Town of the Howme District, sitnated in the south-east of the
township ol York, on a bay of Lake Ontario. The neighbourhood first com-
menced settling about fifty years ago; but for some years it advanced very
slowly. In 1709 the whole district, which then included a large portion of the
surronnding country, which has since been forined into separate districts, con-
tained only 224 inlabitants. In 1817 Teronto (then Little York) contuined a
population amounting to 1200; in 1826 it had increased to 1,677; and in 1830,
to 2860. Since then its progress has heen rapid; and in 1842 it contained
15,336 inlabitants; and in 1845, 19,706.

Toronto became the capital of the Upper Province in the year 1797; aod
remaiucd so till after the nnion of the Upper and Lower Provinces, when the
scut of government was removed to Kingsten in 1841 by Lord Sydenham.
Had this event taken plice ten years sooner, it might have had a scrious effect
upon the prosperity of the town; but in 1841 ‘Poronto had become a place
of too great commereial importance to feel much il effect from the removal
of the government offices, and the loss of the expenditure of a few thousand
pounds per annum,

The situation of that portion of the town bordering on the ;bay is rather low,
parl.icuiarl{ in the east of the ecity, towards the River Don; in the west the
banks arc higher, and the land generally slopes gradvally up from the water’s
edge; so that the further back fromt the bay, the higher, drier, and more healthy
doee the situation hecomne,

Toronto was incorpovated in the year 1834, By the act of incorporation the
ecity was divided into five wards, called St. George’s, St. Patrick’s, St. Andrew's,
St. David's, and St. Lewrence’s—each ward to have the power to eleet two
aldermen und two common counciimen, who are to choose the mayor from
amongst the aldermen. The corporation to have the power to make hy-laws
for the regulation of the internal police of the city, &e.

The improvement: made in the City of Toronto within the last two years
have been astonishing; many new buildinygs (and those the handsomest in the
eity) have been erected; and the side-walks, several of which were in a very
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dilapidated state, and some almost impassable, have been relaid and mach im-
roved. Toronto now containg ninety-one streets, some of which are of great
ength; the planked portion of King Street being about two miles long. The

extreme length of the city, from the Don Dridge to the western limits of the

city, is upwards of three miles. Property which was purchased a few years
ginee for 2 meve trifle, has increased wonderfully in value; and muny liouses in

King Street pay a ground rent of £100. Rents are gererslly as high as in the

best business situations in London, England; and some houscs in good sitwations

for business let at from £200 to £250 per annum.

Among tbe public buildings thosc particularly deserving of notice are
the new front to Osgoode Hall, the banks, and St. George’s Chnrech. The
Lunatic Asylum and the Catholic Catlhedral, now erecting. will he cxtensive
and handsome buildings. Bepides these, many of the privale bnildings have
added greatly to the embellishment of the city and its envirens. The new stores
at prescnt erecting in King Street, from the design of Mr. Thomas the archi-
tect, will be when finished the handsomest buildings of the kind in Canada, and
equal to anything to be seen in England.

The puhlie buildings in Toronto comprise the Jail, a large stone building,
gitnated in the eust end of the town; the Court-house, whieh is of bhrick, and
contains the district uffices; the old Market-house, over which are the Newsroom
and Athenmum (or Public Library); the new City Hall, where are kept the
oftices of the corporation officers, and the police office; the Upper Canada
College; the old Parlinment Buildings (part of which is at present oceupied
by the officials of King’s College) ; the Hospital; and the Post Office. There
are within the city twenty-one churches and chapels; of these five are Epis-
copal, one Churchi of Scotland, one Preshyterian Cburch of Canada, one
United Secession Presbyteriun, two Roman Catholie, two British Wesleyan,
one Primitive Methodist, two Canadian Wesleyan, one Congregational, one
Christian, one Unitarian, one Baptist, one Discipies, and two for coloured
people—Methodist and Bapiist, There are also a Honse of Industry, Me-
ehanic’s Institute, two Fireman's Halis, Fish Market, Cnstom-house and
Barracks.

The city is lighted with gas, and there are water-works for the conveyance of
water from the bay to the different houses; and there are also in the city regu]ur
stations for coaches and cabs.  Steamboats leave daily for Kingston, Hamilton,
Niagara, Queenston and Lewiston, and Rochester, calling at Port Hope, Cobourg
and other intermediate places; und stages leave daily for all parts of the country.
Omnibuses have been established to run regularly to Riechmond Hill, Thornhill,
Coolesville and Streetsville, and every hour from the market place to Yorkville;
and a horse ferry-boat plies during the day between the city and the opposite
island.

Amongst the different societics and institutions are to be found the Free-
masons, who huve a provineial grand lodge; the St. George's, St. Patrick’s and
8t. Andrew’s Societies, St. Patrick’s Benevelent Society, three Odd Fellows'
Lodges, a Home District Agricultural Society, Toronto Hariicultural. Soeiety,
the Medico-chirurgical Society, Toroato Athenmwum. Churen Socicty, Bible
Bocicty, Mechanic’s Institute, a Dispensuary, 8 Theatre (the performers in
which are principaily amateurs), a ‘Temperance Reformation Society, a Turf
Club, Cricket Club, Curling Cluh and Chess Club, four Fire Companies with
four cngines, two Hook and Ladder Companies, a Hose Company, and a Pro-

erty Protection Company. There ure also « Home District Savings Bank, a

ire and Life Assurunce Company, aud a Mutual Tire Insurance Company.—
The University of Kiny’s College is cinpowered to grant degrees in the several
arts and sciences ; the Presbyterians have a Theological Seminary, and the
Congregationalists an Academy.

Ten newspapers are pnblished in Toronto; viz.,, British Canadian, Herald,
Patriot, British Colonist, Exawminer, Christian Guardian, Star, Mirror, Dunner
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and Globe. The following moothly periodicals are also published here—the
Unper Canada Jurist, British American Cultivator, and Sunduy-school Guardiun.

There ure fifteen eommon schools in operation in the eity.

The following Crovernwent aud District Oilices ave kept in Toronto:—Judge
of District Court, Sheritf, Clerk of Peace, Treasurer, Registrar, Inspector of
Livensas, Crown Lands Agent, Judge of Sorrogate Court, Remstrar of ditto,
Disteiet Clerk, Clerk of Distriet Court, Deputy Clerk of Crown, Superintendent
of Sclols, Probate Office, Clergy Reserves” Office, Commissariat Oflice, Ord-
nance Office, Royal Engineers’ Office, Marriage License Ofiice, Indian Office,
Emizrant Agent, and Board of Works.

Professions und Trades.—Twenty physicians and sargeons, sixty-five lawyers,
eighteen wholesale merchants, thirty-foar dvy goods and general stores, eleven
hardware stores, eighty-three procery and provision stores, two china and glass
stores, one stove manuiactory, six booksellers and stationers, two spothecaries,
one mannfzeturing chemist, one steaun grist will, nine chem ists and draggists,
eleven distilleries, four foundries, thirteen breweries, three tanueries, one starch
maker. four architeets, two surveyors, five artists and portrait painters, one
wood engraver, three eugravers, two drawing masters, four music masters, one
dancing master, thirtecn printers, three accountants, six land agents, two den-
tists, one hundred and sevep hotels, inns and taverns, eleven boarding hoyses,
one optician, one cloth manutacturer, nine watchmakers, nine pardeners and
forists, one wine merchant, one masie stare, two oil-cloth manufactirers, one
silversmith, three jewellers, two conch makers, one finding store, sivieen anc-
tioneers, one nail maker, seven axe makers, one patent fearherdresser, 8 x euiriers,
two farriers. eight soap and eandle makers, one brass: tounder, two 1ron turners,
oue ivory turner, one paper maker, one fanning-mill maker, one beat builder,
Lot and cold baths, one bellows maker. one dyer, two dairics, three Irench
polishers, thirteen whoelwrizlits and waggon makers, seven boolkbinders, one
brush maker, two broom makers, nincteen saddlers, sixteen builders, two rope
malcers, four gun malers, one camphive oil maker, two veterinary surgeons,
fi ve plumbers, two sail makers, one millwright. one scale maker, ten confec-
tioners, five turners, four pietnre-frame makers and gilders, one pump maker,
seven maltsters, three tobaceonists, five wpholsterers, four livery stables, nine
shoe stores, nine hatters, forty-nine shoemakers, twenty-five cabinet inakers, two
entlers, once scuiptor, one chair maker, nincteen bakers, two greengrocers,
twenty-three tin and copper smiths, six coopers, two marble workers, thirty«
seven blacksmiths, twenty-seven butchers, forty-seven elothiers and tuilore, one
farvior, oue faney silk worker, three sansage makers, one blacking maker, one
basker maker, twenty-seven painters, two locksimiths, twenty-three milliners and
dressmakers, fonr ladies” schnols, one eustom-house broker. Banks—the head
quarters of the Upper Canada Bank and Home Distriet Savings Bank, and
branches of the Banks ot British North America, Montreal, City Bank of Mon-
treal, Commereial and Gore: and the following companies have offiees here—
Home Distriet Mutual Fire Insnrance Company, British Ameriea Fire and Life
Assurance Company. Phenix Five Insurance C aunpany (England), Alliance
Fire Tnsurance Company {ro.), Britannia Fire Insurance Company (do.), Eagle
Life Insurance Company (do.), Montresl Fire and Inland Marine Insurance
Company, Marive Insarance Cowpany, Canada Company, Gas and Water
Comnpany.

Prineipal Tacerns—* Macdonald’s Hotel,” * North American IJotel,” and
* Wellingron Hotel,"—besides which there are mnany exeellent inns and taverns,
some of which, in point of accommodation and comfort ure nearly, if not quite
equal to the above.

Principel Boarding Houses—Club [Tonse, corner of King and York Streets;
Mrs. Ienderson, Queen Streety Mys Tolien, 46 King Street East; Mrs, Hut-
chinson, Adelaide Sireet; W. Hall, 5 King StwcetEast; —. O’Brien, corner of
Wellington and Bay Streets; John Chapmau, Bishop’s Buildings, Adelaide
Sereet.
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Land Agents—A. B, Townley, 7 King Street East; H. E. Nicolls, 59 King
Street East; F. Lewis, 36 King Street West; W. Osborne, corner of King and
Jordan Streeta. and T. Radenhurst, Front Street.

The following Steasbouts are owned at Torunto :

Name. Tonnage.
- X5 701 1 R ORI . 1.
Princess Royal..ooviiiieiinniiiianininnni,, 347
Soverelgn 314
Eclipse... NS O | .
City of T'oroubo.. se R S e S e 1248
Chief Justice Robmsou.. 815
CODOUTE uerrersreerrrrronrsnpsssserennssnsrnansnnsansanspvnrunsass. FIT
Tra.veller......... casssasannianios SO0
Transidinaiaaig SRR s 2B
BATMOTECH purvs iniwm e kr s b s m AN ERSRAHE R FER S 221
Despateh v mmnimisive 186
Queen VICtoTiB,..vvveeernrnrnns oos verieeres 149

B T T T

ramrrden, Sedadranannn

ceerrenne. 3209

Besides several schooners, the number and tonnage of which could not be
ascertained.

The following are the Rates of Toll at Toronto Harbour :
Deucription of Property.

Total Tonnage......

a1
a
-
o

&,
Merchandise, per ton, we:ght OF measurement, per‘h]ll of ladmg 1
Flour, per barrel... e PSRt |

sters in shell, per Ao P R e e RN PO |
Cider, per do.., P . 0
Apples and other Fresh Fruit, pcrdo S e 0
Lime and Gypsum, per do... SR s sy mr s nr s
Potatoes and other Ven'etnbles.. per B T
Pork, per dou il it i
KSR PRIOL i 06s asnsmisaianmdinispniyasisemss s ingss i dnsiinanin
Salt, per do...ccoevevinnrinranes JR— RN RSO PR
Whlskey. Pt A0 i R T s g
Sheep and Pigs, each s O R S
Horses and Horned La.ttle. S T
‘Wood, per cord..... R DA e T T A b e
Stnne, PET tOIS€ . v iiaiirvaiaains
Lumber, per 1000 feet board measure... Swoss oA

Amount of Harbour Dues collected at the Port of Toronto, during the
years 1843 and 1844,

s
OB NN LI LR NN LR

Date,

Tatal Amount
Collected.

Expense of
Collection.

Net Lievenue.

1843
1844..0neeennnns

TETTTTT T e

£ 5 d
571 15 0
712 3 8

£ s d

94 13 5
121 10 11

£ 5 d
4477 1 7
590 12 9
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Exports from the Port of Toronto for the year 1845,

TN v imst psma s ra S T 153,226 barrels,
NVRBAE,.. ooicarsviinnsbitise sossinvasssviiinie 53,787 bushels.
F ) T LT 363 ‘harrels.
PeRg s e e T 528 bushels.
B0 P e e A L Al 1 2057 barrels.

3 e 300 Dbarrels.
IH0: s eiia syt R R 120 tiercus.
T BNS «rvvernverree seemtarnnversns sanssbrronsnss 1 45,500 pounids.
Timothy Beed.....ccivuivmnciincinincininn 861 barrels.
Butter, g prsasaiinisaiamasiviiig 555 kegs,
Lard oooeriversreeersssninmnarnarrnrassansennsan 2 tierces.
B 95 keps.
Woolmnmonyseminisi e 2 tons.
Sheep Pelts... . viineirecnnirinrisreaeeneenion 3380

Maple Bugar ..ccecvveiiieciiniririnnorranea. 29  barrels.
Calf SKing ,oinsanmeiiissa 12,6t pounds,
Sole Leather .oievveiierersnrsnrscenrimnnns 9,540 do.
Salted: HIER .. ovvessnisansaasisnsssins o 42  hhds.
Furs and Peltries ....ooocevviviiiiieiinnans £2500 value,
SIIDEIES tavreerrnierrariiririiirrrrennnras 150 hundles,
i1 L 1 S 350 boxes.

Lumber v ersiinnen 1,580,000 feet.

Estimated Value of Exports.......cocoene. £187,700

TOSSORONTIO.

A Township in the Simeoe District; is bounded on the north by the township
of Suunidale; ou the west by Mulmitr; on the south by Adjuala; and on the east
by Essa. [n Tossovontio 3781 ucres are taken up, 563 of which are under cul-
tivation. In the soath of the township, with the exeeption of a small cedar
swamp, the land is good; farther north it becomes hilly and broken, and con-
tinues bad for four or five miles, the timber being principally pine and hemlock;
towards the north of the township it improves, The township is well watered.
In Tossorountio 8670 acres of Crown Jands are open for sale, at 8. cuvrency per
acre. There has as yet been no return of the population in this township,

Ratable property in the township, £1667.

TOWXNSEND,

A Township in the Talbot Distriet; is bounded on the east by the township
of Wulpole; on the north by Oakland and a small portion of Brantford; on the
w st by Windham; and on the south by Woodhouse, In 'Fowusend 47,871
acres are taken up, 16,623 of wiich are under cultivation. Thisisa well set-
tled cownship. containing exeellent larid, nnd many well cleared farms, There
is noiavee viver ia the towaship, but it is watered hy some good mill streams, on
wnich are one zrist and eleven saw milis, The village of Waterford is situated
a little west of the centre of the township,

Populatiou in 1842, 2517,

Ratable property in the township, £46,210.

TRAVALGAR.

A Township in the Gare Distriet; is bounded on the north-cast by the town-
ship of "Toronto; an the novth-west by Esquesing; on the south-west by Nelson;
and on the south-zast by Lake Ootario. In Trafalgar, 70,115 acres are taken
np, 28,180 of which are under enltivation. The township is watered by the
Twaelve-mile Creek and the Sixteen-mile Creek. Trafalgar is a well setiled
township, contsining numerous well cleared and cultivated farms, most of
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which have good orchards. Tbe land in general, with the exception of that
bordering on the lake, which is light and sandy, is of excellent quality. Timber
—principally hardwood, with a little pine intermixed, The villoges of QOakville,
Bronté, and Palermo are in the township; the two former situated on the
lake shore road, and the latter on Dundas Street. ‘There are seven grist
and twenty-three saw mills in the township.

Population, i

Ratable proporty in the township, £108,789.

TRENT, or TRENT-PORT.

A Village in the sonth-east corner of the township of Murray, twelve miles
west from Belleville, sitnated at the entranee of the River Trent into the Bay
of Quinte, Tt is principally supported by the lumber trade; immense quantities
of timher being hrought down the river, An excecllent bridge has been con-
structed across the River Trent at this place. The Toronto and Kingston
stares pass throungh the village; and, during the season, 2 steamboat leaves
daily for Kingston, ealling at Pieton, Belleville, Bath, Amherst Island, and
other Janding places on its ronte. There are two churehes in the village, Epis-
copal and Catholie,

Population, about 350,

Post Office, post every day.

Professions and Trades.—One physician and surgeon, two lawyers, eight
stores, three taverns, one distilery, three asheries, two waggon makers, three
blacksmiths, one tinsmith, two tailors, three shoemakers, There is a grist and
saw mill about one mile from the village.

TROUT LAKE.—(See RiceE LAKE.)

TUCKERSMITH.

A Towuship in the Huron Distriet; is bounded on the north-east by Hullett
and McKillop; on the west by Stanley and Hay; on the south by Ushorne;
and on the south-east by Hibhert. The land in the greater part of the township
is good. Two hranches of the Bayfield River pass through the township, om
whieh there are two grist and one saw mills, Tuckersmith contains 42,308
acres, 15,892 of which are leased or sold, of which 2293 acres are under culti-
vatomn.

Popnlation, 599.

Ratable property in the township, £9451.

TUDOR.

A Townsbip in the Victoria Distriet ; is bounded on the east hy the townsbip
of Grimsthorpe ; on the north by nnsurveyed lands; on the west by the town-
ship of Lake; and on the sonth by Madoe. This township is pot yet opened
for sale, and ao return has yet been made from it.

TURKEY CREEK.
A Stream running from east to west, nearly through the centre of the town-
ship of Sandwich, into the Detroit River. There is a grist mill op it.

TYENDENAGA.

A Township in the Vietoria Distriet, is bounded on the east by the township
of Richmoad; on the north by Hungerford; on the west by Thurlow; and on
the sonth by the Bay of Quintd, In Tyendenaga 41,226 acres are taken up,
13,717 of which are under cultivation, 'The Salmon River enters the tawnship
shout the centre of its eastern border, runs across the township fo its south-west
corner, where it enters the Bay of Quinté. There are two small lakes in the
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north-east corner of the township. Tyendenaga is well settled, principally by
Irish emigrants. The village of Shannonville is in the south-west corner of the
township, on the eastern road. There are two grist and eight saw-mills in the
‘township.

Population in 1842, 2848,

Ratable property in the township, £34,076.

TUSBORNE.

A Township in the HHuron Distrivt; is bounded on the north and uorth-east
by Tuckersmith, Ilibbert, and Fullarton ; on the south-east by Blanshard; on
the west by 1lay, and Stephen; and on the south by Biddulph. The greater
part of the township is good land. A branch of the River Sable runs throngh
the north of the township. Ushorne contains 33,576 acres; 5,650 of which are
Ieased or sold; of which 728 are under enltivation, There are in the township,
onc grist, and one saw mill,

Populuation, 283.

Ratable properiy in the township, £3071 Bs.

UXBRIDGE.

A Township in the Home Distriet, is bounded on the east by the township of
Reach; on the north by Scott; on the west by Whitchurch and Markham ; and
on the south tby Pickering. Tn Uxbridge 14,128 acres are taken up, 3337 of
which are under cultivation. This township contains some good land ; and a
portion of itis of very secondary qnality. ‘There is a large lake near the
north-west corner, situated partly in Uxbridge and partly in Whitchurch
Timber, a mixture of hardwood and pine. Two hundred and ten acres of
crown lands are open for sale in Uxbridge, at 8s. eurreney per acre. There
are one grist, and four saw mills in the township.

Population in 1842, (inelnding the township of Scott), 810.

Ratable property in the township, £11,951.

VANKLEEK HILL.

A Village in the west of the township of West Hawkesbury, cight miles
south from the Ottawa River, it contains about 250 inhabitants, who are prin-
eipally of Duteh or German extraction. There are in the village a steam grist
mill, carding machine and eloth factory, saleratus factory, two asheries, one
foundry, six stores and two taverns.

VAUGHAN.

A Township in the Home District, is hounded on the east by the township of
Markham; on the north by King; on the west by the Gore of Toronte; and
on the south by York., In Vanghan 60,496 acres are taken up, 19,766 of which
are nnder cultivation, This is a township of exeellent land ; it is well settled
and contains numerous well cleared and highly cultivated farms. The land is
generally rolling, and the timber a mixcure of hardwood and pine. The town-
ship is watered by branches of’ the River Humher. The Yonge Street Road
separates the township from that of Markham. On the road, partly in Vanghan
and partly in Markham, are the settlements of Riehmond Hill, and Thornhill.
There are six grist and twenty-five saw mills in the township.

Popnlation in 1842, 4,300,

Ratable property in the township. £60,942,

VERULAM.

A Township in the Colhorne District, is bounded on the east by the township
of Harvey ; ou the north by Sommerville; on the west by Fenelon ; and on
tbe south by Emily. In Verulam 9,298 acres are taken up, 956 of which are
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under cultivation. A large lake called “Sturgeon Lake", stretches across the

centre of the township, from west to east. A small lake, situated about the

centre of the south border of the township, has 8 communication with Sturgeon

Lake. There is much pine timber in this township. Verulwmn contains a mixed

population. There is one grist mill, and one saw mill in the township. 8817

acres of crown lands are open for sale in Verulam, at 8s. eurrency per acre.
Ratable property in the township, £4206.

VESPRA.

A Township in the Simcoe District, is bounded on the north by the town-
ghip of Flos; on the west hy Sunnidale; on the south by Essa, Ionisfil, and
Kempenfeldt Bay. In Vespra 13,040 acres are taken up, 1722 of which are
under cultivation. The Nottawasaga River runs through the north-west corner
of the township, and Willow Creuk, a branch of the Nottawasaga, flows through
pearly the centre of the township, and might easily be made navigable to
within nine miles of Barrie. One branch of Willow Creek derives its source
from a small lake abont four miles from Barrie, in the south-east corner of the
township. The land on the bay is poor, sandy and stouy, but a short distanee
back it beging to improve, and the interior of the township contains good land.
The town of Barrie is situated near the south-east corner of the township, on
Kempenfeldt Bay, and the village of Kempenfeldt about two miles below it.
In Vespra 11,400 acres of Crown lands are open for sale, at 8s. currency per
acre. 'Thereare in the township one grist and two saw mills, and one distil~
lery.

%opulat'mn in 1842, 571.

Ratable property in the township, £10,873.

VICTORIA BISTRICT.

Consists of the County of Hastings, which returns a member to the House of
Assembly, and comprises the following townships—Elzevir, Grimsthorpe, Hun-
gerford, Huntingdon, Lake, Marmora, Madoc, Rawdon, Sydoey, Tudor, Thur-
low, and T'yendenaga. It is bounded on the east by the Midland District; on
the north by unsurveyed lands; on the west hy the €Colborne end Newcastle
Districts; and ou the south by the Bay of Quinté.

The district is watered by the Trent, the Moira, and the S8almon Rivers, and
their branches; and there are numerous small lakes scattered over it.

A large portion of the district consists of excellent land, and the townships of
Sydney, Thurlow, and Tyendenaga conutain many fine farms.

Iron ore of superior gquality exists in the townships of Marmora and Madoe ;
and in the former township a bed of lithographie stone has been discovered,
whieh. after being examined and tested by a lithographer in London (England),
was pronounced of excellent quality; but I am not aware if the bed has yet been
qnarried.

Clearing is going on rapidly in the district; and large quantities of potash are
made. Eleven thousand five hundred acres of land werc brought into cultiva-
tion between January, 1842, and January, 1844,

The district is settled principally by Insh and Scoteh, U. E. Loyalists and
their descendants. and Canadians. .

Belleville, the district town, is a thriving place. The only other villages in
the distriet ave Shannonville, in Tyendenaga; and a sinail settlement in each of
the townships of Madoc and Marmora.

Sixty-five thousand and eighty-three neres of Crown lands are open for sale
in the Vietoria District, at s, curreney per acre: to purchase any of which
application must be made to the Crown Lands Agent, at Belleville,

Population in 1842, 15,842; since when it has probably increased one-fifth.

o v
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The following abstract from the assessment rolls, will show the rate of
increase and iinprovement in the district :

| |
No, of MiLLe Oxen 4 yezu'sl Horned Cattle  Amonat of
Date. Acres IMHch Cows,| old, ad NHom % to 4 Ratable
Cultivated, — 7~ | upwards, . Years old, + Property.
Grist. | Saw, ] i
4 |
1842 | 61,098 17 30 5564 1850 27342 200,264
1843 | 63,705 17 ar ‘ 5753 1985 2617 - 206,498
1844 | 72,630 | 21 39 |. 6124 2026 2609 1 225,819
(‘memmenf and District Ofﬁcert in the Victoria District.

Judge of District Court..uvveruneeeiraanennn Wm. Smart ............ Belleville,
-1 EET 1 SO [ W § 8 Moodie ...... Do,
Clerk of Pace ..oovorsosesmoessessoorrss W. Fitzgibbon ......... Deo.
TTEASITET oovvvavnrrinrearrnrnsessisnseesnns . Philip Ham ....... caw Do
Judge of Surrogate Court... veee J. B, Crowe ............ Murray.
Registrar of Qm-rorrale COUTt vvrvevrre W, Bowen..oovoeiiie  Fraokford.
Do. of County of Hastings......... . A Mcliean o
Deputy Registrar ....oovveevimiicinnnneene BoDougallioea.eee... Belleville.,
Inspector of Licenses.......ccocouner.eeee. A Marshall ..., Do
Collector of Customns.....ccoiievieenenreen.. Henry Haldwin......... Do,
Crowp Lands Agent.....coceiveveeiaenne.. Francis MeAnnany ... Do
[ospector of Potash ...ovcvvevereiieiennne. . Thos. Parker ......... Da.
District Clerk..ioaiviiieiiinniniinennn, . P OReily.iiiiiiniinn. Do,
Deputy Clerk of Crown .......... . W_I Poutou ......... Do
Warden oiiiieniisivisanioanerniaras Wo HBROD L vaveeiiene Do,

P. O'Reily.iiniinens Do
Coroners...., iieveiiirnernnine g W. H. Ponten ......... Do.

John Dougall ......... Do.

Number of Common Scliools in oppmrmrz in the DJ&!T?:!-—-—TI]IITIO\& reven;
Sydnev, eight: Tycendenaga, sixtecn; Rawdon, seven; Huntingdon, sixs Iqu-
gerford, four; Madoe, five; Murmm-a! two. Total, ﬁt‘ty-ﬁve- The town of
Belleville hus not come under the late act, not having raised an equivalent to
the grant.

VIENNA,

A Village in the township of Bavham, sitnated on Otter Creek, three miles
north fromn Port Burwell, in the midst of a hilly conntry.  The Jumber trade is
carried on very exlenswcly in the vieinity, and is the p.uwlpal support of the
village. Vienna was first settled ubout ton years since, and now contains wbout
300 iuhabitants. Churches and chapels. three, viz., Episeopal and two Metho-
dist; and there is also a Baptist chapel ahont one mile from the vilia; ze,

Post Off ce, post three tines a-wek,

Professions and Trodes, —One grist mill, three saw mills, one physieian and
surgeon, carding machine and fulling mill, one dntl]lcry, one tarnery, eight
stores, two taverns, twn wageon Tlld.k(l‘s. two cahinet makers, four blacksmiths,
one selddler, one till:-.mith. tirree slioomakers, two tailors,

Prineipal Tuvern—* Red Lion.”

VITTORIA.
A village situated near the south-cast corngr of the township of Charlotteville,
nearly three miles from Lake Erie. and seven miles from Simeoe. [t was laid
out in 1816; and was for a short time the district town of the London Distrieg
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till the removal of the district offices to London, in 1826, The registry office
for the county of Norfolk is kept here. There are three churches and chapels,
viz. Episcopal, Presbyterian, and Baptist. A good mill stream runs through
the village, on which it is intended to erect two grist mills during the present
year. There are two carding machines and fulling mills about half a mile from
the village,

Population, about 300,

Post Office, post six times a-week,

Professions and Trades.—T'wo physicians and surgeons, one lawyer, one
distillery, two tanneries, three stores, two taverns, three tailors, four waggon
makers, four blacksmiths, four shoemakers, two'saddlers, one cabinet maker.

WAINFLEET.

A Township in the Niagara District, is bounded on the cast by the township
of Humberstone ; on the north by Pelham, and Gammsborough; on the east
by Moulton and a small portion of Caistor and Canborough; and on the south
by Lake Erie. In Wainfleet 22,357 acres are taken up, 6,404 of which are
under cultivation. The township is separated from Pelham and Gainsborongh
by the Welland River, The Grand River feeder of the Welland Canal passes
through nearly the centre of the township. A large tamarack and eranberry
swamp stretches across the towoship, a little to the south of the feeder. There
ig a small settlement called Marshville in the south of the towuship, on the
feeder, and there are also two saw mills in the township.

Population in 1841, 1147, who are principally Canadians, with a few Dutch,
Irish, and English.

Ratable property in the townghip, £19,890,

. WALLACEBURGH.

A Settlement in the township of Sombra, situated at the forks of Bear Creek.
nine miles from the River St. Clair, and about seventeen from Chatham. The
road from Cbatham to Port Sarnia passes through it. The north and west
branches of Bear Creek uuite at this spot, aud each of them hasa depth of
from twelve to twenty feet water, Wallaceburgh contains about sixty inhabi-
tants, one store, one tavern, one hlacksmith,

Post Office, post twice a week.

WALPOLE.

A Township in the Talbot District, is bounded on the east by the township
of Rainham ; on the north-east by Cayuga. Oueida, aud Tusearora; on the
west by Townsend and Woodhonse ; and en the south by Lake Lrie. In Wal-
pole 23,163 acres are taken up, 5.637 of which are under eultivation. The
plank road from Hamilton to Port Dover passes through the north-west of the
township. There are some pgood farms in the township, und some of the land
is of excellent quality, but a large portion of the timber consists of pine. There
is a small settlement called * Williamsville,” sitnated ou Lake Erie, on the
town line between Walpole and Raicham ; and there are two grist, and five saw
miils in the township. There has as yet been no return of the population in
the township.

Ratable property in the township, £17,041.

WALPCLE IST.AND.

A Large Island situated in the north-east of Lake St Clair; it is about ten
miles long, and from three to four miles wide. It is a fine island, and is oe-
cupied by parties of Chippewa. Pottawatamie. and Ottawa Indians. These
Indians are also known under the name of Chippewas of Chenail Ecarte. 'The
Chippewas who have long hunted over the waste lands about the Chenail
Bearte and Bear Creek, are a branch of the same nation that is settled in Sarnia,
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mnd share in the same annuity. The Pottawatamics are recent immigrants
from the United States.

The settlement at Walpole Tsland was commenced at the close of the Ame-
rican war, when Colonel McKie, called by the Indians * White Elk,"” collected
and placed npon this island the scattered remains of some tribes of Chippewas
who hnd been cngaged on the British side. Being left for many years with-
out any interference or pssistance on the part of the government, they became a
prey to the profiigate whices settled on the frontier, who by various frauds, and
in moments of infuxication, ohtained leases, and took pussession ot the most
fertile and valuable pavt of the island.

When the settlement was first placed under the charge of an pssistant super-
intendent in 1839, these Indians possessed searcely an acre of orable land, but
he has succeeded in expelling many of the most mischievous intruders, nnder
the anthority of an act of the Provinciul Legislature, passed in 1839 ; and has
placed their farms gt the dispesal of the Indians, who have sinee become more
settled, and have turned their attention nwore generally to agriuultm'e.

'The number oo the Island has increased cousiderably since 1859, owing to
the influx of several bands of Pottawatamies, and Ottawas, invited by the pro-
clamation of 1837, relative to the discontinuance of presents to visiting Indians.
Previously lo that year they did not exceed three hundred: but in 1842, presents
were distributed to one thousand, one hundred aud forty, viz,

Chippewas, old residents.. ..., 319
Chippewas, arrived within a year, 197
Potiawatamies and Ottawas from Michigan.. 507
On theirway toseitles:, qoiiiisasiess saisrmsssvinl T

Total....co.ouneiins srerns 1140

The new comers are very different in character and hahits from the resident
Chippewas. The Pottawatamies especinlly, are skilful hunters, and have long
depended solely upon the ¢hase. They are wild, wrhuleut, mendicant and dis-
honest. ‘They possess no lund or property. They have been kindly received
by the resident tribes, and allowed to settle on their Jands; but their roving
habits render them averse frem settling; they prefer remaining poor, ragged
and filthy, to the restraints of civilized life; they are a burthen on their brethren,
a nnisance to the white Farmers in the distriet which they frequent, and their
arrival in the provinee is in every respect to be regretted.  Thetr chief hunting
grounds are near the Thames, and the upper parts of the two branches of Bear
Creek.  They also hunt in the United States, but with some dauger to them-
selves, as the Americans do not allow it.

The Indians who are settled upon Walpole Island, occupy the farms and
houses hitherto possessed hy the white sguatters, together with a few honses
ereeted by themsclves. The present number of dwellings is twenty-cight, of
which three are framed, with several more in the course of erection, and four
log harne. There is no village, the farms being detaeked, us amony the white
settlers. There ave five inferior chiefs amony the Chippewas, wha live sur-
rounded by their own relations und counections by marriage: and the young
men, who thongh nnder the confronl of 1he head clief, vecognise expecially their
own leader.  These, on the expulsion of the squatters, met together, and subdi-
vided the farms and arable land among themselves, aceording 1o their numbers.
Thus, eaeh separate band cultivates one vast enclosure; each man planting
mare or less according to Lis industry, [t is intended, however, to lay out the
ficlds more regu'arly. '

Their acquaintavee with agrienlnre is of’ recent date, hut their progress has
been satisinetory.  In 1839, they planted only Indian corn, and used no other
fmplement hut the hoe, At present they have nine ploughs, and as many yoke
of oxen, besides scythes and sickles in abunmlaves.  They have also a large
rumber of pizs and lorses, and the ebief has two cows.  Steps have heen tuken
to improve tle breed of these animals; a lnrge quantity of marsh hay is saved
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for winter fodder, The extent of cleared land is estimated at 400 acres, and it
is annually on the inerease. The greatest extent cropped by one Indian may be
twelve acres; the smallest, about three acres. At least one hundred heads of
families have commenced to till the land within the last two years. When a
family has no land in enitivation, its memhers depend upon the chase and fish-
ing, and the sale of baskets and mats. The chief crop is Indian corn, but they
also plant large quantities of potatoes, some oats, buckwheat, and peas. They
are about to begin the cultivation of wheat. Much of the Iighter part of field
lIabour is still dene by the women.

The fondness for hunting and fishing is very mnch ou the decrease among the
Chippewas, who seldom indulyge in either, exeept during the winter. The game
has almost disappeared in the neighbouring hnnting grounds.

All these Indians are heathens; but twenty families have applied for religions
instruction. In January, 1841, o missionary of the Church of England wus
appointed, on a salary of’ £100, borne upon the parliamentary grant; but whether
through the want of a proper interpreter, the distance of the residence, (there
being no suitahle honse on the island) or other circumsiances, the Indians have
not profited hy his labours, and the Bishop has been ohliged to appoint another

“.clergyman in his place. It i& now intended to erect on the island, with the

funds belonging to these Indians, a hoilding adapted for a chapel and school-
house, with a house for the missionary; and the plans and estimates have
received the approval of the Governor Genernl. A schoolmaster also is to be
appointed and paid from the same source. The Indians are anxious for the
edueation of their children; aud since the recent death of their old chief, their
aversion to hecome christians has diminished, and may be expected to be
gradually overcome,

The henlth of the settied Indians is very good, and surpasses that of the neigh-
bouring whites; their numbers are also on the inerease, but the contrary is the
ease with the roving Pottawatamies, many of whom have been known to die
from the effects of intoxieation, or in broils, and from the effects of severe
wentber during the winter, ‘T’he number of ehildren horn to a family is about
five, and the number raised three. There are no regular half-breeds among
them, recognised as such,

WALSINGHHAM.

A Township in the Talbot Distriet ; is bounded om the east by the township
of Charlotteville ; on the north-west by Middletown 5 on the west by Houghton;
end on the south by Lake Frie. In Walsingham 18,635 aeres are taken up,
5,322 of which are under cultivation. A streamn called * Big Creek ” runs
through the township from north-east to south-west, at the mouth of which is a
gettlement called Port Royal, where is a stcam saw mill. Near the ecntre of the
south of the township is a shipping piace ealled Port Rowan., The prineipal
pari of the timber of the township.is pine, and large quantities of sawed lonber
are exported. There are two grist and six saw mills in the township.

Papulation in 1841, 1,046,

‘Ratable property in the township, £18,412,

WARDSVILLE.
A small Village in the township of Mosa, sitnated on the western road,
thirty-s1x miles from Loadon ; it contains 100 inhabitnts, an Episcopal church,
five stores, one tavern, two dlaclsmiths.

WARWICK.

A Township in the Western Distriet 5 is bounded on the east by the town-
ghip of Adelaide ; ou the north by Bosangnet ; on the west by Plympton ; and
on the sauth by Brooke. In Warwick 26,448 aeres are taken up, 3,080 of
which are under cultivation. The north branch of Bear Creek rans through

SUP—'Y T
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the township, and it is wateted besides by branches of the River Aux Sables,
and other small streams. Warwick contains a large portion of good land, and
since the new road has been completed from London to Port Sarnia, it has com-
menced settling up fast.  In Warwick 1,400 acres of Crown lands are open for
sale, at 8s. ¢’y per acre,

Popnlation in 1843, 1,235, which includes the township of Bosangaet, in which
are very few settlers.

Ratable property in the township, £11,204.

WARSAW
A Village in the west of the township of Dummer, sitnated on the Indian
River, fifieen miles north-cast from Peterborough. Tt contains about seventy
inbabitants, grist and saw mill, carding machine, two stores, and two taverns,

WATERDOWN,
A Village in the township of Flamhoroueh East, seven miles from Hamilton.
It containg about 200 inhabitants, and a Methodist church.
Past office, post twice a waoek.
Professions and Trades.—Two grist mills, two saw do., carding machine and
cloth factory, two stores, one tannery, two taverns, ene saddler, one scythe
factory, one cooper, onec tailor, one shoemalker, one blacksmich.

WATERFORD.

A Village in about the centre of the township of Townsend, on the road
Ieading from Simeoe to Brantford, seven miles from Shneoe, and cighteen from
Brantford. It is situated in a ullvv sarrounded by high hills, and the Nanti-
coke creck runs through the village,

It contains about 150 inhabitants; who have a Baptist Chapel.

Post Office, post every day.

Professions und Trades — One grist mill, one saw do., one distillery, three
stores, two taverns, one waggon maker, one blncksuutls, one tailor, one shoe-
maker, one couper,

WATERLOO.

A Township in the Wellington District; is bounded on the east by the town-
ships of uslimch and Guelph; on the north-west by Woalwich; om the west by
Wilmot; and on the santh by Dmnfries. In Waterloo 82,825 aeres arve taken
up, 30,026 of which are under eultivation, This is the best settled and most weal-
thy townahlp in the W ellinaton District. It has been settled about foriy years,
aimost entirely by Pennwlvamﬂn Dutch and Germans, most of whom brought
considerable capital with them into the counfry; and their farms are conse-
quently well cleared, and they have excellent houses and furm buildings. They
are a thritty set, and are gradnally ineressiug in wealth.  Muny of them eannot
speak English. 'The land is mostly rolling, and the farms are generally well
sinated.  The Guand River runs through the centre of the township; and in
the south of it is joined by the River Speed. Nuweraus other branches of
tlic Grand River are spread over the township, The villages of Preston, Wa-
terloo, Litde Germany, Glasgow, New ITope, Berlin, and Liridgeport are sitnated
in the township. There ave eight grist and twenty saw wills in the townslup,

Poputation in 1841, 4424,

Ratabie property in the township, £94,759,

WATERLOO.

A Village in the township of Kingston, situated on the western road, three
miles west from Kingston—-the little Cataraqui River runs through it.  There
# a Methodist chnreh in the village, and a Quaker meeting-house.

Population about 200,
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Professions and Trades.—Three physicians and surgeons, carding machine
and fulling mill, and eloth factory, one ashery, one tanmery, one store, three
taverns, three wagpon makers, one saddler, two hlacksmiths, two shoemakers,
one tailor, one baker,

WATERLOO, or FORT ERIE RAPIDS,

A Village in the township of Bertie, situnted on the Niagara River, ahout two
miles below the entrance to Lake Erie, and sixteen miles froin Chippewa. A
steam ferry-boat is established which crosses the river every half’ hour to the
Ameriean village, * Blackroek,” which is about two miles below Buttalo, There
is an Episcopal chnrch in the village, and a custom house.

Population, abont 180.

Post Office, post three times a-week.

Professivns and Trades—One grist mill, two stores, two taverns, one grocery,
one waggon maker, two hlacksimiths, one tailor, ore cooper, two shoemakaors,

WATERLOO.

A Village in the township of Waterloo, two miles north from Berlin, sitnated
on a branch of the Grand River—contains about 200 inhabitants, principally
Germans, who have a Lutheran meeting-house,

Post Office, post twice a-week.,

Professivms and Trades,—One grist and saw mill, one distillery, two stores,
two taverns, two blacksmiths.

WAWANOSH.

A Township in tbe Huron District, belonging to the Crown; is hounded on
the novth by (vown lands; ou the west by Asbfield; on the south by Colborne;
and ou the east by Crown lands. as yet unsurveyed, The soil and climate of
this towuship ave excelleut.  The River Ashfield runs through its north-west
corner; and the River Maitland runs completely through it from north to south,
making several hends in its convse,  This township is settling fast. Iz Wawa-
nosh there ave taken up 2050 acres, of which B7 are under cultivation. Govern-
ment price for land in Wawanosh, 8s. currency per dcre. :

Population, 133,

Ratable property i the township, £593.

WAWAXNOSH, LAKE.
A Lake in the north of the wownship of Sarnia, ahout half a mile from Lake
Huron. [t contains ahout 2000 acres, and varies from six to eight feet in depth,
The Riviere anx Perches runs through it.

WELLAND.

A County in the Niagara District. Ii comprises the townships of Bertie,
Crowlaad, Hunberstone, Petham, Stamford, Thoreld, Wainfieer, and Wil-
loughhy. For the purpose of representation in the Legislative Assembly, it is
united to the county of Liucoln,

WELLAND CANAL.

The Channel of water communication between Lakes Erie and Ontario,
constructed to ovevcomne the obstruetion in the mavigation between the two
lakes, cavsed by the Fulls of Ningara, Its entrance from Lake Ontario, nt Port
Dalhousie, is in the north-west covner of the township of Grantham; it then
passes throuzh that tpwnship and the centre of '{'horoid, n the south of which
it strikes the Welland River ; after leaving which it divides. and one branch
runs straight on to Lake Erie, while the other is carried to the Grand River.

The Welland Cunal was originally projected by Mr. Merritt, in the year 1818,
and the work was commenced in 1824,

B = e P———
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The design at the time was to connect the Welland River, which is a tributary

of the Niagara River, and enters that river above the ropids, and the surface of . -

which is ten feet above the level of Lake Erie, with Lake Ontario, from which
it is distant only about sixteen miles. This design to connect the two lakes hy
4 canal so short, failed in conscqnence of the peenlinr geological formation of
that part of the ridge sitnated near the village of Port Robinson, through which
the ecanal must pass.  This part, which was found to consist of clay upon quick
sand, and which after great expense and labour had been incurred, caved in and
destroyed the work, is commonly calied the deep cut.

‘The original design having failed, the Grand River-was adopted as the feeder,
and a summit level assumed, 65 feet above Lake Erie, and 3364 feet above Luke
Ontario ; the descent'to the former being overcome by one lock, at Port Col-
borne: and to the latter by thirty-cight locks. These locks were of wood, 110
feet by 20.

The works on the eanal having become very much out of repaie—the wood-
work of the locks decayed and giving way ; and the capal itself very inefficient
for the accommodation of the increased traffic through it, and constantly requir-
iog repairs, it was determined to make extensive improvements in the caval,—
benring morethe character of anew work altogether—than the patching up of the
old one.

The canal, aceording to the present design, will be navigable thronghout by
vesgels 26 fteet 4 inches, by 140 feet, the tonnage of which will be about 450
tons. New and magnificent, aund substantial locks {of cut stone) have heen
coustructed, the work of which is equal to that of any pnblic work in the world.
The ciunul has been straightened in many places, and from the inereased sizeand
eapacity of the new locks, it Lius been found possible to diminish their nunber.

The Grand River wus originally intended as the feeder, and prineipal chan-
nel for the canal; bot it wus found advisable to take the supply of wuter from
Lake Erie as being less Hable (o fluetnation in its level, than any river could
pussibly be. A channel has therefore been formed from the Welland River
struight to the lnke.  ‘I'bis has been a work of enormous labour and expense ;
u Jarge pottion of the cut being formed through the solid rock, This will mnch
diminish the length of the passage, and the cut to Lake Erie will he the prin-
cipal thorcaghfare for all traffic on the ecanal, passing between the two lakes.
The entire length of the canal and its branches will be ubout fifiy-two miles,
The avbhour at Port Dalhousie is at present very defective, but when the pro-
posed intprovements arve eompleted, will be equal to any harbour on the lake.

The oviginal cost of the canal was £450,000; on repairs and other improve-

ments, £250,000 was cxpended. ') he construction of the new canal is estimated
to cost £751,000 'l hese seem large sums, but when the maygnitude and impor-~
tance of the work is taken into consideration. it will be generally allowed that
the maasy eould not have been expended in any way to more edvantage to the
Provinee generally. and more particularly so, to that of the country west of the
Niagara Kiver,
Frear disturbances having fregnently oceurred along the line of the caval, and
many faction fizhts having tuken place nmongst the Irish labourers employed on
the works, some of which were attended with loss of lite, it was found neces-
sary tu Lave an armed foree stativned on the eanal, in order to overawe the
rioters, A eownpany of soldiers was Iberefore raised trom mnongst the coloured
wen setiled in the provinee, In addition o which a party of mounted police
were stutiouvd along the line.  Tbese measures have had the desired effect, and
peace has been since preserved.

The villuges on the caral are Part Dalhousie at the entranee, on Loke Ontario,
from thence to 8t Catharines, 5] miles, from thence to Thorold, 44 miles, from
thenee to Allanburgh, 3% miles, and from thence to Port Robinson, 24 miles.
From Port Robinson ro Iake Fric by the Grand River; to the aqueduet. 4% miles,
from thence to Marshville, 84 miles, from thence to Dunnville, 134 miles, from
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Dunnvilleto Lake Erie, 43 miles. From Port Robinson to Lake Erie by the
Yeeder; to Merrittsville, 4 miles] to Helmgport or the Junetion, 1 mile, from thence
to Stonebridge, 6 miles, and from thence to Port Colborne, 14 miles,

Comparative Statement of the principal Articles of

Welland Canal, from the opening of Navigation to the 30

erty passed through the

November, in the

years 1841, 1842, 1843, und 1844,

Articles. 1841. 1842, 1843. 1844,
Beef and Perk, barrels .. 0.0, RUR L B7.394 19,352} 41,976
Flour, do. . v 213,483 247,602 171,450 305,208
Ashes, do. sesevann 268 441 991 3,412
Beer and Clder, do. ........ 31 234 | 194 50
Salt, do. T 136,138 152,535 145,071 200,008
DI, B RS i r s a2 i 4,204
Whiskeg. Darrels cveesr eevueune 1,950 3,142 1,675 931
Plaster, do. .... e 113 310 149 2,068
Fiuit and Nuts, do... v s 246 | 459 265 470
Butter and Lard, do. .....0v0e 174 . 1,279 1,133 4,630
Seeds, [ - M 117 609 564 1,429
Tallow, do. cviiinenne 23 wadan 09 1,183
Water Lims do; i, esis 25 316 w30 1,662
Pitch and Tar, do, .....c.... waai v 8% 78
Fish, A vewxsraeas 132 Ba8 1,227 1,758
QGatmeal, do. cesiiinn o 76 trban 156G 132
Bees Wax, do. . a6
s do. erish 2 116 06
Saw Loga, vwmber, . 11,300 8,885 12,026 10411
Boards, feel. v vuvsssersrnnsnsns 8,380,911 4.199.590 2,231,143 7,493,574
Bquare Timber, cubic feet, .... 1,155,U66 267,942 342,414 490,528
Half Flatted, 0. i PP sase s 1,300 13,922
Rouud, do, PLREI 7,231 8,360 20,879
Staves, Pipe, number, ........ 1,708,406 1,253,400 640,403 Gun,Ang
Dao, West India, do, ........ 1,408,745 1128508 183960 L4796
Do,  TDouble Flour Barrel, do. 297217 0,7 60 9,656 131,500
BRINEILS, A0 covevrvsararannsnal 414,500 217,000 61,100 330,400
Wheat, bushels. ... ; 1,579,966 | 1,R91,360 1,175,850 2,144,502
Corn, do a 4 70,474 | 151,164 uz,186 | 75,328
Barley, do v . 1,304 20 coanan } 930
ye, do. ' o 467 1,764 SN 143
Oats, do. . 3,619 12,240 | 14,031 5,653
Potatoes, da. S e ey e 436 1.050 H.RI8 7,311
Butter aud Lard, kegs, «v.vee .. 967 1,917 1,692 4,664
Merchandise, L0118, v. oo vt vioen 4,031 3,530 4,392 | 11,318 16 ewd.
Coal, do. . 1,422 2,801 1,819 1,684
Castings, do, 91 413 22683 211
Trom, do. 73 237 485 1,748}
Tobaceo, do, 3G9 77 471 140
Grindstones, do. 237 240 99 151}
Plasier, do. .. 369 935 4221 1,491}
Hides, do. ... 9 6 66 161§
Bacon and Hams, do.. 58 41 1644 307
Bran aud Shorts, do. 45 g2 9 23l
Water Lime O 441
Stone, taide, .. ... 126 3l 1,106 738
Firewood, cords, .. vomeas e s e 3 402 1,876} 3,451}
Passengers. nomber, -. .. ... .e 358 1,229 140 3,261
Small Packages, do, .......... el 496 als 459
Pumps, i ewermnori 20 | 1% 17 102
Schoomers, [ [ —— 2,056 | %246 | 1,543 | 2,121
Steamboate and Prapellers, do.. e | ! ez 484
Braws, Qb oo ee cume ot cainananan 1.063 ' 1 430 K24 1,671
RaBs, do.esvvavenivinnivrnse 143 § LI e
Tonnage, LONB. cu e vevr v 4or s 277.144 | 304,083 224,405 327,570
Amount of Tolls polleeted. . .. .. [:£20,210.19:.84,' £23 946.)9%.6¢. £16,135,7s, 84.|£25,573.3s.10d.
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3.—Inrox, MinerALS, Ones, &c.,
Gypsum, not ground, in 0 BULE. .o SRR | | /s S
Do. éround,mbnlk PR} | T, S,
o Ground Gypsum and T S ="
Pot and Pearl Ashes ...., AT arisasansepns vo e {DO. it Rras
®0Pitch, Tar, Varnish and Turpentine ......eeee...... ...
Brick, Sand, Lime, Clay and Manure .......c.covennenes,
Grind Stones, Cut do., Iron Ore, and Mill Stones ...... |Do. .......
Pig & Scrap Iron, Broken Carrrmgs, & Wrought Iron . Do. ..........
Iron Castings, going up . OSSR Ta S| | || AR
Do. going TR M———— ssesss i DO g
Mineral Coal, AMETICAN.....cccvnimreiennrrinirieesinsenincsen DO ceevveannn,
Charcoal, Copperas and Mangnnese ........................ Do. ,ecueneenn.
Pig Lead and Bar dou..v.vovesoornn...n. P OLT T Tor ] | .. PR
Lead, Manufactured . T s el | )RR
Stones, Unwrought B RPROPIDIURIINRTORY | 6. i SR .
Fire Wood . OSSR | ¢ ' ST
Tan Bark ., e sk, 0 s
Stone Ware and Earlhenware ..... AR SRR S T wm e Ton veevinnens
4.—Fuvrs, PEuTRY, Sums, &e.
Raw Hides, the Skins of Domestic and Wlld Ammaln .|Cwt.......
Furs .....,. R e .. Do. ...
Dressed Hides and SKins ..o PP ) .
5—FurNiTurE, &c.
Furniture and Hn.g gage .., Toa .........
Carts, Waggons, Sleighs, Ploughs, Mechmucs Tools,
and Farming Implements P AR ] | B W
6.—LuMBER, &e.
Sqtmred Timber, 1212 and upw. in Boats or Vessels [per m. c. Feet.
Do. in cmesirssnssesarstiantasrnsresnsansnsassssssernsrsrery (D00 reperesrayen
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Rates of Toll—ConTIKUED.

et R S s 8 1

J From Port
Maitland, From St.
From Port | Dunnvllle, | From Port | From Tho- | Catharines
Quanmity o8 |Through the| Maitland to | and Port | Robinson to| rold to St, to Port
DESCRIPTION OF ARTICLES. BuLk. whole Line | Dunnville, &| Colborne to|Thorold,and| Calharines, | Dalhousie,
vice versa. | Port Bobin-| vice versa. |& vice verza. and
son, and vice versa.
Vive YCTsa.
Sanred Timber upder 12X 121, and Round or Flatted £ 8 d|£ s d|£ s.d|L s d|£ s d|£ a d
imber in Boats or Vessels .....cocverversireeseessssesper M L. Feet./ 015 0|0 3 8|0 7 6|0 3 6|0 2 0|0 2 0
Do. in Rafts.... e veveessnenpEr M, C, Feet/ 1 0 0({0 5 0|010 0|0 4 0|0 3 0(0 3 0
Sma.ll Round Bmldmg Tlmber, Floats aud Traverses,
in Boats .............. R S AR R S ML In.Feet. ¢ 5 0(0 1 3|0 2 6,0 1 2{0 0 8!0 n 8
Do. in Rafts.......... AT Do. eeo0oveeeee)y 0 7 6|10 2 0(0 3 6|0 2 0(0 1 0|0 1 O
Boards, Pluoks, Scantlmg,& ‘Sawed Lumber in Boatsi»r. F. In.meas. 0 1 3[0 0 4|0 © 740 0 340 0 2|0 0 2
Do. in Rafts............... eeitseiesersaresrenees .Do. 0 5 0(0 1 3|02 6|01 2|00 380 0 8
Pipe Staves and Head.mgs S O R G 010 0|0 2 6/0 5 0|0 2 0|0 1 6|0 1 6
West]'ndemwesandHead.mgs 0 3 601 001 6{01 0/0O0G6&l0 06
HedIUZE .ovvvriiiiiieircnnacminiorionmsiiainriiine s 03 6[(0 1 0|01 6|01 0|00 6!l0 0 6
BUMPIES: .oorvemmaisiviniisivsvonsonniioinasssasinesntsniveer 00 3|00 1(0 0 1340 0 040 0 cko o
Saw oy AT A e ia e Vi VSR 00 4|/0 0 1|0 0 2|0 0 1{ag 0 0o 0 0
Cedanosts ; T e el ceweeefCord ,,......./0 2 OO0 O 6[{0 3 0|0 0 60 0 3|0 o0 8
Posts and Ra:lsforFencmg SO — Do. vovseerneedd @1 6 (0 0 5/0 0 910 0 410 0 240 0 O
Empty Barrels.c....cccciiininiiisiicininssiianisinsinsenens[E8ch 0/ 00 1 (0 0 040 0 040 0 0.0 0 00
7.—AnTICLES NOT ENUMERATED.
On all Articles of Merchandise not enumerated in the
foregoing List . s G Ton ............ 05001 3/{0 2 601 2/00 8|0 08
Firkins, Small Casks, Packe:s‘&r Each ......... 0 0 140 0 030 0 04 0 0 0} 0 0 0}/0 0 O
Passengers, Adults .........ceeeeerissereroiiiiiss seereesnnnel D0 viisisnnnns 0 0 60 0 14 0 0 3 o 0 130 0 ;0 00
D0.  Children ..ciceryueeresirversensessicssnansesssnnns Do. ...co.......0 0 3/0 0 10 0 130 0 03 0 0 0§00 0
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WELLESLEY.

A Township in the Wellington District, is bounded on the east by the
township of Woolwich; on the north-east by Peel; on the north-west by Mor-
nington; and on the south by Wilmot. In Wellesley 1,280 acres are under
cultivation, only fifty acres are returned as uncultivated. This township
formed a part of what was called the Queen’s Bush; (crown land, where fifty
acre lots were given away to actual settlers). The Canastoga, a branch of the
Grand river, ruus through the north-east corner of the township.

Population in 1841, 254.

Ratable property in the township, £2,884.

WELLINGTON DISTRICT.

Consists of the county of Waterloo, which comprises the township of Arthur,
Amaranth, Beutinck, Derby, Eramosa, Figremont, Guelph, Glenelg, Garafraxa,
Holland, Luther, Moruington. Minto, Maryborough, Melancthon, Nichol,
Normanby, Peel, Proton, Puslinch, Sydenham, Sullivan, Waterloo, ®Wilmot,
Woolwich, and Wellesley; and, for the purpose of representation in the Legis-
lative Assembliy ouly, the township of Dumiries, and for all purposes except that
of representation in the Legislative Assembly. the township of Erin. :

The Wellington District is bouuded on the east by the Gore, Home, and
Simcoe Districts; on the north by the Simcoe Distriet, and unsurveyed Jands;
on the west by uusurveyed lands, and 2 small portion of the Huron and
Brock Distriets; and on the sputh by the Gore and Brock Districts.
It is watered by the Grand River and some of its branches, the Sau-
geen, and numerons small streams, some of which are excellent mill streams.
Some portions of the district, (which formerly composed part of the Gore
Distriet) liave been long settled, as the township of Waterloo, which has been
occupied above forty years. The more aortberly townships, a3 Guelph, Wool-
wich, Nichol, &c., have been more receutly settled. Guelph was laid ount
nearly twenty years since by Mr. Gali, on a block of land helonging to the
Canada Company, and Woolwich, Nichol, Eramosa and Erin, have heen settled
snbsequently ; and many of the new townships towards Owen Sound have as
yet very few settlers in them. A road has lately been opened by the govern-
ment from Arthur to Owen Sound, and fifty acre lots have been given to settlers,
fronting on the road, with liberty to purchase, within a certain time, the fifty
acres in the rear. According to a return made in 1845, there were settled on
this road within the first thirty miles above Arthur, a popalation amounting to
1111, of these 537 were Irish, 222 Secotch, 182 English, French Canadian eighty-
four, Anzlo Canadians seventy-eight, Amerieans eight; and they had under
eultivation 2,500 acres of land.

There is much fine land in the distriet, and some of the best farms in the
Province may be found in the townships of Guelph, Waterloo, Wilmot, and
Pustinch. Eramosa, Erin and Woolwich are alsn well settled. Much of the
land in the district is timbered with the best kinds of hardwood, maple, heech,
Elm, Ouk, &c., with a sufficiency of pine for all necessary purposes. The
township of Waterloo was settled by a number of emigrants from the United
States, consisting of Pennsylvanian Duatch; the rest of the district has been
settled ulmnst exclusively by English, Irish, and Scotch emigrants. Guelph,
the distriet town, is situated in the midst of a rolling country, surrounded by
hapdsomely situated, and well cultivated farms, and it is dry and healthy.
There are besides in the distriet, the villages of Preston, Berlin, Glasgiw, and
Waterloo, in Waterloo; Haysvilleand Hamburg, in Wilmot; Fergus and Elora,
(the latter of which is beautifully situated on the Grand River), in Nichol; and
others of less note. There is some fine scenery in the district; that of the falls
of Elora is particularly pictaresque, Lime stone is abundant in the district,
along the course of the Grand River and its hranches. The settlers in this
district are generally in good circumstances, and are improving the country fast;
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. -and improvement in the district.

% 0;]6 ¢res of land were I;roﬁ.ght into cultivation between January, 1849, and

‘_I__a.’f:fu‘igq,__-lﬁi}d-.' In’ the Wellington District 307,178 scres of Crown lands are

.open: for sale, at 8s. currency per acre, to purchase any of which application

‘mukt be made to thé Crown lands agent at Elora. A few lots in Amaranth,

Erin, Garafraxa, and Melancthon, vary in price from 2s 6d. to 10s, per acre

Pp}:}laﬁon of the district in 1841, 13,851, since when it has prohably increased
th.

~. The following abstract from the assessment rolls will shaw the rate of increase

| I -
| s
i Nao, of MILLS. 10xen, 4 years| Horned Cattle, | Amount of
Dats, |  Acres Milch Cows.| old, and tfrom 2 to 4 Ratable
: Cultivated, upwards. years old. Property.
| Gtlst. | Saw. 2
1842 ° 75863 12 39 6590 3623 4366 £234,892
1843 82,897 14 43 6872 3602 4572 243,872
1844 90,791 19 47 6973 4785 4515 258,763
: |

Government and District Officers in the Wellington District:
Judge of Diatrict Conrt........oceernrenine . A. J. Fergusson ......... Guelph.
Bheriff.....oiiivviiriiiiniennnnirsienienns  Geo. G, Grange ............ Do,
Clerk of Peace ..ouevviririrvenrsoescerssensas  LHoS. Saunders ............ Do

TERAHUTET s aivsaswminonsvansuivanys U Wm., Hewat........oeveee.. Do,
Bistrict Clerk..occicivisiainniins Re Fe Bodd e Do.
Inspector of Licenses........crcccvvveenroen. James Hodgert (..., Da.
Clerk of District Court .vvviiiiveinnnsnnnn Robt. Alling......... vorennn Do,
Deputy Clerk of Crowh....ccccvvrirevveeses W, Hewato,oovveeerne.. Do
Buperintendent of Schools.......civearieeny Alex. Allana..e..n. Preston.
Warden.......... Pas Y e SRS P A. D. Fordyxce............. Fergus.

Henry Orton............... Guelph.

COTONBTS .uvveiinrnsianienienasraraasasians 3 Jas. Buiste..ieevrnrsevannss..  Fergus.
Drr. Seottuiiiniven. Berhn.

Number of Common Schoals in operation in the Iistrict—Guelpb, eight?
Waterloo, twenty-four; Wilmot. twenty; Woolwich and Queen’s Bush, six 3
Wellesley, five; Nichol, five; Eramosa, five; Erin, twelve; Puslineh, eight?
Garafraxa, six; Amaranth, 1 ; total, one hundred.

WELLINGTON SQUARE.

A Village in the township of Nelson, pleasantly situated on Lake Ontario,
eight miles from Hamilton. Tt has been settled obout twenty years. The
steamboats to and from Hamilton generally touch here. Wellington Square
contains about 400 inhabitants. There are in the village ap Episcopal church
and a Free church, A schooner is owned here.

Post office, post every day.

Professions and Trades—One physician and surgeon, one steam grist mill,
one foundry, one tannery, two stores, six groceries, one druggist, one pottery,
four taverns, one saddler, ove tinsmith, twe waggon makers, two blucksmiths,
-one baker, four tailors.

. Principul Tavern—* Ontario House.”
Ezports from Wellington Square for 1844,
IO ssivswmevcmvesivasvisimsmmmmsssisenian ssssunsessaare L0; 092 HATTRIE
Timothy Seed.......cccrvvrmrverererreeies siecaenisnn 91 do,
Wheat voievreivenrnraes cerennans =S oy ot 84,921 hushels.
BOLLOE i riviaaniniiis iss o arervisessmpaessnaniseyvavs 26 kegs.

T R DU S
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WELLINGTON.

A small Village situated in the sonth-east corner of the township of Hillier,
@and partly in the township of Hallowell: it contains about 150 inhabitants.
“There are two churches in the village—Catholic and Methodist. There are
three stores in the village.

WENTWORTH.

A County in the Gore District; it comprises the townships of Ancaster, Brant-
ford, Binbrooke, Barton, Glandford, Onandaga, Saltfleet and Tuscarora; and
for all purposes, except that of representation in the Legislative Assembly, and
that of registration of titles, the townships of Seneca and Oneida; and, except
{gr the purpese of representation in the Legislative Assembly, the town of

amilton. —_—

WESTERN DISTRICT.

Consista of the Connties of Essex and Kent. It is the most south-westerly
district in the Province, and is bounded on the east by the London District
and a small portion of the Huron District; on the north by Lake Huron; on
the west by the River 8t. Clair, Lake St. Clair and the Detroit River; and on
the south by Lake Erie. It iz watered by the River Thames and the River
8ydenham, or Bear Creek; the River aux Sables, and numerons small streams
are distributed over the district. This district contains some of the finest land,
and the most temperate climate of any portion of the province; the winter is
short, and the spring sets in early. The valley of the Thames, as also that of
Bear Creek, contain large portions of fine farming land, well adapted for raisin,
wheat; as do also the townships of Moore, Sarnia, Plympton, Warwick an
Enniskillen; and the soil for about seven miles below Chatham is noted for the
superior quality of peas it produces. ‘The Couuty of Essex is well fitted for
the cultivation of Indian corn, and tobacco of very good quality has been raised
m 1.

This district, although possessing the most temperate climate, the shortest

winter, and some of the richest land in the province, has hitherto settled up
very slowly. This may be attributed to various causes; in the first place, its
remoteness, and till very lately. the lack of convenient modes of reaching it:
again, many emigrants newly arrived in the eountry, having very incautiously
settled themselves down on the plains or prairies, within couvenient distances
of extensive morshes, attracted by the greenness of the pasture (uot, after all,
much greener than themselves), and the ease with which the land could be
brought into cultivation; where, as any reasonable person would have antici-
Fated., they soon (from the miasma arising from the marshes) caught ague and
evers. These, removing to other parts of the country, and blaming, not their
own folly, as they ought to have done, but the climate of the country generally,
deterred other settlers from venturing into it. 1t is troe that in the Western
District there are many wet and marshy places, but not more in proportion
than in other parts of the province; but most of these may be easily drained,
for many of those places which were wet three or four years ngo have been
effectually drained in making the new roads throngh the district: No localities
can be drier or more bealthy than the townships on the upper portions of the
Thames and Bear Creelk, end on Lake Huron. And, on a hot snmmer’s day,
a0 situation can be more agreeable than that of the settlers on the banks of Lake
Huron, in the township of Plympton,—the air is seldom sultry, and there is
generally a refreshing breeze from the lake. On the lake shore vegetation
flourishes; and the farms, gardens and orchards never snffer from late or early
frosts. In the townships of Dover and Tilbury a large portion of the land con-
siste of open plains, partaking very much of the nature of marsh: these are
very useful for grazing cattle, which thrive very well on them; but no man of
common sense would dream of making his habitation on them—those of course
who have done 50, have suffered the consequences.
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The soil of a ].urge portion of the district consists of a deep alluvial soil, very
rich, and capable of producing large crops. In some of the townships bordering
on Lake Erie the soil is a mixture of gravel and loam; and in Sarnia there is
large extent of oak plains. The timber of the district consists of maple, beech,
hlack-walnut, butternut, hickory, oak, elm, &ec.

The southern portion of the district has heen long settled, many of the oceu~
pants in the County of Essex holding their lands under old French grants,
which were confirmed to them by the British government afier the conquest of
Canada. The present inhabitants, the descendants of the original settlers, are
still in every particular essentially French, and are too fond (sometimes too
much so for the good of the country) of keeping up old French customs. Thus,
on the deuth of a landowner his property becomes divided amongst his children;
and on the decease of each of those children, it again becomes subdivided; so
that in the present day, in that portion of the district peopled by French Cana-
dians there is scarcely a good-sized farm to be found. And not only are the
farms small and insufficient, but the farming is wretched. Many of these people
gettled on the lower portion of the Thames, actually build their stables on the
banks of the river for the convenience of shovelling the manure into it. The
following is an example of the difference between French and English farming:
Ahout ten yearssince an emigrantfrom England,a Lincolnshire farmer, engaged to
rent a farm inthe townshipof Dover East. The ownersoftheland (French Cana-
dians) having exhausted that portion of the land which was cleared, and being too
indolent to clear more, were literally starved out; they were therefore compelled
to let the farm. When Mr. W. took possession he found nine hundred loads of
manure at the barn door. When he took the farm there were forty-five acres
of land cleared (out of a hundred acre lot), and he engaged to pay a rent of $50
per annum.  He has now had the farm ten years, has cleared thirty additional
acres, and is so well satisfied with the quality of the soil that he has leased it for
five years, at an annupl rent of $180. Since he has had the farm he has soid
1,300 bushels of wheat from one year's crop,

The farms and other settlements in this district generally have very fine
orchards attached to them; and fruit is usually very plentiful in the district
Apples have been sold at Chatham at 34d. currency per bushel; and peaches
have been sold on the shores of Lake Erie at 15. 84. per bushel,

Man! of the dwellings on the Detroit and 8t. Clair Rivers are beautifully
sitnated.

Clearing has lately been going on extensively in the townships of Plympton
and Warwick, and large quantities of potash have been made; but so little are
the advantages of the district generally known, that cultivated farms are to be
bought here for from $10 to $15 per acre, which in any other portion of the
province would fetch from $30 to $50 per acre. Thirteen thousand acres of
land have been brought iuto cultivation betwcen January, 1842, aud January,
1144,

The towns of Chatham, Sandwich (the district town), and Amherstburg are
gituated in the district; the former on the Thames, and the two latter on the
Detroit River; and there are besides in the distriet the villages of Windsor on
the Detroit River; Port S8arnia, Froomefield and Sutherlands on the St Clairg
Errol, in Plympton; and Lonisville on the Thames, besides smaller places of
less note.

Tn the Western District 57,850 of Crown lands are open for sale, at 8s. ¢’y.
per aere; to purchase any of which application must be made to the Crown
lands agent at Sandwich.

Population in 1844, 27,619; since when it has probahly increased ane-tenth.
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The following abstract from the assessment rolls will show the rate of

increase and improvement in the district:
No.of , MILLS. | \Oxen, 4 years| Horoed Cattle,| Amount af
Date.! Acres Mileh Cows.| oldand from 2 to 4 Ratable
Cultivated. — — — | upwards. years old. ‘ Property.
Grist, ‘ Saw, ! E
| ;
A |
1842 69,335 | 19 19 8,375 3,148 4,112 £394,711
1843 77,176 14 17 92,14 3,556 4,833 324,221
1844| 82,726 15 | 22 9,624 3,963 4,628 941,354
i | |

Government and Distriet Officers in the Western District :

Jodge of Distriet Court............ Alexander Chewett.......... Sandwich.
Bheriff.........ccooiiiiinniniiiienee. George W, Foote.........n, Do.
Clerk of Peaee ..........csviieee. Charles Baby..oovveaeivninnnns Do.
Treasurer ....ccovveiievscninnnenns Jo Bo Baby. i, Do.
Registrar .c...ovcvvrvieacsinnsinnnenn, dimes Askin i Do.
Inspector of Licenses....ccoivinnnee W Gy Halliiiviiiiinnnnaias Do.
Judge of Surrogate Court......... John A. Wilkinson.......... Do,
Registrar of do..ccvvveernenneeieense James Askin...ooiiiniaiennns Da.
Distrieq Clerk.......ccovieiniiienn, John Cowan.......cceevvivnnns Da.
Depaty Clerk of Crown ......... 8. J. Fluett........ E¥eHEsEnnREy Do.
J’ R. E Vidal............e...... Port Sarnia.

Jolin F. Eiliotta...evrernnnnns Windsor.

Collectora of Customs........... William Cosgrave............ Chatham,
[ F. Caldwell ..........cocvueeen Malden,

—. Cronyn.......covveeinnnnes . Rond 'Ean.
Warden ..........cooveeeeriinenenn, Johin Dolsen,....... B Dover East,

Hugh Johnston ............... Moore.

R. Pepley....coirsninneisnnsse. Chatham town,

8. T. Thebo....c.corerrarsiann- Sandwich,
COTOnErS. i viviiissiivvamessorsesinny Wo Gk Hall i Do.

James Koevill ,......ooceevve... Amherstburg,

A. Young, junior.............. Port SBarnia.

P. P. LecroiX.....oouuree Sombra.

Number of Common Schools in operation in the District.— Anderdon, two

Brooke, none; Cainden, three; Chatham, six; Colchester, three; IDawn, seven;
Dover, East and West, three; Gosfield, six; Harwich, eleven; Howard, ten;
Maidstone, four; Malden, nine; Mersea, five; Moore and Enniskilien, two;
Orford, three ; Plympton, three ; Ralcigh, twelve; Roehester, two; Romney,
three; Bandwich, ten; Sarnia, four; Sombra, seven; Tilbury Eust, three; Til-
bury West, three; Warwiek and Bosanquet, five; Zone, six. “Toual, 138,

WESTMEATH.

A Township in the Bathurst District; is bounded on the east by the Ottawa
River; on the north-west by the township of Pembroke; on the south-west by
Stafford ; and on the south-east by Ross. In Westmeath 15,863 acres are taken
np, 1,684 of which are under cultivation. Westmeath is as yet hut little settled,
and 34,200 acres of Crown lands are open for sale in it, at 85, currency per acre.
There are two saw mills in the township.

Population in 1842, 628.

Ratable property in the township, £7,036.



